
 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING 

JORDAN ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
AUGUST 8, 2016 - 5:30 PM 

 
The Board of Commissioners will meet with staff to review departmental quarterly reports. 
 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS SPECIAL MEETING 

CLOSED SESSION 
JORDAN ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

AUGUST 8, 2016 - 6:30 PM 
 

The Board of Commissioners will meet in closed session to discuss the Town Manager’s annual review. This 
meeting is not open to the public.  
 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

AUGUST 8, 2016 - 7:00 PM 
 

 
1. Regular Meeting Called to Order 

 
2. Invocation 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4. Items to be Added to the Agenda 
 
5. Recognize Police Officer Michelle Archer’s Election as 2016-17 President of the North Carolina 

Association of School Resource Officers 
 

6. Introduction of Interim Fire & EMS Chief Robert Swiger 
 

7. Recess Regular Meeting for Public Hearings to: 
 

A. Enter into an Installment Contract for the Purchase of Real Property Known as the Outen Pottery 
Site 
 

B. Amend the Unified Development Ordinance of the Town of Matthews:  
 

1) Zoning Application 2016-646: Cross and Crown Lutheran Church; to amend the existing R/I(CD) 
zoning district to allow construction of a bell tower, which would include co-location antennae for 
cellular communication on that certain property designated as 300 Pineville-Matthews Road and 

 



commonly referred to as Cross and Crown Lutheran Church and being more particularly 
designated as Tax Parcel 213-239-104 
 

2) Zoning Application 2016-648: Budd Law Group; to change the zoning from R-12 to O(CD) on that 
certain property belonging to the Pressleys located at 352 East Charles Street and further being 
designated as Tax Parcel 215-014-08 
 

3) Motion 2016-2: UDO Text Amendment; to amend the text of the UDO to revise the standards for 
street names 

 
8. Reconvene Regular Meeting 

 
9. Planning and Development Business 

 
A. Report from Planning Board  
 
B. Planning and Zoning Related Actions: 
 

1) Zoning Application 2016-644: to change the zoning from Conditional District to B-1(CD) on 
that certain property belonging to Michael and Julia Todd and designated as 9601 East 
Independence Boulevard and more particularly described as Tax Parcel 193-303-12. 

 
2) Zoning Application 2016-649: to change the conditions on that certain R/I(CD) zoning district 

located at 121 Elizabeth Lane and being property belonging to the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Board of Education, more commonly known as Elizabeth Lane Elementary School, to allow 
the addition of mobile classrooms to the site and further being property designated as Tax 
Parcel 227-034-91. 
 

3) 2016-645/Sportsplex: To change the zoning from R-20 to ENT District on that certain 
property commonly referred to as the Sportsplex and being designated as 2425 Sports 
Parkway, 1601 and 1585 Tank Town Road, and further identified as tax parcels 215-081- 15, 
215-231-01 and -02  (deferred from 7/11/16) 
 

4) Administrative Amendment: Eden Hall (deferred from 7/11/16) 
 
   

10. Public Comment (Please sign in to speak at this time. Limited to 4 minutes.) 
 
11. Reports from Boards/Committees 
 

A. Economic Development Advisory Committee - minutes 
 

12. Consent Agenda 
 

A. Approve Minutes of the July 11, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting 

B. Accept Zoning Application 2016-650; Matthews Festival Limited Partnership; 10410 East 

Independence Boulevard; Tax Parcel IDs 19329209,19329226 and 19329227; from Conditional 

to B-1SCD and B-H(CD) and Set a Public Hearing for October 10, 2016 

C. Approve Mecklenburg County Tax Collector’s Settlement for Fiscal Year 2016 

D. Approve Resolution Adding Oscar Drive to Town Street System 

E. Appoint Members to Veteran Affairs Committee 

F. Accept Resignation of Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Advisory Committee Member  
 



G. Approve Request by the Matthews Fire & EMS Department to Solicit Donations at the 

Intersection of John Street and Trade Street 

 

13. Unfinished Business 

A. Receive Update on 2016 Planning Conference To-Do List 
B. Approve Purchase of Outen Pottery Property from Charlotte-Mecklenburg Historic Landmarks 
Commission 

 

14. New Business 

A. Consider Approval of Proposed Gateway Signs – Buzz Bizzell  

B. Consider Ordinance Allowing Beer and Wine Consumption on Public Property  

C. Consider Approval of Pavement Preservation Plan 

 
15. Mayor’s Report 

 
16. Attorney’s Report 

 
17. Town Manager’s Report   

 
18. Closed Session to Discuss Town Manager’s Annual Review 

      
19. Adjournment 

 



 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIRE & EMS 
QUARTERLY REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 7 

 

 
 

GOALS 

 
 

STRATEGY 

 
STATUS 

(% Complete) 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

(Lead in Bold) 

     
Staffing Place Career 

Personnel on 24 hour 
shifts  

1.  To be completed by New Chief 
within next 6 months 

 
Chief 

 
Operational Performance  

 

Revise Standard 
Operating 
Procedures and 
Guidelines 

 
 

1.  To be completed by Committee 
with approval by Chief within next 6 
months 

 
SOP Committee Chaired by Chief 

Williams 

 
Operational Performance Establish requirement 

that Driver Operators be 
Certified by NC Fire & 
Rescue Commission 

 
 

1.  Ongoing 
Chief Assistant Chief 

Williams 

 
 
 

Rating  

 
 
 

Ensure department meets 
requirements of North 
Carolina Response Rating 
System to maintain rating  

 
1. Ongoing  

 
 

Chief, Staff 

 
 

Customer Service/Response 

 

Maintain or improve 
response times while 
adhering to NFPA/OSHA 
standards 

1. Ongoing    ,Chief, Assistant Chief Gurian, 
Captain Watkins,  Assistant Chief 
Williams, Captain, Captain Brooks, 
Captain Lebold 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Page 3 of 7 

 

 



 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
QUARTERLY REPORT 

 Goals FY15-16 
7-12-16 (April - June 2016)                                                                            (Updates in blue)                                                                          
 
 
 
  
 

 



 
 

 
GOALS 

 
STRATEGY 

 
STATUS 

(% Complete) 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

(Lead in Bold) 

Long Range Planning 

Annually review the update 
schedule for comprehensive and 

policy plans, and ensure 
consistency of plans with other 

adopted plans and other 
departments 

  Complete an update of the Downtown Master 
Plan appendices of Design Guidelines and 
Streetscape Improvements 

100% & 40%  

Jay Camp  
 

Long Range Planning Continue collaborative regional 
planning efforts 

 
  Actively participate in the E John St/Old 
Monroe Rd study to provide input on how 
potential road changes would impact adjacent 
land uses, future development opportunities, 
and the larger community. 

65% (multi-year process) 
Actively participate in US74 and I-485 planning 
projects and represent Matthews’ needs 

35% (multi-year process) 
Participate as a member of the CRTPO  CTP 
work group in preparing the information for 
public presentation and for adoption of the new 
long-term document 

90% 
   Participate in other regional and county-wide 
meetings and groups – TCC observer, county 
greenway/parks planning updates, etc. 

NA % - ongoing 
 

Kathi Ingrish  

Long Range Planning Provide information regarding long 
range plans to public officials 

 
   Provide written and verbal reports on various 
development and regulatory topics as may be 
requested by Town Board members 

NA % - ongoing 
 

Kathi Ingrish  

Long Range Planning 
Offer new and emerging 

development concepts to elected 
officials 

   Staff forwards articles of interest to Town 
Board and Planning Board as we find them  

NA % -- ongoing 
Kathi Ingrish, Jay Camp 

Page 2 of 10  



Long Range Planning Create small area plans for key 
geographic areas within the Town 

 
   Complete the E John Street Small Area Plan 
as an appendix to the Land Use Plan, utilizing 
Winthrop U class.   

50% 
   Prepare and conduct tours of locations in 
region that illustrate new/emerging trends, 
if/when elected and/or appointed officials 
choose to do so. 

On hold – no Town Board request to take a 
tour at this time 

Kathi Ingrish, Dillon Lackey – 
small area plan 
Jay Camp -- tours 
 

Long Range Planning Proactively prepare for mass 
transit 

   Staff to review transit opportunities and 
impacts with other Town staff, elected officials 
and others when appropriate. 

NA % - ongoing 
   Staff discuss with zoning applicants whenever 
in vicinity of a station, and incorporate into any 
plan documents during updates 

NA % - ongoing 

 Kathi Ingrish, Jay Camp 

Long Range Planning 
Assist Town Board with regional 

meetings on land use and 
development issues when they 
wish to pursue such sessions 

 
   Identify enhanced connectivity opportunities, 
such as new segments of streets, sidewalks, 
bicycle facilities, and other pathways, which 
could be developed in conjunction with any 
Town or State transportation projects and/or 
private development near municipal boundaries. 

NA % - ongoing 

Kathi Ingrish, Jay Camp 

Page 3 of 10  



 

GOALS STRATEGY 
 

STATUS 
                 (% Complete) 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

(Lead in Bold) 

Current Planning Implement planning goals and  
policies fairly and consistently 

 
   Develop, with other departments, a 
cost/benefit analysis template for new zoning 
cases or development projects, and utilize it 
during rezoning actions 

25 % 
   Incorporate the tax value per acre (Minicozzi) 
approach to new development projects when 
providing background data on rezoning 
applications to Town Board 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Code enforcement actions taken in response 
to complaints  

NA % -- ongoing 
   Write zoning interpretation responses on 
request 

NA % - ongoing 
 

Jay Camp – cost/benefit analysis, 
tax value analysis 
Carlo McKoy – code 
enforcement 
Mary Jo Gollnitz – zoning 
interpretations 
 

Current Planning 

Assist all applicants through the 
development review process (for 

site plan reviews, rezonings, 
Board of Adjustment, and 

Planning Board) 

 
   Consistently involve appropriate Town 
departments and other agencies in review of 
zoning cases and site plan submittals to 
incorporate their comments and concerns about 
public safety 

NA % -- ongoing 

   Assist in preparing zoning applications; speak 
with property owners/representatives about the 
need to revise their now-outdated zoning 
classification and complete all rezoning actions 
for parcels still zoned Conditional and Rural 

70 % (multi-year process) 

   Assist property owners and developers in 
bringing their concepts to Town Board in a Pre-
Development Consultation 

NA % -- ongoing 

  Continue working with Crestdale 
neighborhood, providing information on projects 
that may impact the neighborhood 

NA % -- ongoing 

   Review procedures and revise as necessary 

Jay Camp  – zoning app 
submission and review, and 
predevelopment reviews 
Carlo McKoy – Crestdale 
activities 

Page 4 of 10  



to improve communication and efficiency for all 
parties involved 

NA % -- ongoing 

   Provide technical assistance for Crestdale 
development projects as they may appear to be 
moving into reality: house museum; eco-friendly 
townhomes; local grocery/transitional housing; 
church master plan phases; etc. 

NA % -- ongoing 

Get property owners in Crestdale aware of the 
need to pursue rezoning to eliminate the Special 
Use Permit process so they will sign a zoning 
application to revise the existing CrC 
designation with the new CrC district 

15 % (multi-year process) 

Current Planning 
Ensure accurate and timely 

responses to application 
submissions and to code 
enforcement complaints 

 
   Staff maintains records on all zoning, 
subdivision, site plan, and code complaint 
cases, with dates of receipt/referral, and staff 
response to show compliance with pre-
determined performance measures 

NA % -- ongoing 
* Zoning Application checklist provided to 
applicant w/in 10 days (1 mo cycle) or 15 days 
(2 mo cycle):  

100% /goal is 90% (2 cases requesting 
 change of zoning district/conditions) 

* Subdivision review – sketch or final plat review 
completed w/in 5 days, and preliminary plat 
within 10 days:  

100%/goal is 90% (7 subdivisions) 
* Site Plan review completed within 10 business 
days:  

100%/goal is 90% (11 plans) 
* Sign Permit review completed within 5 
business days : 

95%/goal is 75% (20 permits) 
* Code Enforcement initial inspection w/in 2 
business days  

94% /goal is 90% (190 cases) 
* Code Enforcement initial contact with owner 
w/in 7 business days:  

85% /goal is 95% (74 cases) 
*  Code Enforcement compliance of violations 
within 6 mo:  

Jay Camp – zoning apps 
Mary Jo Gollnitz – subdivision 
and site plan reviews 
Mary Jo Gollnitz, Dillon Lackey 
– sign permit compliance reviews 
Carlo McKoy – code 
enforcement 

Page 5 of 10  



99% /goal is 90% (11 cases remain unresolved 
prior to Dec 2015) 

 
 breakdown of 4th Q case log complaints (190 

total):  17 zoning; 55 signs; 69 tall grass; 41 
public nuisance; 8 junk vehicle 

Current Planning 
Ensure accurate and timely 
processing of document and 

information inquiries 

 
   Staff records inquiries, researches, and 
responds back to caller on status of request 
within 24 hours 

NA % -- ongoing 

Shana Robertson, Mary Jo 
Gollnitz, Jay Camp, Dillon Lackey, 
Kathi Ingrish  

Current Planning 
Continue efforts to maintain and 
enhance the appearance of the 

community 

 
Research and draft new code language on 
telecommunications/wireless equipment and 
facilities 

20 % 
Ongoing sign removal in R-O-Ws; code 
enforcement response to complaints; staff 
discussions with zoning applicants to encourage 
inclusion of conditional notes with design 
standards 

NA % -- ongoing 
Watch and provide input on pending legislation 
that may restrict Town’s abilities, to ensure local 
standards are preserved 

NA % -- ongoing 

Telecommunications text – being 
conducted through Winthrop U 
internship assignment 
Carlo McKoy - code enforcement  
Kathi Ingrish – pending 
legislation 

Current Planning 

Enhance the pro-active 
approach to businesses to 

provide them with information on 
specific code requirements, such 

as signage issues, temporary 
storage, parking location, etc. 
through the use of FAQ pages 

online, on-site visits to new 
businesses when they open, 

flyers, and related actions 

 
At least annually update the zoning application 
schedule flyer showing submission, public 
hearing, and decision dates 

100 % 
Write new zoning text on sign regulations to 
conform to Supreme Court Reed v Gilbert 
decision (content-neutral) 

10% 
Revise the temporary sign flyer to include new 
provisions after post-Reed text amendment 

10 % 

Carlo McKoy – code 
enforcement 
Kathi Ingrish  -- sign text 
amendment 
Shana Robertson – time 
schedule and flyer updates 

Page 6 of 10  



Current Planning 

Identify grant programs that may 
provide funding or technical 

assistance that would improve 
delivery of services or build 
community improvements 

  
  Coordinate completion of CDBG projects: 
Buckley Way and Crestdale Heritage Trail 

75 % 
   Assist neighborhood organization in finding 
technical and/or funding sources to continue 
later phases of Crestdale Heritage Trail project 
(wider trail, geocaching locations, permanent 
signs, etc.) 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Work with Habitat for Humanity affiliate to 
obtain funding through CDBG or HOME 
Consortium for housing rehab and/or new 
construction outside of Crestdale 

NA % - ongoing 
   Coordinate grant administration of PL funds 
for downtown street cross sections and related 
design concepts 

99 % 

Carlo McKoy – CDBG, HOME, 
Crestdale 
Jay Camp – PL funded project 

Current Planning 
Undertake in-house tasks that will 

improve record retention and 
clarify past actions for future users 

   
   Move forward with scanning project 

15 % (multi-year process) 
   Complete/revise/expand as necessary the 
cross index between UDO and previous 
ordinances 

45 % 
   Complete the listing of all past zoning cases 

60 % 

Shana Robertson  
 

Page 7 of 10  



 

GOALS STRATEGY STATUS 
                       (% Complete) 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

(Lead in Bold) 

Employees 
Create a development plan for 
each employee with a focus on 

professional skills training 

   Staff members attend training sessions on 
topics specific to their duties; discuss 
changes/updates to personal professional 
growth during annual performance reviews 

NA % -- ongoing 

Kathi Ingrish 

Employees 
Provide a balanced work 

environment that promotes the 
knowledge and experience of 

employees 

 
  Planners cross-trained on subdivision plan 
reviews and rezoning process; each one taking 
primary responsibility for specific cases 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Jay and Mary Jo cross-trained on Bd of Adjust 
case process and site plan review 

NA % - ongoing 
   Mary Jo and Jay use the County EPM 
program to review submitted plans and to 
digitally sign off approved documents 

NA % -- ongoing 
 GIS Planner Dillon Lackey has been cross 
trained in sign permit reviews, site plan reviews, 
some Board of Adjustment cases 

100% 
Shana Robertson assumed the role of 
Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk in 
April; is being trained on aspects of both roles 

70%   

Jay Camp, Carlo McKoy, Mary 
Jo Gollnitz, Shana Robertson, 
Dillon Lackey 

Employees 

Advocate for competitive 
compensation and benefits 

including incentives for 
certification/educational 

attainment 

   Carlo is department SPC rep and safety 
council rep 

NA % -- ongoing 
Kathi Ingrish, Carlo McKoy 

Employees Participate in employee-driven 
service excellence approach 

 
   Dillon is department rep on the Town-wide 
Service Excellence Team (SET)  

NA % -- ongoing 
Dillon Lackey  

Page 8 of 10  



 

GOALS STRATEGY STATUS 
                       (% Complete) 

RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 

Communications 
Use the Department webpage as 

the primary source for 
disseminating up-to-date 

information 

 
   Respond to app requests, when received, to 
acknowledge what follow-up action is being 
done 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Information on webpage continuously added 
and updated as received 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Request ability to provide direct  electronic 
submission of forms and fees on the Planning 
webpage (not scanned then e-mailed versions) 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Complete new webpage went live in March; 
large number of reference documents have 
been reorganized and moved to new site 

95% 

Shana Robertson 

Communications Continue to represent the Town at 
various inter-agency meetings 

 
   Represent Town at JUTF, CDBG, HOME 
Consortium, CONNECT, PCC, Planning 
Directors’ quarterly meetings, QoL, greenways, 
storm water, EPM update efforts, and similar 
ongoing multijurisdictional groups 

NA % -- ongoing 

Kathi Ingrish, Jay Camp, Carlo 
McKoy, Dillon Lackey, Mary Jo 
Gollnitz 

Communications 

Schedule and hold public input 
and/or Town Board informational 
meetings on specific issues as 

needed 

 
   Provide basic information and background at 
biannual meetings with newly elected officials 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Staff meets weekly to review citizen requests, 
workloads, appointments, etc. 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Staff holds stakeholder/steering committee 
and open public meetings on Small Area Plans, 
and other documents being updated/added, as 
needed 

NA % -- ongoing 

Kathi Ingrish, Jay Camp, Mary 
Jo Gollnitz, Carlo McKoy, Dillon 
Lackey 

Communications 
Develop and utilize a network of 

planning and related professionals 
and practitioners 

  Staff utilizes: ncplan listserve, PAS/APA, AICP, 
NCDDA, NCAZO, ULI, SOG, Co GIS Users’ 
Group, APA’s CPAT, NC League 

NA % -- ongoing 

Kathi Ingrish, Jay Camp, Mary 
Jo Gollnitz, Carlo McKoy, Dillon 
Lackey 

Page 9 of 10  



 

GOALS STRATEGY STATUS 
                (% Complete) 

RESPONSIBILITY 
              (Lead in Bold) 

Resources Identify and maintain resources to 
ensure efficiencies in operations 

 
   Use County EPM programs to review site 
plans, and experiment with using EPM for 
Town-only review processes 

NA % -- ongoing 
 County has re-established EPM review 
committee 

15 % (County project) 
   Seek improved digital/online capabilities, such 
as conducting surveys, offering forms that can 
be completed and sent online, receipt of fees, 
and similar programs, all as part of new website 

NA % -- ongoing 
   Staff tracks use of office supplies such as 
paper and ink/toner; notifies IT dept of operating 
issues with any equipment 

NA % -- ongoing 

Mary Jo Gollnitz -- EPM update 
Shana Robertson, Mary Jo 
Gollnitz, Jay Camp, Kathi Ingrish, 
Carlo McKoy 

Resources 
Maintain and identify necessary 

upgrades to hardware and 
software 

 
   Research GIS-related programs that may be 
useful to better document and illustrate potential 
build-out scenarios, and requests funds at 
budget time if new software or upgrades to 
existing programs is required for ongoing benefit 

NA % -- ongoing 

Dillon Lackey 

Resources Evaluate staffing to provide 
optimum service levels 

   Provide on-going cross-training to all staff 
NA % -- ongoing 

   Utilize student interns and classes at Winthrop 
University and Covenant Day School to provide 
technical assistance when appropriate projects 
are identified 

NA % -- ongoing 

Kathi Ingrish 

Resources 
Develop a budget and 

performance measures that 
support the Town strategic plan 

   Review and request input from all staff at 
budget preparation; provide quarterly updates 
showing performance measurements 

NA % -- ongoing 
Kathi Ingrish 

 

Page 10 of 10  



 

The members of the Matthews Police strive to promote a safe community by preventing crimes and reducing  
the fear of crime, while treating all individuals fairly and with respect. Our members will demonstrate honesty, 
professionalism and integrity while building the partnerships necessary to enhance the safety of our community. 

 
 
 
 

 M A T T H E W S  
  P O L I C E 

 D E P A R T M E N T  

 
 Serving our community with pride... 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Crime & Service Report 
 January – June 2016 

 
 

The purpose of this report is to keep you informed of what is happening within our community. 
For questions or additional information, please visit www.matthewsnc.gov or contact our 

Community Resource Officer at (704) 845-1651 or at communitysafety@matthewspolice.org. 
 
 
 
 

 

http://www.matthewsnc.gov/
mailto:communitysafety@matthewspolice.org


 
 

 2 

FIRST SIX MONTHS 2016 SERVICE REPORT  
 

 

Notes: 3% (733) of our calls for service during this period we considered ‘positive community calls’,  
those being ‘suspicious persons and suspicious vehicle calls; we continue to encourage our public to call 
when they observe things they believe do not look right. The significant decrease in drug arrests resulted 
primarily from the temporary suspension of our Targeted Enforcement Unit due to staffing turnover during 
this period.  
 
 
  

FIRST SIX MONTHS 2016 CRIME REPORT  

 

Notes: While our Burglary rate has increased, it should be noted that only 26 of those were break-ins of 
homes, as compared to the estimated 8,000 ‘single family units’ (residential) units in town. I do believe that 
one major factor in this historically low residential burglary rate is the patrols & services of our Citizens 

Volunteer Corp. We enjoy and look forward to this continued community partnership.  

 
 2016 2015 1-Year Change 

 
Calls For Service 22,228 20,962 + 6% 

 
Collisions Reported 1,028 1,047 - 2% 

 
Citations Issued 1,411 1,638 - 14% 

 
DWI Arrests 49 55 - 11% 

 
Drug Arrests 165 308 - 46% 

 
Total All Arrests 564 693 - 19% 

 
         2016 2015 1-Year Change 

 
Murder 0 1 - 100% 

 
Rape 3 2 + 50% 

 
Robbery 9 9 nc 

 
Aggravated Assaults 10 16 - 38% 

 
Burglary 59 39 + 51% 

 
Larceny 389 280 + 39% 

 
Auto Theft 25 16 + 56% 

 
Arson 4 0 + 400% 

 
Part 1 Offenses (Listed Above) 499 363 + 37% 

Part 2 Offenses  (Not Listed) 1,024 1,024 nc 
 

Total All Crimes 1,523 1,387 + 10% 



Page 2 of 8  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PARKS, RECREATION & CULTURAL RESOURCE DEPARTMENT 
QUARTERLY REPORT 

APRIL - JUNE, 2016 
  

  
 
  
 



Page 4 of 8  

GOALS STRATEGY STATUS RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 

    

Facilities, Parks & Open Space 
 

Evaluate space & facility needs 
to best utilize existing space and 

plan for future use 

Staff and P&R Advisory Committee continue to 
evaluate the existing Master Plan, progress 

made and current needs. 

Corey King,  
Colten Marble 

 

Facilities, Parks & Open Space 
 

Provide rental facilities as a 
community service and 

maximize revenue to help offset 
operational and maintenance 

costs 

Quantity of rentals were lower in CC 
(renovation), although revenue exceeded FY15 
amount collected; Crews Recreation Center 
saw an increase in quantity and revenue 

Colten Marble 
Program Mgr 

Facilities, Parks & Open Space 
 

Implement an operations and 
maintenance plan to ensure the 

proper care and long-term 
health of Department assets 

Crews Recreation Center: anticipating 
additional gym floor repairs in the near future, 
pace of repair needs have increased over the 
past year;  
 
Community Center roof project nearing 
completion 

 

Colten Marble,  
Program Mgr 
Corey King 

Facilities, Parks & Open Space 
 

Continue land acquisition efforts 
in accordance with the Parks & 

Recreation Master Plan 

Continued planning for “dirtway” trail 
construction; P&R advisory committee assisted 
in identifying potential properties for future 
parks 

Corey King 

Facilities, Parks & Open Space 
 

Update and implement the 
Bicycle Plan, Cultural Arts Plan, 

etc. in conjunction with the 
Town’s other master plans 

Met with the Arts and Science; started process 
to evaluate cultural needs, community needs 
and the gaps in service. 
 

Corey King,  
Colten Marble 

 
Facilities, Parks & Open Space 

 
 

Work with Mecklenburg County 
to develop the Regional 

Sportsplex project 

Continuing to work with Mecklenburg County 
on completion of the project, held grand 
opening brainstorm session, joint event and 
other programming discussions  

Corey King 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 8  

 
GOALS 

 
STRATEGY 

 
STATUS 

 
RESPONSIBILITY 

(Lead in Bold) 

Programs and Events 

Identify unmet needs in the 
community and design 

programming to address those 
needs with a focus on special 

populations 

P&R staff continues to utilize participant survey 
results to make improvements to programs and 
add program ideas 

Colten Marble 

Programs and Events 

Research new and improved 
programming ideas by using 
training opportunities, peer 

review, and other benchmarking 
efforts 

 
Staff continues to be creative with program 
planning; >10% of programs in 3rd quarter were 
new or reengineered ideas; added girls 
basketball camp, fashion/modeling classes, 
and various outdoor recreation programs 

Corey King 
Colten Marble 

Programs and Events 

Evaluate and augment the 
Cultural Arts Plan and work with 

cultural arts partners to 
implement expanded 

programming 

 
Continued work with various groups (Matthews 
Artist Guild, Playhouse, etc) to improve cultural 
programming 

Colten Marble 

Programs and Events 

Develop new programming 
through new and existing 

partnerships with groups such 
as Discovery Place, the Light 

Factory, etc. 

 
Partnered with multiple organizations for 
programs/events: Discovery Place, Charlotte 
Fencing Academy, Young Olympians, and 
multiple others.   

Colten Marble,  
Recreation Mgr 

Programs and Events 

Continue to build upon tourism-
based events to provide 

excellent quality of life in the 
community while also supporting 

economic development efforts 

Very successful 2016 Beacfest; continued 
success also for Food Truck Friday; added 
Charlotte Food Fight as an event partner 

Lee Ann Moore 

Programs and Events 
Expand outdoor and indoor 

athletic programming for youth 
and adults 

Parks Manger has enhanced outdoor 
recreation programming; multiple programs 
continued along with new ideas 

Recreation Mgr 
Scott Rawls 

Programs and Events 
Grow summer camp program 
and identify sites for long-term 

expansion 

Summer camps continue great participation 
numbers, >75% capacity filled in summer 
camps overall;  

Colten Marble,  
Recreation Mgr 

Scott Rawls 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



Page 6 of 8  

 
 

GOALS 

 
 

STRATEGY 

 
 

STATUS 

 
 

RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 

Financial Performance 
Create a more effective 

sponsorship model for special 
events 

 
Continue to evaluate sponsorship model, 
Sponsorship efforts for Summer Events 
continued to be successful; restructured 
sponsorship package for Food Truck Friday to 
improve marketability and maximize value for 
sponsors 

Lee Anne Moore 
 

Financial Performance 
Evaluate and update the user 

fee scale to remain competitive 
and charge appropriately 

Currently engaged in user fee analysis / cost 
recovery model design; plan to present findings 
to Town Board. 

Colten Marble,  
Recreation Mgr. 

Corey King 

Financial Performance 

Utilize grant funding 
opportunities and grow 

alternative revenue sources 
through partnerships with area 

schools, the County, Arts & 
Science Council, and other 

agencies 

Department continues efforts to solicit fund via 
alternative sources (monetary and in-kind) 

Corey King,  
Colten Marble 

Financial Performance 

Plan to effectively and efficiently 
utilize tourism funding and bond 
funding (existing and future) to 

meet the needs of the 
Department 

Tourism funds were used to make 
improvements to Stumptown park, Fullwood 
Theater, and McDowell Arts Center  

Corey King 

Financial Performance 

Continue benchmarking, 
performance measurements, 

and cost justification initiatives 
and evaluate cost control 

effectiveness on a periodic basis 

Staff submits benchmarking data on a 
quarterly basis, data used to assist in 
program/operation & decision making 

All Full-time Staff 

Financial Performance 

Utilize technology to address 
needs as identified in the IT 

audit and to support the 
Department’s financial 

performance to cost-effectively 
provide services 

Online registration software working well, 
increase level of information management, 
benchmarking capabilities, and customer 
friendly; continually collecting feedback via 
electronic software 

All Full-Time Staff 



Page 7 of 8  

 
GOALS 

 
STRATEGY 

 
STATUS 

RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 

Employees 
Continually evaluate staffing 
needs and plan for optimum 

service levels 

Additional part-time / seasonal staff added for 
summer programs; reduced staffing levels 
during off peak months; continued use of 
volunteers (key clubs, church groups, etc.) 

Colten Marble,  
Recreation Mgr,  
Lee Anne Moore 

Employees 

Formalize the evaluation system 
for part time temporary staff to 

link performance with 
Department operations 

Template has been created and currently 
being utilized 

Colten Marble,  
Recreation Mgr,  
Lee Anne Moore 

Employees 
Continue education and training 
for all staff and include customer 

service training 

 
Key staff registered to attend employee 
training related to current web based 
registration system, social media utilization, 
trail construction, and many other topics  

All Staff 

Employees 

Provide resources for 
employees such as equipment 

and technology to maximize 
employee performance 

Web based system to conduct playground 
inspections working well; using portable tablets 
to conduct electronic surveys  on-site of 
programs and events, continue to maximize 
“google” functions to better communicate and 
share information 

Corey King 

Communications and 
Marketing 

Develop a comprehensive 
Department communications 

plan that encompasses 
marketing, public relations and 
advertising and integrates with 

the Town-wide branding 

Staff continually develops marketing plans 
specific to department needs, also working 
within town-wide branding. 

Corey King,  
Lee Anne Moore 

 

Communications and 
Marketing 

 Foster partnerships with the 
media to further the 

Department’s marketing needs 

Numerous print media; Radio partners: K104.7, 
107.9; TV: WJZY/WMYT, Fox Charlotte, etc.,  Lee Anne Moore 

Communications and 
Marketing 

Complete the website redesign 
and begin to utilize social media 

for expanded Department 
communications 

Department Website continuously updated to 
ensure accurate information, use of social 
media to promote and celebrate activities 

Colten Marble,  
Recreation Mgr, 

 

GOALS STRATEGY STATUS RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 



Page 8 of 8  

 
 Communications and 

Marketing 

Continue with “grass roots” 
communications such as door 

hangers, flyers, and brochures in 
addition to newer technologies 

and other methods 

Updated parks and facilities brochure (paper) 
in addition to continual monitoring of website to 
manage information updates 

Lee Anne Moore, 
Michelle Savago 

 

Communications and 
Marketing 

Install signage in parks to better 
identify Department facilities and 

enhance the Town’s image 

Installed new signage with park rules, design 
followed the Town’s branding criteria  
 

Corey King 
Scott Rawls 

Communications and 
Marketing 

Build relationships with 
downtown and other businesses 

to provide well-received 
programming and events 

Continuing to work with Downtown Merchants 
Group, attending Red Brick meetings, 
Chamber luncheons/meetings, etc. 

Lee Anne Moore, Corey 
King 

 

Communications and 
Marketing 

Maintain and strengthen 
relationships with groups such 
as the County, schools, Town 

Departments, and other 
agencies 

Continued partnership with Matthews 
Elementary School (movie nights, shared 
parking, meeting space); Director attends 
recognition programs at local  elementary 
schools (Kiwanis Terrific Kids) 

All Full-time Staff 

Customer Service 
Establish Department customer 
service standards and provide 
staff training on a regular basis 

Staff continues to implement the town-wide 
Customer Service initiative. All Staff 

Customer Service 
Continue to improve customer 

service technologies and 
capabilities such as website use, 

online registration, etc. 

Always looking for ways to improve customer 
service; design additional information 
handouts/reference sheets to quickly access or 
disseminate information to customers 
 

Colten Marble 

Customer Service 
Conduct surveys and focus 

groups and follow through with 
action regarding public wants 

and needs 

Continued effort to solicit feedback from 
citizens/participants through surveys and in-
person contact. 

All Full-time Staff 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
QUARTERLY REPORT 

APRIL-JUNE 2016 
 (UPDATES IN BLUE)                 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 

GOALS 

 
 

STRATEGY 

 
 

STATUS 
(% Complete) 

 
 

RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 

Infrastructure 
Develop standard road cross-
sections encompassing bike 

lanes, sidewalks, planting areas, 
and utility strips 

Being done as part of CTP and 
UDO Implementation   

C.J. O'Neill 
Planning Department 

Infrastructure 
Identify innovative methods to 
design, construct, protect, and 

maintain the infrastructure 
system 

2016 Pavement Presentation 
brought to Board. 

C.J. O'Neill 
Susan Habina Woolard 

Infrastructure 
Identify innovative methods to 
design, construct, protect, and 

maintain the infrastructure 
system 

Working with CATS for future 
Silver Line alignment 

Town Board 
Planning Department 

Public Works Department 

Infrastructure 
Identify innovative methods to 
design, construct, protect, and 

maintain the infrastructure 
system 

Designed and constructed new 
community garden 

C.J. O’Neill 
Ralph Ramsaur 

Mark Conley 
Robert Cooper 

Infrastructure 
Include internal and external 

partners in the development of 
the infrastructure system 

1. South Trade Street 
Project underway. 
2. Campus Ridge Road 
Relocation underway. 
3. Matthews-Mint Hill 
Road Superstreet 
complete. 
4. Working to piggyback 
on CDOT resurfacing 
program. 

C.J. O’Neill 

Financial/Administrative 
Performance 

Evaluate equipment, materials, 
and technology for efficiency and 

effectiveness 

New pavement preservation 
products and techniques 
proposed in 2016 Pavement 
Preservation Program. 

C.J. O'Neill 

Page 2 of 5  



 
 

GOALS 

 
 

STRATEGY 

 
 

STATUS 
(% Complete) 

 
 

RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 

Financial/Administrative 
Performance 

Utilize grant funding opportunities 
and alternative revenue sources 

through partnerships 

Using $2M from Erickson to 
leverage TIP funding for 
McKee Section A. Ongoing. 

C.J. O’Neill 

Financial/Administrative 
Performance 

Establish cost-effectiveness 
service benchmarks 

Departmental level SET 
committee has developing 
service level goals. Ongoing. 

C.J. O’Neill 
Division Heads 
SET Committee 

Financial/Administrative 
Performance 

Seek support from NCDOT, 
CDOT, MPO, and others for 
project and planning needs 

County pursuing STP-DA 
funding for South Trade 
Street greenway tunnel and 
path.   
Planning ongoing on 
Independence Boulevard 
Widening and East John 
Street Widening. 
Pursuing possible STP-DA 
funding on McKee Road 
Section A, Trade Street 
Culvert and Downtown 
Streetscape. 

Susan Habina Woolard 

Financial/Administrative 
Performance 

Develop plan for funding future 
facility repairs/replacement 

Report presented to Board in 
September and will be the basis 

for future funding and budget 
requests and plans.  

C.J. O’Neill 
Albert Pierre 

Finance Dept. 

Financial/Administrative 
Performance 

Prepare and implement 
Pavement Degradation Fee 

Degradation Fee implemented as 
of July 1, 2016 

C.J. O’Neill 
Susan Habina Woolard 

Merrie Salvo 

Page 3 of 5  



 
 

GOALS 

 
 

STRATEGY 

 
 

STATUS 
(% Complete) 

 
 

RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 

Financial/Administrative 
Performance 

Prepare and implement new solid 
waste contract 

New solid waste contract 
implemented as of July 1, 2016 

C.J. O’Neill 
Environmental Advisory 

Committee 
Ros Cumming 

Financial/Administrative 
Performance Implement new stormwater fees New stormwater fee structure 

implemented as of July 1, 2016 C.J. O’Neill 

Employees 
Create and implement a training 

curriculum for developing 
employees’ skills 

Taking advantage of ITRE and 
other training opportunities as 
available and funds remain in 

budget. 

Division Heads 

Employees Communicate throughout the 
Department and organization 

Regular meetings are held with 
Division Heads, and monthly 
safety training and general 

meetings with staff.   

C.J. O’Neill 
Division Heads 

Employees Adopt team-building and 
employee recognition programs 

P/W members of Service 
Excellence Team actively 
involved with this activity.  

Division Heads 

Employees Develop a succession plan 

Reorganization completed with 
Board’s adoption of budget and 

classification changes. Hired new 
Town Engineer. 

C.J. O’Neill 

Employees 

Ensure professional employees 
are hired and retained through 

use of compensation, job 
descriptions, performance 

reviews, and organizational 
evaluation 

New performance reviews are 
being used. 

C.J. O’Neill 
Division Heads 

Page 4 of 5  



 
 

GOALS 

 
 

STRATEGY 

 
 

STATUS 
(% Complete) 

 
 

RESPONSIBILITY 
(Lead in Bold) 

Citizen Service Utilize technology to improve 
services to citizens 

I-Matthews in place and items 
are being passed on to P/W 
as they are received.  
Occasionally also receive 
citizen concerns and 
comments through the “See, 
Click and Fix “application run 
by WBTV. Department has 
completed implementing 
“Facility Dude” work order 
tracking system to improve 
service and record keeping.  

C.J. O'Neill 
Wayne Cogdell 

Citizen Service Utilize technology to improve 
services to citizens 

AVL system has been 
installed to provide real-time 
mapping and graphical history 
of street sweeper and snow 
plows. 

C.J. O'Neill 

Citizen Service Maintain positive, responsive 
communications 

Continual. Participating in 
Citizen Service Initiative.  

Rosalind Wooten 
C.J. O’Neill 

All Staff 

Citizen Service Develop a proactive work system 
that enhances service to citizens 

Departmental SET Committee 
has started to plan for this 
activity. 

C.J. O’Neill 

Citizen Service Establish standards to address 
citizen service 

Staff members are continuing 
to work through the Service 
Excellence Project.  

C.J. O’Neill 

 

Page 5 of 5  



Pre Public Hearing Rezoning Staff Analysis  

August 2, 2016 

Project Summary 

Location:   300 Pineville Matthews Road 
 

Owner(s):   Cross and Crown Lutheran Church 

Agent:               Susan Irvin   

 

Current Zoning:  R/I (CD)  

 

Proposed Zoning:  R/I (CD) Change of Conditions 

Existing Use:   Church 

Proposed Use:  Same 

Community Meeting:  July 19, 2016 

 

Summary of Request 

A change of conditions is requested to allow for the placement of a 120’ tall stealth cell tower that 
will be concealed within a bell tower structure. 

 

 

Staff Comment Summary 

The proposed tower addresses cell signal concerns from area residents and is located within a 
stealth structure. Staff considers the bell tower an appropriate design solution for the neighbor-
hood. With the predominate land use along this portion of Highway 51 being residential or institu-
tional, finding appropriate locations for new cell towers is difficult.    

Application: 2016-646  Cross and Crown Church 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Background And History 

Cross and Crown Lutheran Church is located on 8.3 acres and was constructed in 1990. In 2002, 
the site was rezoned from R-15 to R/I (CD) to allow for increases in daily programs and for future 
building expansions. Cell towers were not listed as an allowed use on the site plan.  

 

Details of the Site Plan 

The only change proposed to the site at this time is in the area dedicated to the bell tower on the 
western side of the property. A 35’ x 60’ lease area with a driveway from the church parking lot  is 
proposed. Two parking spaces would be removed. 

In addition to the change of conditions, Council must also approve a 40’ height extension to the 
standard 80’ height allowed in the Residential/Institutional District. 

  

 

Summary of Proposed Conditions 

1. The applicant is still working on development conditions at this time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



 

TOWN OF MATTHEWS UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
  

Page 5 - 117 

 MAXIMUM ANTENNA TOWER HEIGHT (FEET) IN MULTI-FAMILY, MIXED USE AND  

   NONRESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 
 Adjacent to any residential When no residential district is adjacent  
   District zoning district  
 

 Non-stealth Stealth 1 user/2 users/3 users/Trunked Public Safety 
  
 

R-15MF, R-12MF, Not permitted 80* 80*/ 100/ 120/ not permitted                  

SRN, C-MF                        

R/I Not permitted 80*/***   80*/  100 /  120 /  not permitted 

0 50 80* 100*/  120 /  140 /  not permitted 

B-1, B-1SCD, B-D 50 80* 120*/  140 /  160 /  not permitted 

B-H 50 80* 160*/  180 /  200 /  not permitted 

B-3, I-1, MUD, TS, ENT 60 80* 180*/  200 /  220 /  not permitted 

I-2 60 80* 200*/  220 /  240 /  400 ** 

(Ord. 919, passed 4-28-97) 

* Where there are existing nonresidential structures that exceed the above-given height limit (such as 
electric transmission towers), then these structures may also be used for antenna locations.  These limits 
may be increased by twenty feet (20’) for each additional user co-locating on the stealth structure up to 
an additional forty feet (40’), and only when such location will not require the antenna to be lighted. 

**(1)There are no residential zoning districts within one thousand foot (1,000’) radius of the proposed 
tower site. 

     (2) The owner//developer and/or lessee of the proposed tower must possess a license (see Form FCC 574 
or replacement Form FCC 600), to operate a Trunked Public Safety and Special Emergency Radio 
Services system in accordance with FCC Regulations Part 90, Subpart B and C, 90.15 and 90.33 
respectively, and such tower will be used by licensee for the operation of a Trunked Public Safety and 
Special Emergency Radio Services system. 

     (3) Location of non-Public Safety system antennas for co-locators shall not be restricted to two hundred 
forty feet (240’) or less, but such co-location antennas shall be located below the principal Public Safety 
system antennas. 

     (4) The proposed tower is designed to allow co-location by at least two users and applicant for the tower 
provides written documentation that a co-locating provider has/can lease space. 

*** When utilizing a stealth tower, the above given height limits may be increased up to an additional 40’ at 
the time of initial construction.  Photo simulations must be provided.  Said simulations must show all 
exterior edges of the property.  Additional documentation such as coverage maps may also be provided.  
Site plan to be reviewed and approved by Town Board.  (Ord. 1965, passed 9-9-13; Ord. 2025A, passed 6-9-
14) 

4. SPACING.  Towers shall be spaced from each other by the minimum radius as given below: 
  

 TOWER HEIGHT MINIMUM DISTANCE 
 

tower under 80 feet to tower under 80 feet 1,200 feet 

tower under 200 feet to tower under 200 feet 1,800 feet 

tower over 200 feet to tower under 200 feet 2,200 feet 

tower under 200 feet to tower over 200 feet 2,200feet 

tower over 200 feet to tower over 200 feet 2,500 feet 

tower over 240 feet to tower over 240 feet 15,000 feet* 

*This limit may be decreased with approval by the Board of Commissioners. 
(Ord. 919, passed 4-28-97) 

 

jcamp
Highlight

jcamp
Highlight



Planning Staff Review 

 

Outstanding Issues/Planning Staff Comments  

(Please see additional comments in staff memos for more detail) 

 

1. We are working with the applicant to ensure that the conditional notes and list of uses created 
in the 2002 rezoning plan are carried forward.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Consistency with Adopted Plans and Policies and Town Vision Statements 

The Land Use Plan calls for residential and institutional uses along this portion of Highway 51.   

 

Reports from Town Departments and County Agencies 

 

Matthews Police 
No Concerns   

 

Matthews Fire 

No concerns 

Public Works 

No Concerns 

 

Matthews Parks and Recreation 

No Concerns 

 

Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools 

Not Applicable 

 

Town Arborist 

N/A 

PCO Concept Plan Approval Required?  

No 

 

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Impact Analysis 

No impact to Town services is anticipated.  

 

 

 

 

Projected Financial Impact of the Request 

The property is tax exempt. We have not yet determined if the tower structure would be taxed 
separately since it would be owned by the church and operated by a for profit entity.    

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Site Images from Balloon Test on July 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

View From Courtney Lane 

View From Back Parking Lot At Church 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Site Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



APPLICATION FOR CHANGE IN ZONING CLASSIFICATION OR CONDITION, PAGE 4 

 
 

SUMMARY OF THE REZONING PROCESS 
 
 

PETITIONER: Fill in dates for each action below before filing application. Refer to the current Planning Department 
rezoning schedule for correct dates. 

PROPERTY OWNERS: These dates are assumed to be correct at the time of zoning application submittal but are 
subject to revision. Contact the Planning Department (704-847-4411 or email blynd@matthewsnc.gov) for verification. 

 
 

Application submitted to and accepted by the Town of Matthews___________________________________________ 

Town Board of Commissioners formally accepts application and sets Public Hearing date________________________ 

Notices sent via mail to affected/adjacent property owners on or before______________________________________ 

Protest petition filed with Planning Department by 5:00 pm on_____________________________________________ 

Public hearing: petitioner may give explanation of why s/he wishes to have property rezoned and neighboring owners 

 may ask questions and voice opinions on the proposed zoning ________________________________________ 

Town Planning Board reviews petition, information, and comments from the public hearing, then makes a 

 recommendation to the Board of Commissioners on whether to approve or deny the request_________________ 

Town Board of Commissioners approves or denies application_____________________________________________ 

 

 

GENERAL STATUTE 160A-385: CHANGES. 
(a) Zoning ordinances may from time to time be amended, supplemented, changed, modified or repealed. In case, however, of a 

qualified protest against a zoning map amendment, that amendment shall not become effective except by favorable vote of 
three-fourths of all the members of the city council. For the purposes of this subsection, vacant positions on the council and 
members who are excused from voting shall not be considered “members of the council” for calculation of the requisite 
supermajority. To qualify as a protest under this section, the petition must be signed by the owners of either (i) twenty percent 
(20%) or more of the area included in the proposed change or (ii) five percent (5%) of a 100-foot wide buffer extending along 
the entire boundary of each discrete or separate area proposed to be rezoned. A street right of way shall not be considered in 
computing the 100-foot buffer area as long as that street right of way is 100 feet wide or less. When less than an entire parcel of 
land is subject to the proposed zoning map amendment, the 100-foot buffer shall be measured from the property line of that 
parcel. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the city may rely on the county tax listing to determine the “owners” of 
potentially qualifying areas. The foregoing provisions concerning protests shall not be applicable to any amendment which 
initially zones property added to the territorial coverage of the ordinance as a result of annexation or otherwise, or to an 
amendment to an adopted (i) special use district, (ii) conditional use district, or (iii) conditional district if the amendment does not 
change the types of uses that are permitted within the district or increase the approved density for residential development, or 
increase the total approved size of nonresidential development, or reduce the size of any buffers or screening approved for the 
special use district, conditional use district, or conditional district. 

 
(b) Amendments in zoning ordinances shall not be applicable or enforceable without consent of the owner with regard to buildings 

and uses for which either (i) building permits have been issues pursuant to GS 160A-417 prior to the enactment of the 
ordinance making the change or changes so long as the permits remain valid and unexpired pursuant to GS 160A-418 and 
unrevoked pursuant to GS 160A-422 or (ii) a vested right has been established pursuant to GS 160A-385.1 and such vested 
right remains valid and unexpired pursuant to GS 160A-385.1 
 

Application number 
 
 
For office use only 

2016-646 
6-1-2016 

June 1, 2016
June 13, 2016

June 27, 2016
NA

July 11, 2016

July 26, 2016
August 8, 2016

2016-646



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



2016-646 
6-1-2016 



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

MATTHEWS, NC 28105
300 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS ROAD

LUTHERAN CHURCH

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT DIRECTORY

120' BELL TOWER

US-NC-5027

DRAWING INDEX

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

LOCATION MAP:

SITE DATA
JURISDICTION:

ZONING:

TOTAL SITE SIZE:

TOWER NOTES:

BASE INFORMATION:

DEVELOPMENT NAME

OWNER

PARCEL INFO:

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

PLANT LIST

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

MATTHEWS, NC 28105
300 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS ROAD

LUTHERAN CHURCH

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT DIRECTORY

120' BELL TOWER

US-NC-5027

DRAWING INDEX

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

XXXXXX

T

E

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

SITE NAME :

OWNED BY: VERTICAL BRIDGE

WWW.VERICALBRIDGE.COM

TO BE LOCATED HERE
SITE # : TO BE LOCATED HERE

TO BE LOCATED HERE

TELEPHONE: 877-589-6411

SALES@VERTICALBRIDGE.COM

OPERATIONS@VERTICALBRIDGE.COM

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

PLANT LIST

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

MATTHEWS, NC 28105
300 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS ROAD

LUTHERAN CHURCH

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT DIRECTORY

120' BELL TOWER

US-NC-5027

DRAWING INDEX

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

LOCATION MAP:

SITE DATA
JURISDICTION:

ZONING:

TOTAL SITE SIZE:

TOWER NOTES:

BASE INFORMATION:

DEVELOPMENT NAME

OWNER

PARCEL INFO:

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

PLANT LIST

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

MATTHEWS, NC 28105
300 PINEVILLE MATTHEWS ROAD

LUTHERAN CHURCH

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT DIRECTORY

120' BELL TOWER

US-NC-5027

DRAWING INDEX

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

XXXXXX

T

E

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

SITE NAME :

OWNED BY: VERTICAL BRIDGE

WWW.VERICALBRIDGE.COM

TO BE LOCATED HERE
SITE # : TO BE LOCATED HERE

TO BE LOCATED HERE

TELEPHONE: 877-589-6411

SALES@VERTICALBRIDGE.COM

OPERATIONS@VERTICALBRIDGE.COM

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

PLANT LIST

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Drawn:
Designed:

Project Title

Checked:

Date:
Date:
Date:

Engineer Stamp

Drawing Number

Project Number
404-026

Drawing Title

Drawing Scale:

Date:

05/16/16

AS NOTED

M
A

R
IE

TT
A

, G
A

 3
00

62
22

55
 S

E
W

E
LL

 M
IL

L 
R

O
A

D
, S

U
IT

E
 1

30

O
ffi

ce
 #

 (6
78

) 4
44

-4
46

3

F
R

O
M

ZE
R

O
I

OT
N

F
I

I
N

G
Y

srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
New Stamp



Dear Mr. Blodgett, 
  
We are strongly in favor of locating a cell tower at Cross and Crown Lutheran Church.  We live 
in the Elizabeth Place neighborhood, a few blocks from the church, and our cell phone coverage 
is terrible. We have lived here for 10 ½ years and the coverage has never gotten better, probably 
even worse. There are many times when placing or receiving a cell call is not even possible.  We 
live in a time where cell phones are a way of life and a true necessity. 
  
Please support the cell tower at Cross and Crown Lutheran Church so that our area and town can 
be a part of the 21stcentury. 
  
Thank You, 
David and Debra Cox 
604 Swancroft Ln. 
Matthews, NC 28105 
(704) 847-5675 
Elizabeth Place neighborhood 
  
 

tel:%28704%29%20847-5675
srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



1

Vertical Bridge 

Community Meeting Minutes

July 19, 2016

 

The Community Meeting was held on Tuesday, July 19, 2016 at the Cross and Crown Lutheran 
Church.  The following issues were discussed.

1. Property  Values  – Someone  received  a  flyer  stating  that  property  values  are  affected 
when your property is next to a cell tower.  

a. Another neighbor said that he thought property values were affected if you don’t 
have good cell service.  

b. Another  community member  pointed  out  that  the  look  of  this  tower  is  different 
and is more asthetically pleasing with the green color, the cross design and the 
look of a bell tower.  

c. Bells  are  there  but  are  not  operable  to  avoid  ringing  that  can  be  heard  by 
neighbors. 

d. TMobile  Rep  stated  that  access  to  emergency  services  is  a  plus  for  property 
values, too and this is more likely with good cell service.

e. But  good  schools,  good  cell  services  are  key  to  property  values  because  so 
many people work from home.

2.  RF – Someone saw an email link that said radio frequency is dangerous 
a. Wireless is heavily regulated with federal regulations (FCC).
b. Many  things  in  the  house  emit  radio  frequency    TV,  doors  that  open 

automatically, your cell phone, many household  items emit  radio  frequency that 
are nearby on a daily basis.

c. Antennae are 120 feet off the ground and strictly governed by federal regulations.
3. Will you be clearing trees?

a. No plans  to  remove  trees, but some brush around  the disturbed area and may 
need to trim back overhanging limbs.

b. Will add landscaping along bring enclosure at back of site near trees.
c. Lease  agreement  was  very  specific  about  not  removing  trees  or  tree  canopy 

outside disturbed area without permission.
4. Why can’t you do small cell light poles?  Heard about small cell in right of way

a. Need tall tower (macro) sites to cover a large area and then small cells only work 
in a localized area that macro sites can’t cover or where you need more capacity 
(eg, urban).  Small cells are supporting the macro sites and adding capacity.  

5. How to get power? 
a. Access power and telephone easement is in driveway.
b. Will Duke be coming through back properties?  Not with access already through 

right of way.
6. What is Church decides to move out? Can height be expanded?

a. Bob Roth – lease height limits 120’ 
b. 30 year lease
c. Buy out for church

srobertson
New Stamp



2

d. New owner subject to lease terms.
7. Hidden  antennas  in  brick  enclosure?    Just  support  ground  equipment,  not  antennas.   

Enclosure is for safety.
8. Letters that went out?  Within 100’ 
9. What about the children?  

a. Director of preschool spoken with parents and they were delighted.  
b. Daycare next door is in full support of the tower 
c. Other churches and schools have antennas  in structures, bell  towers, steeples, 

etc.
10. Does  it  have  to  be  lit;  below  FAA  threshold  so  no  lights;  if  you  put  an  American  flag 

there, it does.
11. Most sites have a gate? Yes, bricked in with a locked gate 
12. Noise?    Only  in  the  case  of  backup  generators  to  provide  all  service  in  case  of 

emergency.  Generally same as house air conditioner.
13. Would it emit high pitched sound?  No. 

srobertson
New Stamp



The below signatories would like to voice our approval of the new cell tower proposed at Cross and 
Crown Lutheran Church.  Mobile phone reception is widely regarded by residents as abysmal in most of 
the neighborhoods along Sardis Road between highway 51 and Sardis Road North.  This lack of service 
causes problems ranging from lack of 911 services during power outages to reliance on expensive land 
lines and carrier-issued microcells.  Additionally, a plague of makeshift “cell phone lots” has arisen in 
several neighborhoods – Coachman Ridge as a prime example – wherein drivers park at the entrance to 
neighborhoods to avoid having their calls drop.  This causes traffic problems that will eventually result in 
accidents.  Finally, the income from the tower will help Cross and Crown, a respected church in our local 
community.  We ask the board to approve this cell tower permit. 

1. Michael & Jill Billings – Coachman Ridge 
2. Dale Siar – Brackenbury 
3. Rick & Michele Melville – Brackenbury 
4. John Fulton – Coachman Ridge 
5. Catherine & Terry Collins – Sardis Pointe 
6. Jennifer La Brecque – Sardis Pointe 
7. Leslie Paliyenko – Sardis Mill 
8. Pete Duemig – Sardis Forest 
9. Catherine & Brian Bell – High Timbers 
10. Georgeann Holland – Sardis Pointe 
11. Scot & Sherri Willman – Settler’s Landing 
12. Jana Reeve – Devereaux 
13. Alex Williams – Sardis Plantation 
14. Sam Hatcher – Benton Woods 
15. Jeff & Karen Turk – Benton Woods 
16. Phillip & Jolanta Prewitt – Coachman Ridge 
17. Paul & Cheryl Jones – High Timbers 
18. Karen Turk – Benton Woods 
19. Sam & Carol Hatcher – Benton Woods 
20. Ann Duggins – Sardis Plantation 
21. Sue & John Fry – Sardis Pointe 
22. Jennifer and Dan Debe – Coachman Ridge 
23. Maria Richter – Brackenbury 
24. Janice Elliott – Coachman Ridge 
25. LeeAnn Park – Sardis Forest 
26. Jackie & Ben Abernathy – Sardis Plantation 
27. Wendolyn & Grant Gildehaus – Coachman Ridge 
28. Dan & Wendy Jakobovitz – Coachman Ridge 

 

 

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



July 7, 2016 
 
Town of Matthews Planning Board 
232 Matthews Station Street 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
Re: Application no. 2016-646 
 
Dear Planning Board, 
 
When we decided to move to the Charlotte are, we chose Matthews for it’s quite streets, family-friendly 
atmosphere and wonderful sense of place.  We also chose the town because it has great amenities.  
 
Unfortunately, cell-service is not one of those.  Our neighborhood, Coachman Ridge, has horrible cell 
phone reception, as so many neighborhoods along Sardis Road, based on personal accounts from 
residents. Had I realized the extent to which this lack of cell service would impact our daily lives, I may 
have reconsidered our move to Matthews.  
 
I will admit that living near a cell tower, like other public amenities such as water treatment plants or 
landfills, is not ideal, but it is necessary for the well-being of our communities and our families. Since we 
moved to Matthews over a year ago, my family has experienced times when our landline did not work. 
And, because we do not have great cell service, we have been essentially cut off from emergency 
services.  
 
As a mother of a young child, it frightens me that there are times when I cannot call the police, the fire 
department or other emergency services for help because my cell phone does not receive a reliable 
signal. Some may argue that cell signal boosters are an easy way to fix this problem but they are limited 
in the area they cover. A cell phone signal is the last thing residents should have to worry about if they 
are experiencing an emergency.  
 
In addition to issues of personal security, I also support emergency response operations for a power 
company. I am often on-call and must be able to receive emergency communications at all times. This 
has been a challenge with the lack of cell service in our neighborhood and I worry that there may be 
times when I miss an important communication.  
 
The construction of a cell tower would provide the reliable access to telecommunications that is 
necessary to help keep residents safe.  Given the location along a major roadway, the proposed cell 
tower is not incongruous with its surroundings and provides an important community benefit. 
 
I and my family strongly support the construction of this cell tower at Cross and Crown Lutheran Church 
and sincerely hope you will as well. 
 
Respectfully, 
Anne McGovern 
209 Foxlair Ct., Matthews, NC 28105 

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp





 

 

  
 
Deferral Request for 2016-648 Budd Law Project at 352 E. Charles 
 
DATE: August 2, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue 
The applicant is requesting a deferral of the Public Hearing to the September 12 meeting. After 
further evaluation, the applicant has determined that their best course of action at the site will be 
removal of the existing 1947 home and construction of an entirely new office building.   

 
 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
Since the hearing has already been advertised and notices mailed to adjacent owners, Council 
should open and continue the hearing to the September 12th meeting.  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Open Public Hearing for Application 2016-648 and continue to September 12, 2016.     



srobertson
Typewritten Text
R-12

srobertson
Typewritten Text
O (CD)

srobertson
Typewritten Text



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT LOCATION:    352 E CHARLES ST.
MATTHEWS, NC 28105

OWNER(S): PRESSLEY, JUDY L
PRESSLEY, JERRY W
PRESSLEY, LYNN

APPLICANT: LAURA BUDD

CURRENT ZONING: RESIDENTIAL - R-12

PROPOSED ZONING: OFFICE - O (CD)

EXISTING USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED USE: PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

SUMMARY REQUEST

The applicant requests a rezoning of the existing property from Residential - R-12 to Office - O (CD).  An addition
will be constructed on the rear of the existing building and the property will be used as legal offices for the The
Budd Law Group.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CONDITIONSONDITIONS

The existing single family residence is 1,177sf, was built in 1947 and has a shingled roof with a gable at each end.
The existing house has wood siding with a brick base and the new construction will match this architectural style.

The applicant proposes to add an additional 1,350 sf to the rear of the building and redesign the front elevation
with a new covered porch.  The new roof will be redesigned and replaced with the rear addition.

There will be a new 21'-6" concrete access drive to the parking area in the rear of the building.  There will be 6
parking spaces, one of which is handicap accessible.

There will be an ADA compliant ramp on the north side of the building.

EXISTING 1-STORY
RESIDENCE - 1,177 SF

(EXISTING)( )

26
'-7

"

84'-7"

29'-3"

EXISTING SINGLE
CAR DETACHED GARAGE EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

EXISTING SIDEWALK

REAR
PORCH

FRONT
PORCH

SIDE SETBACK: 8'-0"

SIDE SETBACK: 6'-0"

R
E

A
R

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 4
0'

-0
"

M
IN

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 2
0'

-0
"

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 F
R

O
N

T
S

E
TB

A
C

K
: 3

0'
-0

"

EXISTING SITE PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:
1.  EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ARE BASED
ON THE SURVEY PREPARED BY Q.N.
HUNEYCUTT: L-1103 - DATED 9/28/04.

EXISTING SITE PLAN
SCALE: 3

32" = 1'-0"1
RZ-1

The Budd Law Group
Offices
352 E Charles St.
Matthews, NC 28105

Revisions

Project #:

Drawn:
Checked:
Date:

2016.30

No. DateDescription

RS

5/31/16

STUBBS   ARCHITECTURE
richard@stubbsarchitecture.com

407-782-4482

S A

2016-648 
6-1-2016 



PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT LOCATION:    352 E CHARLES ST.
MATTHEWS, NC 28105

OWNER(S): PRESSLEY, JUDY L
PRESSLEY, JERRY W
PRESSLEY, LYNN

APPLICANT: LAURA BUDD

CURRENT ZONING: RESIDENTIAL - R-12

PROPOSED ZONING: OFFICE - O (CD)

EXISTING USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED USE: PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

SUMMARY REQUEST

The applicant requests a rezoning of the existing property from Residential - R-12 to Office - O (CD).  An addition
will be constructed on the rear of the existing building and the property will be used as legal offices for the The
Budd Law Group.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CONDITIONSONDITIONSONDITIONSONDITIONS

The existing single family residence is 1,177sf, was built in 1947 and has a shingled roof with a gable at each end.
The existing house has wood siding with a brick base and the new construction will match this architectural style.

The applicant proposes to add an additional 1,350 sf to the rear of the building and redesign the front elevation
with a new covered porch.  The new roof will be redesigned and replaced with the rear addition.

There will be a new 21'-6" concrete access drive to the parking area in the rear of the building.  There will be 6
parking spaces, one of which is handicap accessible.

There will be an ADA compliant ramp on the north side of the building.

1-STORY
RESIDENCE - 1,177 SF
(EXISTING TO REMAIN)( )

26
'-7

"

84'-7"

8'-0"29'-3"32'-0"

DEMOLISH EXISTING SINGLE
CAR DETACHED GARAGE

NEW 8' FRONT PORCH

REMOVE EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

NEW 1,350 SF ADDITION

CONCRETE ACCESS
DRIVE

6'
-0

"
21

'-6
"

4' WALKWAY

DEMOLISH EXISTINGEE
REAR PORCHR A OR R

1:10 RAMP

 UP 33
RISERSRS

EXISTING SIDEWALK TODD
REMAIN

SIDE SETBACK: 8'-0"

SIDE SETBACK: 6'-0"

R
E

A
R

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 4
0'

-0
"

M
IN

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 2
0'

-0
"

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 F
R

O
N

T
S

E
TB

A
C

K
: 3

0'
-0

"

PROPOSED SITE
PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:
1.  EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ARE BASED
ON THE SURVEY PREPARED BY Q.N.
HUNEYCUTT: L-1103 - DATED 9/28/04.

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 3

32" = 1'-0"1
RZ-2

The Budd Law Group
Offices
352 E Charles St.
Matthews, NC 28105

Revisions

Project #:

Drawn:
Checked:
Date:

2016.30

No. DateDescription

RS

5/31/16

STUBBS   ARCHITECTURE
richard@stubbsarchitecture.com

407-782-4482

S A

2016-648 
6-1-2016 



PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT LOCATION:    352 E CHARLES ST.
MATTHEWS, NC 28105

OWNER(S): PRESSLEY, JUDY L
PRESSLEY, JERRY W
PRESSLEY, LYNN

APPLICANT: LAURA BUDD

CURRENT ZONING: RESIDENTIAL - R-12

PROPOSED ZONING: OFFICE - O (CD)

EXISTING USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED USE: PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

SUMMARY REQUEST

The applicant requests a rezoning of the existing property from Residential - R-12 to Office - O (CD).  An addition
will be constructed on the rear of the existing building and the property will be used as legal offices for the The
Budd Law Group.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CONDITIONS

The existing single family residence is 1,177sf, was built in 1947 and has a shingled roof with a gable at each end.
The existing house has wood siding with a brick base and the new construction will match this architectural style.

The applicant proposes to add an additional 1,350 sf to the rear of the building and redesign the front elevation
with a new covered porch.  The new roof will be redesigned and replaced with the rear addition.

There will be a new 21'-6" concrete access drive to the parking area in the rear of the building.  There will be 6
parking spaces, one of which is handicap accessible.

There will be an ADA compliant ramp on the north side of the building.

EXISTING 1-STORY
RESIDENCE - 1,177 SF

(EXISTING)

26
'-7

"

84'-7"

29'-3"

EXISTING SINGLE
CAR DETACHED GARAGE EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

EXISTING SIDEWALK

REAR
PORCH

FRONT
PORCH

SIDE SETBACK: 8'-0"

SIDE SETBACK: 6'-0"

R
E

A
R

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 4
0'

-0
"

M
IN

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 2
0'

-0
"

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 F
R

O
N

T
S

E
TB

A
C

K
: 3

0'
-0

"

EXISTING SITE PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:
1.  EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ARE BASED
ON THE SURVEY PREPARED BY Q.N.
HUNEYCUTT: L-1103 - DATED 9/28/04.

EXISTING SITE PLAN
SCALE: 3 32" = 1'-0"1

RZ-1

The Budd Law Group

Offices

352 E Charles St.

Matthews, NC 28105

Revisions

Project #:

Drawn:
Checked:
Date:

2016.30

No. DateDescription

RS

5/31/16

STUBBS   ARCHITECTURE

richard@stubbsarchitecture.com

407-782-4482

S A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N40°15'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°15'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N48°07'17"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S48°07'17"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.68'

srobertson
New Stamp



PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT LOCATION:    352 E CHARLES ST.
MATTHEWS, NC 28105

OWNER(S): PRESSLEY, JUDY L
PRESSLEY, JERRY W
PRESSLEY, LYNN

APPLICANT: LAURA BUDD

CURRENT ZONING: RESIDENTIAL - R-12

PROPOSED ZONING: OFFICE - O (CD)

EXISTING USE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

PROPOSED USE: PROFESSIONAL OFFICE

SUMMARY REQUEST

The applicant requests a rezoning of the existing property from Residential - R-12 to Office - O (CD).  An addition
will be constructed on the rear of the existing building and the property will be used as legal offices for the The
Budd Law Group.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CONDITIONS

The existing single family residence is 1,177sf, was built in 1947 and has a shingled roof with a gable at each end.
The existing house has wood siding with a brick base and the new construction will match this architectural style.

The applicant proposes to add an additional 1,350 sf to the rear of the building and redesign the front elevation
with a new covered porch.  The new roof will be redesigned and replaced with the rear addition.

There will be a new 21'-6" concrete access drive to the parking area in the rear of the building.  There will be 6
parking spaces, one of which is handicap accessible.

There will be an ADA compliant ramp on the north side of the building.

1-STORY
RESIDENCE - 1,177 SF
(EXISTING TO REMAIN)

26
'-7

"

84'-7"

8'-0"29'-3"32'-0"

DEMOLISH EXISTING SINGLE
CAR DETACHED GARAGE

NEW 8' FRONT PORCH

REMOVE EXISTING GRAVEL DRIVE

NEW 1,350 SF ADDITION

CONCRETE ACCESS
DRIVE

6'
-0

"
21

'-6
"

4' WALKWAY

DEMOLISH EXISTING

REAR PORCH

1:10 RAMP

 UP 3

RISERS

EXISTING SIDEWALK TO

REMAIN

SIDE SETBACK: 8'-0"

SIDE SETBACK: 6'-0"

R
E

A
R

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 4
0'

-0
"

M
IN

IM
U

M
 F

R
O

N
T

S
E

TB
A

C
K

: 2
0'

-0
"

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 F
R

O
N

T
S

E
TB

A
C

K
: 3

0'
-0

"

PROPOSED SITE
PLAN

GENERAL NOTES:
1.  EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS ARE BASED
ON THE SURVEY PREPARED BY Q.N.
HUNEYCUTT: L-1103 - DATED 9/28/04.

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 3 32" = 1'-0"1

RZ-2

The Budd Law Group

Offices

352 E Charles St.

Matthews, NC 28105

Revisions

Project #:

Drawn:
Checked:
Date:

2016.30

No. DateDescription

RS

5/31/16

STUBBS   ARCHITECTURE

richard@stubbsarchitecture.com

407-782-4482

S A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHARLES ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N40°15'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S40°15'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
250.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N48°07'17"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S48°07'17"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
99.68'

srobertson
New Stamp



 

 

 
 
Agenda Item:  Public Hearing on Motion 2016-2, UDO Text Amendment for Street 

Naming Requirements 
 
DATE: August 2, 2016 
FROM: Mary Jo Gollnitz, Planner 
 
 
Background/Issue: 
With the addition of new streets and realignment of other streets, staff reviewed the current Street Naming requirements 
in the UDO in order to address any forthcoming issues.  

• The original street naming text was adopted in 1975. Minor changes were made in 1998 and is currently in place.  
• The current code revisions are being proposed because of the realignment of the street off of Chaphyn Lane 

exiting the Courtney II neighborhood needing to be named in order to be accepted into the Town’s system. 
• The UDO currently does not allow for duplication of street names. 
• The code’s goal for naming streets is to eliminate possible confusion between street names during an emergency.  
• Planning staff has researched other municipalities within the County for their street naming requirements. All 

have responded that they use Mecklenburg County’s guidelines. 
• Mecklenburg County street naming guidelines are incorporated into the proposed text change. 
• Matthews Police, Public Works, and Fire & EMS Departments have reviewed the proposed text and are 

comfortable with the language change. 
 

 
Proposal/Solution:  

• The street naming text change will align Matthews regulations more closely with Mecklenburg County.  
 
 
   
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Transportation 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Hold public hearing, receive any comments that may be offered, and discuss any further refinements Council would like 
to include or text changes Council wishes to delete. Then forward to Planning Board for discussion, input and 
recommendation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Motion #2016-2 
UDO Text Changes 
 
Existing Text: 
155.405.4.P  General Subdivision Criteria 
 
STREET NAMES. Proposed street names shall not duplicate nor too closely approximate phonetically the name of any 
street within the Town or county. Where proposed streets are extensions of existing streets, the existing names should 
be used, except where a new name can reasonably be used to facilitate the proper street address numbering or to avoid 
further street name duplication. Words shall not be used as part of street names if used in two other locations within the 
county. 
 
Proposed Revision: 
155.405.4.P  General Subdivision Criteria 
 
STREET NAMES:  All proposed street names must be reviewed by Matthews Planning Department, Public Works, 
Police Department, and Fire & EMS Department before being submitted to Mecklenburg County for final approval. A 
proper street name shall include one (1) to three (3) words as the main name and a street type suffix. A proper street 
name may include a directional prefix, and/or “extension” following the street type suffix. Proposed street names shall 
adhere to the following guidelines: do not duplicate nor too closely approximate phonetically the name of any street 
within the Town or county; do not use business names; do not include punctuation; do not use possibly offensive names; 
and do not include directional suffixes. Where proposed streets are extensions of existing streets, or align with an 
existing street, the existing names should be used, except where a new name can reasonably be used to facilitate the 
proper street address numbering or to avoid further street name duplication. Words shall not be used as the first word 
part of a street names if it used in two other locations within the county. The only exception allowed is use of a generic 
label naming a topographic feature or a color, which can be part of multiple street names. 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Text Amendment 
 
DATE: July 5, 2016 
FROM: Mary Jo Gollnitz, Planner  
 
 
Background/Issue: 

• The original street naming text was adopted in 1975. Minor changes were made in 1998 and is currently in place.  
• The current code revisions are being proposed because of the realignment of the street off of Chaphyn Lane 

exiting the Courtney II neighborhood needing to be named in order to be accepted into the Town’s system. 
• The UDO currently does not allow for duplication of street names. 
• The codes goal for naming streets is to eliminate possible confusion between street names during an emergency.  
• Planning staff has researched the other municipalities within the County for their street naming requirements. All 

have responded that they use Mecklenburg County’s guidelines. 
• Mecklenburg County street naming guidelines are incorporated into the proposed text change. 

 
 
 

Proposal/Solution: 
• Hold Public Hearing. 
• Send to Planning Board for discussion, input and recommendation. 

 
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Transportation  
 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
 
Call for Public Hearing on August 8, 2016. 
 



 

 

MOTION    # 2016-2     
 
MOTION TO CHANGE:    x    TEXT 
             DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 

(IF A CHANGE IN DISTRICT BOUNDARIES, LIST PARCEL(S) AFFECTED)   
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARING DATE         8-8-16__                                                         
 
 
 
PROPOSED ACTION 
Text Amendment: 
   1) Revise standards for Street Names at § 155.405.4.P 
  
 
                                                          
 
AFFECTED AND/OR ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS NOTIFIED   NA__    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS INCLUDE    Proposed new text at § 155.405.4.P                 
 
 
 
 
OTHER COMMENTS:   
The original Street Names text was approved in 1975. In 1998 the text was change to add the following 
sentence: “Words shall not be used as part of street names if used in two other locations within the 
county” and “or county” in the sentence regarding duplicate names.  
 
Public Area & Facility Naming/Renaming policy was adopted by the Board 2010.   
 
The 6 other municipalities in Mecklenburg County rely on Mecklenburg County Addressing to validate 
any street naming request. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
 
 
 
 



Motion #2016-2 
UDO Text Changes 
 
Existing Text: 
155.405.4.P  General Subdivision Criteria 
 
STREET NAMES. Proposed street names shall not duplicate nor too closely approximate phonetically the name of any 
street within the Town or county. Where proposed streets are extensions of existing streets, the existing names should 
be used, except where a new name can reasonably be used to facilitate the proper street address numbering or to avoid 
further street name duplication. Words shall not be used as part of street names if used in two other locations within the 
county. 
 
Proposed Revision: 
155.405.4.P  General Subdivision Criteria 
 
STREET NAMES:  All proposed street names must be reviewed by Matthews Planning Department, Public Works, 
Police Department, and Fire & EMS Department before being submitted to Mecklenburg County for final approval. A 
proper street name shall include one (1) to three (3) words as the main name and a street type suffix. A proper street 
name may include a directional prefix, and/or “extension” following the street type suffix. Proposed street names shall 
adhere to the following guidelines: do not duplicate nor too closely approximate phonetically the name of any street 
within the Town or county; do not use business names; do not include punctuation; do not use possibly offensive names; 
and do not include directional suffixes. Where proposed streets are extensions of existing streets, or align with an 
existing street, the existing names should be used, except where a new name can reasonably be used to facilitate the 
proper street address numbering or to avoid further street name duplication. Words shall not be used as the first word 
part of a street names if it used in two other locations within the county. The only exception allowed is use of a generic 
label naming a topographic feature or a color, which can be part of multiple street names. 
 
 



PLANNING BOARD REPORT
ON THEIR MEETING OF

JULY 26, 2016

FOR TOWN BOARD ACTION:

    I. ZONING APPLICATION 2016644 – M Todd, Independence Blvd at Sam Newell Rd next to 
McDonalds, from Conditional to B-1(CD)

Planning Board unanimously (6–0) recommended approval, finding it consistent with the 
Land Use Plan and policies for the area.

  II. ZONING APPLICATION 2016649 – Elizabeth Lane Elementary School, Revise R/I(CD) 
Conditional Notes and Site Plan to Allow More Area for Mobile Classroom Structures

Planning Board recommended denial, on a 3 to 2 vote, finding the request inconsistent with
the Town’s adopted land use policies.

FOR TOWN BOARD INFORMATION:

    I. INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION – Youth Voice Position Goals and Expectations

Planning Board discussed how they might be able to encourage greater participation from 
the Youth Voice representative.

PlBdRpt 7-26-16



MINUTES 
PLANNING BOARD 

TUESDAY, July 26, 2016 
7:00 PM 

HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
 
 
PRESENT:  Chair Steve Lee; Members Barbara Dement, Kress Query, David Wieser, Kerry Lamson, and 

Gregory Lee; Town Attorneys Charles Buckley and Craig Buie; Planning Director Kathi Ingrish, 
Senior Planner Jay Camp, Administrative Assistant/Deputy Town Clerk Shana Robertson. 

 
ABSENT: Member Michael Ham; Youth Voice Carly Newton 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Steve Lee called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm. 
 

 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
Kress Query motioned to approve the minutes of the June 28, 2016 meeting as submitted.  Seconded by Barbara 
Dement and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 
 
ZONING APPLICATION 2016-644 – Todd, Independence Blvd at Sam Newell Rd next to McDonalds, from 
Conditional to B-1(CD) 
 
Senior Planner Jay Camp stated that there had been no changes since the public hearing. Mr. Camp reviewed the 
public hearing and mentioned Town Council suggested uses under the B-1(CD) could be restricted. As proposed 
all businesses within the B-1(CD) table of uses would be permitted.  
 
Chairman Lee asked if this rezoning was Town initiated.  Mr. Camp answered that the Town of Matthews does not 
recognize the Conditional zone within current zoning districts in the Unified Development Ordnance. This change 
in zoning would not just benefit the property owner but the Town of Matthews. 
 
Kerry Lamson asked if the 42 parking spaces that the property holds may influence or impact the uses of potential 
businesses. Mr. Camp stated that it would be a limiting factor as to the category of business use. Mr. Camp stated 
that the town was comfortable with the number of parking spaces for the property. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked regards to access, if property was a leased property from Windsor Square or individual 
ownership. Mr. Camp answered that the ownership was held by an individual but relies on Windsor Square cross 
access as property has no access to a public street. 
 
Mr. Query stated that parking would be controlled by what was in the ordinance for each type of business.  Mr. 
Camp confirmed and added that the new zoning would allow for business to occupy that building until the time 
where Independence widening could affect it. The goal is to make it easier for the property owner to lease the 
space. 
 
Chairman Lee referred back to the withdrawn rezoning of same property for Newks restaurant chain. That showed 
a demand for parking greater than the average use. Chairman Lee questioned that if the proposed B-1(CD) zoning 
was approved, and another demand was made for parking, how that would that be handled. Mr. Camp stated that 
if certain factors were satisfied, there are allowances in the code for shared use parking.  This is currently being 
used with Longhorns located at 9950 E Independence Boulevard.   
 
Mr. Query recommend approval of Zoning Application 2016-644 as the change in zoning will relive a hardship for 
property owners. Seconded by Mrs. Dement and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 26, 2016 

 
 

 2 

ZONING APPLICATION 2016-649 – Elizabeth Lane Elementary School, Revise R/I(CD) Conditional Notes and 
Site Plan to Allow More Area for Mobile Classroom Structures 
  
Mr. Query motioned to recuse Mrs. Dement on Zoning Application 2016-649 as she is an adjoining property owner. 
Seconded by Mr. Lamson and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Mr. Camp stated that there had been no changes since the public hearing and representatives from Charlotte-
Mecklenburg Schools were available to address any concerns. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked for a chronological history of the revisions and the original sunset. Mr. Camp stated that the 
original rezoning for Elizabeth Lane Elementary occurred in 1995. The 1995 plan included a dedicated area for 
mobile classrooms to the east of the main school building. In 2001, CMS requested a change of conditions to enlarge 
the mobile classroom area to allow for 3 new units and to bring two existing units within the mobile classroom 
envelope for a total of up to 17. The approved 2001 change of conditions contained a sunset provision that required 
the units to be removed by July 1, 2002.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked if Elizabeth Lane Elementary was currently non-compliant due to the expired sunset provision. 
Mr. Camp stated that it was difficult to say as satellite imagery shows continuous mobile units at the site since 2001. 
The Town was unaware of the additions or reductions as no notification was given from the school system.  Currently 
there are five units that are outside of the original/current boundary. Mr. Camp continued that the five are currently 
in violation. 
 
Mr. Lamson clarified that the current zoning and conditions are reverted back to those approved in 1995. Mr. Camp 
stated that was correct and it will be up to the Town Board to bring this to compliance. The conditions are not based 
on the number of units but the space where the units are placed. 
 
David Wieser asked where the placement would be of the additional units that are proposed and if that placement 
would be outside the 1995 revised boundary. Mr. Camp presented the site plan to the board and pointed out the 
area of the proposed units.  
 
Chairman Lee clarified that the school system could be creative and stack units to meet the original conditions.   
Gregory Lee asked if other schools in the Matthews area may also be in violation.  Planning Director Kathi Ingrish 
answered that sunset provisions were used at Butler High School based on the number of mobile units unlike the 
area restrictions of Elizabeth Lane. Crown Point is a conditional zoning but no specifics were made on the modular 
units. Matthews Elementary is a straight zoning so there are no limitations.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked if more modular units could fit in the new proposed area than the petitioner was currently 
requesting.  Mr. Camp stated that it does appear that more could fit and that would be something that the Town 
Board could specify in the conditional notes. 
 
Mr. Query asked if the Planning Board could now speak to the petitioner. 
 
Peggy Hey, Executive Director of Facility Planning and Management and Carol Stafford, Chef Operations Officer for 
Charlotte-Mecklenburg School, 3301 Stafford Drive, Charlotte, NC 28208 addressed the Board. Ms. Hey said that 
she did not have any additional information to add but was happy to answer questions the Board may have. 
 
Mr. Query asked if there was a way to make the mobile units more secure in regards to outside access.  Ms. Hey 
stated that the doors stay locked and cameras were in place.  Mr. Query pointed out that the Town Council had 
asked how the units were going to be outfitted to keep the children inside safe. Mr. Query felt that there is a big 
security risk as the modular units are separate from the main building and no one would be watching those cameras 
at all time.  He asked what would prevent a violent crime from happening.  Ms. Stafford stated that Charlotte-
Mecklenburg School currently have over 1,100 active mobile classrooms. No plan is currently in place to put security 
access locks on these units as funding is not available. Mr. Query felt that without proper security in place the mobile 
buildings are vulnerable to attack and did not want to compromise the safety of children. 
 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 26, 2016 

 
 

 3 

Mr. Lamson asked for a description of modular units such as age, unit size, number of windows and doors. Ms. Hey 
responded that most are sourced from other campuses. The units are around 800 square feet and house around 25 
children. Ms. Hey stated that older units can be refurbished and interiors updated. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked about the units on site at Elizabeth Lane Elementary regarding the age and where they are on 
the schedule for updates.  Ms. Hey said that information could be gathered and provided to Mr. Camp. Mr. Lamson 
also asked the age range of students in those modular units. Ms. Hey stated that the class assignments for the 
modular class rooms was at the discretion of the school principal. 
 
Mr. Lamson stated that he did not see any request in the plan for additional restrooms. Ms. Hey said the three units 
being added did not require the addition of another restroom unit.  Mr. Lamson asked then about future years and 
how that might change with the growth of the school. Ms. Stafford replied that they did not know. The Charlotte-
Mecklenburg School Board approved for the upcoming year a student weighted staffing formula that increased 
drastically the number of teachers.  This plan is a large factor in the increase in classrooms.  Ms. Stafford recognized 
this was a long term need.  The district’s need is well above two million dollars. She stated that there is no funding 
now or in the near future for this school. 
 
Mr. Lamson stated that a permanent solution could not be given without a long term goal. Ms. Stafford stated that in 
most areas of the district there are no zoning restrictions on placement of mobile classrooms. 
 
Mr. Wieser asked if any there were any plans to extend the brick and mortar of the school.   Ms. Stafford stated that 
the school is not in the capital needs assessment plan. The current conditions of Elizabeth Lane Elementary did not 
make the list for funding. 
 
Mr. Query asked what the cost of the addition would be compared to the cost of new modular units. Ms. Hey 
answered that the price range of a unit, including furniture, transportation, site work, utilities could cost $70,000 to 
$80,000.  Construction only of brick and mortar ranges from $180-$200 per square foot. Mr. Query stated that his 
major concern is the safety of the children  
 
Chairman Lee asked about the expired sunset clause and if that would be addressed before the hearing date. Ms. 
Hey stated that this is something that she did want to address but was looking for a little feedback and direction from 
the Board regarding the wants and timelines. Chairman Lee stated that the Planning Board’s recommendation to 
the Town Council will be based on the land use. What was in violation will be up to the Council and discussion would 
be documented as to how the Planning Board reached its recommendation.  
 
Mr. Lamson asked about the potential of the land and wanted to have plans addressed in regard to what could be 
done with the space in a three to five year plan. Ms. Safford agreed that a plan was needed to see what the space 
could accommodate and look for a longer term solution. The solution of a brick and mortar addition in this 3 to five 
year planning will not be funded and will not be realistic for Elizabeth Lane Elementary. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked if CMS would study the school needs including: replace/rehab older units, adding security, and 
control access. Ms. Stafford stated that plans would need to be made and logistics in place as these requests would 
take time.  Some could be done during a summer break while other items longer. Ms. Stafford added that another 
possible idea would be to replace a single unit with 10 classroom module.  This could take a year and have to be 
set in place before single units could be moved away.  She added that this may not be a solution as there is not 
enough land for all units, new and old, at once. 
 
Mr. Lamson asked about the surplus land behind the elementary school as well as the neglected maintenance issue. 
Ms. Hey clarified that the ten acres that is listed as surplus are heavily wooded. The property is also not favorable 
due to its far distance from main campus. Ms. Hey added maintenance issues are being addressed after coming to 
her attention. 
 
Mr. Query asked if there was a backup plan in place if the action was denied. Ms. Hey informed the board that art 
and music rooms, and the cafeteria stage would be transformed into traditional classrooms and the Art and Music 
teachers would travel from class to class.  If the other five units are removed class sizes would increase and boundary 
lines would possibly need to be redrawn next school year. 



Planning Board Minutes 
July 26, 2016 

 
 

 4 

 
Mr. Lamson asked what would be a reasonable time for review.  Ms. Hey stated that her team was already working 
on this and should have ideas within a six month time frame. 
 
Chairman Lee stated that he understands the effort and the challenges. 
 
Mr. Lamson added that if the application were conditional with providing a specific set of plans within a specific time 
frame and working with the Town on those goals, approval would be more easily accepted by the Board with a 
sunset provision. Town Attorney, Charlie Buckley, suggested that if the school board does come back with a sunset 
to make the expiration of that application to be after the end of the school year. 
 
Mr. Query made a recommendation for denial of application 2016-649 as it is not consistent with Matthews Land 
Use Plan. Mr. Weiser seconded, and the motion passed with three votes to two. 
 
GOALS AND EXPECTATIONS FOR STUDENT VOICE POSITION 
 
Mr. Wieser motioned to reinstate Mrs. Dement. Seconded by Mr. Query and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Discussion was had regarding the Planning Board’s Youth Voice position. Current Youth Voice member, Carly 
Newton, has asked for a second term. Ms. Ingrish asked the members of the Planning Board how they felt about a 
second term and if they felt there should be more direction.  Ms. Ingrish also inquired what the board might like to 
see from the position. The Board supported allowing youth voice representation to serve a second school year. 
Suggestions were made about adding a second member on staggered year cycles, encouraging personal interest 
projects, and assigning Board members as mentors. 
 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. Query motioned to adjourn. Seconded by Mr. Lee and the motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned 
at 8:26 pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Shana Robertson 
Administrative Assistant/ Deputy Town Clerk 



 

 

  
 
Decision on Application 2016-644, 9601 East Independence 
 
DATE: August 2, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue 
On July 26th, Planning Board unanimously recommended approval of the rezoning request for the 
site. No changes have occurred to the site plan or conditional notes since the Public Hearing.  

 
 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning as it is consistent with Town Policy to rezone parcels 
that are zoned Conditional.  
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Approve rezoning application 2016-644    



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



SAM NEWELL

INDEPENDENCE

20
16

-6
44

20
16

-6
44

96
01

 E
 In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 B

lv
d

04/20/16

Subject Property

1 in = 25 ft

9601 E Independence Boulevard 
 
TAX PARCEL NUMBER    19330312 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES    9601 E Independence Boulevard 
EXISTING ZONING     Conditional 
PROPOSED ZONING    B-1 (CD)  
EXISTING USE     Vacant 
PROPOSED USE     Business 
SITE AREA      1.1 Acres  
MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA    8,500 
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 40 feet 
REQUIRED PARKING:   See note below 
PARKING PROVIDED    42 spaces 
MINIMUM FRONT SETBACK   40 feet 
BUILD-TO LINE     N/A  
MINIMUM SIDE YARD    N/A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD    N/A 
 

1. GENERAL COMMERCIAL USES REQUIRED BICYCLE REQUIRED MOTOR VEHICLE 
  PARKING SPACES PARKING SPACES 
  

General Standard for Nonresidential Uses tbd One (1) space per 250 sq ft GFA 
  unless otherwise listed below 

 
     General Conditions 
 

1. Uses of this property are limited to what is permitted in the B-1 Neighborhood Business 
District. 

 
 ±

srobertson
New Stamp



SAM NEWELL

INDEPENDENCE

20
16

-6
44

20
16

-6
44

96
01

 E
 In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 B

lv
d

04/20/16

Subject Property

1 in = 25 ft

9601 E Independence Boulevard 
 
TAX PARCEL NUMBER    19330312 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES    9601 E Independence Boulevard 
EXISTING ZONING     Conditional 
PROPOSED ZONING    B-1 (CD)  
EXISTING USE     Vacant 
PROPOSED USE     Business 
SITE AREA      1.1 Acres  
MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA    8,500 
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 40 feet 
REQUIRED PARKING:   See note below 
PARKING PROVIDED    42 spaces 
MINIMUM FRONT SETBACK   40 feet 
BUILD-TO LINE     N/A  
MINIMUM SIDE YARD    N/A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD    N/A 
 

1. GENERAL COMMERCIAL USES REQUIRED BICYCLE REQUIRED MOTOR VEHICLE 
  PARKING SPACES PARKING SPACES 
  

General Standard for Nonresidential Uses tbd One (1) space per 250 sq ft GFA 
  unless otherwise listed below 

 
     General Conditions 
 

1. Uses of this property are limited to what is permitted in the B-1 Neighborhood Business 
District. 

 
 ±

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Rezoning Staff Analysis  

July 5, 2016 

Project Summary 

Location:   9601 East Independence Blvd 
 

Owner(s):   Michael and Julia Todd  

Agent:                  

 

Current Zoning:  Conditional 

 

Proposed Zoning:  B-1 (CD)   

Existing Use:   Vacant Commercial Building 

Proposed Use:  Commercial 

Community Meeting:  June 28, 2016 

 

Summary of Request 

The applicant wishes to update the zoning on their property to a current zoning category. No ten-
ants have been identified at this time. Any commercial use allowed in Windsor Square would also 
be allowed at this site.  

 

 

Staff Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning as it is consistent with Town policy to update the zon-
ing on all old Conditionally zoned parcels. Town staff requested the rezoning and has been assist-
ing the property owners as they move through the process.  

Application: 2016-644  9601 E. Independence 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Background And History 

The building was constructed in 1993 as an outparcel of Windsor Square shopping center. Cross 
access easements are in place both to the adjacent McDonalds and to the shopping center prop-
erty behind the building.  

 

Details of the Site Plan 

No changes are proposed to the site. Current plans for the 74 widening and Sam Newell grade 
separation are too preliminary to know how future roadwork may impact the site. Some portions of 
the site are in the transitional right-of-way.  

 

Summary of Proposed Conditions 

1. Maximum of 8,500 square feet of building space.   

2. All uses permitted in the B-1 district are allowed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Outstanding Issues/Planning Staff Comments  

(Please see additional comments in staff memos for more detail) 

 

1. No outstanding issues at this time.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Consistency with Adopted Plans and Policies and Town Vision Statements 

The rezoning is consistent with Town policy to rezone properties zoned conditional. The B-1 
Neighborhood Business District is the most appropriate zoning category for the site as it is located 
within a shopping center. The Land Use Plan recognizes Independence Blvd as a major retail 
destination. Cross access easements ensure access to Independence Blvd, Sam Newell Rd, 
Northeast Parkway, Windsor Crossing and Windsor Square Dr. 

 

Reports from Town Departments and County Agencies 

 

Matthews Police 
No Concerns   

 

Matthews Fire 

No Concerns 

Public Works 

No Concerns 

 

Matthews Parks and Recreation 

No Concerns 

 

Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools 

Not Applicable 

 

Town Arborist 

N/A 

PCO Concept Plan Approval Required?  

No 

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Impact Analysis 

The Town will incur no financial impact due to rezoning of the site. 

 

 

 

 

Projected Financial Impact of the Request 

The property currently generates $3,316 in Matthews property taxes annually.   

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Site Images 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SAM NEWELL

INDEPENDENCE

20
16

-6
44

20
16

-6
44

96
01

 E
 In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 B

lv
d

04/20/16

Subject Property

1 in = 25 ft

9601 E Independence Boulevard 
 
TAX PARCEL NUMBER    19330312 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES    9601 E Independence Boulevard 
EXISTING ZONING     Conditional 
PROPOSED ZONING    B-1 (CD)  
EXISTING USE     Vacant 
PROPOSED USE     Business 
SITE AREA      1.1 Acres  
MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA    8,500 
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT 40 feet 
REQUIRED PARKING:   See note below 
PARKING PROVIDED    42 spaces 
MINIMUM FRONT SETBACK   40 feet 
BUILD-TO LINE     N/A  
MINIMUM SIDE YARD    N/A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD    N/A 
 

1. GENERAL COMMERCIAL USES REQUIRED BICYCLE REQUIRED MOTOR VEHICLE 
  PARKING SPACES PARKING SPACES 
  

General Standard for Nonresidential Uses tbd One (1) space per 250 sq ft GFA 
  unless otherwise listed below 

 
     General Conditions 
 

1. Uses of this property are limited to what is permitted in the B-1 Neighborhood Business 
District. 

 
 ±



 

 

  
 
Decision on Application 2016-649 Elizabeth Lane Mobile Classrooms 
 
 
DATE: August 4, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue 
In a 3-2 vote, Planning Board recommended denial of the change of conditions request for additional 
mobile units at the school. Safety concerns and lack of a plan for brick and mortar buildings to 
replace the mobile units were cited among the major issues with the request.  
 
 
 UPDATE 
 
After the agenda was posted on 8/3, Staff received the attached revised conditional notes from CMS 
on 8/4. The primary change to the notes is the inclusion of a sunset clause and language that 
stipulates when CMS will return to continue discussion about future capital needs at the school. The 
revised notes are attached. At this time, the only issue we see with the notes is the lack of clarity 
regarding which mobiles would potentially be removed after the sunset date and how those units 
relate to the proposed boundaries on the plans.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Continue mobile classroom addition discussion and work with CMS on a resolution that is beneficial 
to all parties. 



Elizabeth Lane Conditional Notes 

Proposed DRAFT as of 8.3.16 for review and comment 

General Provisions 

All development standards established under the Unified Development Ordinance of the Town of 

Matthews for the R/I (CD) district shall be followed in connection with the development. In no event 

shall the setbacks and buffer areas as established by the site plan, be reduced nor may the buildings, 

building expansion or mobile classrooms be constructed outside of the depicted building/parking area 

envelope described on the plan. 

 

Permitted Uses 

The property shall be used as a school facility and all associated ancillary facilities and functions 

including future expansion and mobile classrooms. 

Setbacks 

A 50’ building and parking setback shall be maintained around the entire perimeter of the property, 

except where otherwise noted. 

Buffers 

Buffers shall be provided along the property lines as required by the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Buffer areas of at least 50’ width shall be undisturbed along the southerly property boundary and 100’ in 

width along the easterly property boundary. 

Landscape and Screening 

Screening shall conform to the standards and treatments in the Ordinance 

Parking and Vehicular Access 

Parking/Circulation areas shall generally conform to that depicted by the rezoning plan. All parking and 

circulation shall meet the minimum standards for off street parking as required by the Ordinance. 

Vehicular access shall be confined to the ingress/egress points as shown along Elizabeth Lane.  

Signs 

All signs located on the property will conform with the Ordinance.   

Mobile Classrooms and Restrooms 

Owner can have a maximum of fifteen (15) mobile classrooms and two (2) mobile restroom units within 

the area designated on the site plan. 



Future Review 

Permission for eight mobiles (numbers___) will be sunseted on August 1, 2017 such that the Town will 

need to approve these mobile classrooms being used beyond that date.  Owner shall provide Town with 

an update on or about January 2017 regarding capital needs and planning at Elizabeth Lane ES. 

Vacant Area on Campus 

Owner will hold conversations with Mecklenburg County Parks and Recreation and Town staff to discuss 

opportunities for joint use of the vacant area on campus, with the focus on the area on the  east side of 

the campus. 



 

 

  
 
Decision on Application 2016-649 Elizabeth Lane Mobile Classrooms 
 
DATE: August 2, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue 
In a 3-2 vote, Planning Board recommended denial of the change of conditions request for additional 
mobile units at the school. Safety concerns and lack of a plan for brick and mortar buildings to 
replace the mobile units were cited among the major issues with the request.  
 
Since the Public Hearing, no changes have occurred to the site plan. Attached to this memo are the 
most recent conditional notes from Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools. Although there was discussion 
at the Public Hearing of creating a “sunset clause”, the new conditional notes do not reflect that 
provision at this time.      

 
 
 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Continue mobile classroom addition discussion and work with CMS on a resolution that is beneficial 
to all parties. 



Elizabeth Lane Conditional Notes 

Proposed DRAFT as of 7.27.16 for review and comment 

General Provisions 

All development standards established under the Unified Development Ordinance of the Town of 

Matthews for the R/I (CD) district shall be followed in connection with the development. In no event 

shall the setbacks and buffer areas as established by the site plan, be reduced nor may the buildings, 

building expansion or mobile classrooms be constructed outside of the depicted building/parking area 

envelope described on the plan. 

 

Permitted Uses 

The property shall be used as a school facility and all associated ancillary facilities and functions 

including future expansion and mobile classrooms. 

Setbacks 

A 50’ building and parking setback shall be maintained around the entire perimeter of the property, 

except where otherwise noted. 

Buffers 

Buffers shall be provided along the property lines as required by the Unified Development Ordinance. 

Buffer areas of at least 50’ width shall be undisturbed along the southerly property boundary and 100’ in 

width along the easterly property boundary. 

Landscape and Screening 

Screening shall conform to the standards and treatments in the Ordinance 

Parking and Vehicular Access 

Parking/Circulation areas shall generally conform to that depicted by the rezoning plan. All parking and 

circulation shall meet the minimum standards for off street parking as required by the Ordinance. 

Vehicular access shall be confined to the ingress/egress points as shown along Elizabeth Lane.  

Signs 

All signs located on the property will conform with the Ordinance.   

Mobile Classrooms and Restrooms 

Owner can have a maximum of fifteen (15) mobile classrooms and two (2) mobile restroom units within 

the area designated on the site plan. 



Future Review 

Owner shall review annually beginning March 2017 or as requested with Town staff and elected officials, 

the capital needs and plans for the campus, including but not limited to capital needs and funding, 

student growth, teacher allocations and mobile condition.   

Vacant Area on Campus 

Owner will hold conversations with Mecklenburg County Parks and Recreation and Town staff to discuss 

opportunities for joint use of the vacant area on campus, with the focus on the area on the  east side of 

the campus. 









srobertson
Typewritten Text

srobertson
Typewritten Text

srobertson
Typewritten Text

srobertson
Typewritten Text

srobertson
Typewritten Text
N/A

srobertson
Typewritten Text









srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp









Elizabeth Lane
Change in Zoning Conditions

Community Meeting 
June 30, 2016



Agenda – Community Meeting
June 30, 2016 – Community Meeting

Elizabeth Lane Elementary School
7 p.m.

• Introduction of Team
• Review of Request
This application is being made to revise the building envelope to allow for four (4) 
mobile classrooms that have been existing on campus for several years (believed to 
be since 2001‐2002 school year) and installation of three (3) mobile classrooms for 
the 2016‐2017 school year.  Student population has increased so that additional 
mobile classrooms are needed to accommodate the classroom needs and the 
teacher allocation.  For 2016‐2017, CMS has 50 classroom teachers projected and 
there are only 47 classrooms (mobile (12) and building (35)) available.  

• Questions

2



Schedule

June 30, 2016 – Community Meeting
Elizabeth Lane Elementary School
7 p.m.

July 11, 2016 – Public Hearing
Town of Matthews Town Hall
7 p.m.

July 26, 2016 – Planning Board Meeting
Town of Matthews Town Hall
7 p.m.

August 8, 2016 – Decision
Town of Matthews Town Hall
7 p.m.

3



History/Background

Need:  CMS has installed mobiles on this campus to accommodate student growth 
and teacher allocation in the past and needs to again to accommodate the allotments 
for 2016‐2017 school year.

History:
1995 – Original Zoning
1996 – School Opened
1998 – Installation of 2 Mobile Classrooms
1999 – Installation of 3 Mobile Classrooms and 1 Restroom
2000 – Installation of 1 Mobile Classrooms
2001 – Amendment to Zoning Conditions ‐ approved
2005 – Installation of 5 Mobile Classrooms and 1 Restroom
2016 – Request for Amendment to Zoning Conditions to accommodate the three (3) 
mobiles for the 2016‐2017 school year



5

Site Plan –History of Mobiles

Year 
Installed

Number of 
Mobiles

CMS 
Identifier

1998 2 56, 82

1999 4, 1 
restroom

456, 457, 
458, 515, 
516, 

2000 1 574

2005 5, 1 
restroom

928, 929, 
930, 931, 
932, 986

*2016 (if 
approved)

3



6

2016 Site Plan



7

2016 Site Plan



8

Aerial of Site



9

Questions



1 
 

Continuation of CMS Application 
 
22732177 
Edger Johnson 
102 Umi Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732178 
Frank and Prudence Weaver 
100 Umi Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732179 
John and Jennifer Bradshaw 
101 Umi Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732185 
James and Rebecca Langley 
800 Brightwood Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732162 
Elisa Waldman and Markus Clackum 
3826 Raleigh Street 
Charlotte, NC 28206 
 
22732158 
Roy and Mary Cadenhead 
801 Mansard Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732159 
David Possage 
809 Mansard Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732160 
Erik and Alissa Svenson 
323 Rose Arbor Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732161 
Peter and Traci Blair 
331 Rose Arbor Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703601 
Mark and Judith Methner 
314 Willow Brook Drive 
Matthews, NC 28105 

 
 
22703602 
Benjamin and Lori Ann Clark 
306 Willow Brook Drive 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703603 
Min Chen and Zhaojun Wu 
740 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703604 
John and Deborah Hofland 
732 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703605 
Harry and Deborah Palefsky 
724 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703606 
Mei Yi Lin 
716 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703607 
James and Jacqueline Hunter 
708 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703608 
Vickie Huey-Yi Wang 
700 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703609 
Subramanian and Gomathy Kalyanasundaram 
642 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
 
 
22703610 
Joe and Linda Lee 
636 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703616 
Elizabeth Place Homeowners Association, Inc. 



2 
 

c/o Hawthorne Management 
PO Box 11906 
Charlotte, NC 28220 
 
22703575 
Michael and Jill Donadio 
202 Rosedale Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703576 
Charles and Marion Idol 
201 Rosedale Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703577 
David and Rhonda Styka 
205 Rosedale Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703414 
Sardis Plantation Homeowners Association 
1515 Mockingbird Lane, Suite 414 
Charlotte, NC 28209 
 
22703418 
Amy Howard Andrews 
401 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703419 
Jinbo Lu and Yijun Wu 
407 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703420 
Tanya Keiser and Alex Williams 
413 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
 
22703421 
Edmond and Sarah Stutts 
419 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703422 
Gregory and Tara Johnston 
107 Bowen Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703423 

Gregory Blevins 
108 Bowen Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
 

 

22703424 
Bernard and Judith Bentley 
425 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703425 
Margaret Lynch 
501 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703426 
Terry Taylor 
509 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703427 
Edward and Barbara Dement 
515 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703428 
Shiping Yang and Xiaopeng Liu 
521 Clairview Lane  
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703429 
Lien Bragg 
525 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703430 
Linda and Michael Mott 
522 Clairview Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
21316405 
John and Dolores O’Malley 
8233 Schooner Lane 
Charlotte, NC 28270 
 
21329184 
Richard and Elizabeth Latino 
525 Silversmith Lane 
Charlotte, NC 28270 



3 
 

 
21329183 
Thomas and Allison Purvis 
519 Silversmith Lane 
Charlotte, NC 28270 
 
21329182 
Paul and Janis Canup 
513 Silversmith Lane 
Charlotte, NC 28270 
 
21329181 
Charles and Lydia Mumpower 
507 Silversmith Lane 
Charlotte, NC 28270 
 
21329180 
David and Jenna Barwick 
501 Silversmith Lane 
Charlotte, NC 28270 
 
21329179 
Daniel Cuellar 
6228 Pella Road 
Charlotte, NC 28211 
 
21329178 
Douglas and Sandra Moore 
3519 Mill Pond Road 
Charlotte, NC 28226 
 
21329177 
Christopher and Carolyn Sanders 
437 Silversmith Lane 
Charlotte, NC 28270 
 
21329176 
Bearspaw Holdings LLC 
2938 Wheelock Rd  
Charlotte, NC 28211-3320 
 
21316251 
Asim and Joanne Otey 
601 Conestoga Drive 
Charlotte, NC 28270 
 
22732180 
Charles and Elizabeth Gordon 
113 Umi Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
 

22732184 
Christopher and Emily Porter 
808 Brightwood Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732163 
James and Betsy Lytle 
807 Brightwood Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22732157 
William Winslow and Cynthia Powers 
800 Mansard Court 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703647 
Jordan Vardon and Kerri Knellinger 
317 Willow Brook Drive 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703666 
Hope Watts 
802 Grand Provincial Avenue 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703621 
Zhou Chen and Mingfang Pan 
6812 Beverly Springs Drive 
Charlotte, NC 28270 
 
22703620 
Shailesh and Simakumari Chhatrala 
703 Swancroft Lane 
Charlotte, NC 28105 
 
22703619 
John and Tina Emerson 
641 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703611 
James and Julia Curley 
630 Swancroft Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
22703574 
Robert and Jeanine Jackson 
206 Rosedale Lane 
Matthews, NC 28105 



Pre Public Hearing Rezoning Staff Analysis  

July 6, 2016 

Project Summary 

Location:   121 Elizabeth Lane 
 

Owner(s):   Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools 

Agent:                  

 

Current Zoning:  R/I (CD)  

 

Proposed Zoning:  Same 

Existing Use:   Elementary School 

Proposed Use:  Same 

Community Meeting:  June 30, 2016 

 

Summary of Request 

A change of conditions is requested to install 3 new mobile classrooms as well as remove the 
2002 sunset provision that limited the number of mobile classrooms allowed on the site. 

 

 

Staff Recommendation  

The requested change of conditions allows CMS to provide adequate classroom facilities to serve 
the anticipated student population for the coming year while bringing into compliance 5 units that 
are currently outside the original allowed boundaries for mobile units at the site.  

Application: 2016-649  Elizabeth Ln Elementary 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Background And History 

The original rezoning for Elizabeth Lane Elementary occurred in 1995. The 1995 plan included a 
dedicated area for mobile classrooms to the east of the main school building. In 2001, CMS re-
quested a change of conditions to enlarge the mobile classroom area to allow for 3 new units and 
to bring two existing units within the mobile classroom envelope for a total of up to 17. The ap-
proved 2001 change of conditions contained a sunset provision that required the new units to be 
removed by July 1, 2002. Satellite imagery shows continuous mobile units at the site since 2001 
with as few as 8 but up to 14 at most times.  

 

Details of the Site Plan 

Since the initial rezoning in 1995, mobile units at the site have been regulated not by total number 
but by dedicated areas where they can be located. The new proposed line is large enough to en-
compass the 3 new proposed units. The expansion would not alter the undisturbed buffer and ap-
pears to generally be located within areas currently used for school activities. However, power 
pole relocation and relocation of the fire lane may disturb some of the trees interior to the site. 
Parking for the site exceeds code with 195 spaces provided and only 177 required. These calcu-
lations are based on the additional 3 mobile units.    

 

Summary of Proposed Conditions 

1. Expanded mobile unit envelope 

2. No proposed sunset condition for removal of new mobile units 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Outstanding Issues/Planning Staff Comments  

(Please see additional comments in staff memos for more detail) 

 

1. Pertinent conditional notes from previous rezonings should appear on new rezoning plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Consistency with Adopted Plans and Policies and Town Vision Statements 

The Land Use Plan calls for residential and institutional uses along this portion of Highway 51.   

 

Reports from Town Departments and County Agencies 

 

Matthews Police 
No Concerns   

 

Matthews Fire 

The Fire Department has reviewed the plans and is comfortable with the newly relocated fire lane. 

Public Works 

No Concerns 

 

Matthews Parks and Recreation 

No Concerns 

 

Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools 

Not Applicable 

 

Town Arborist 

N/A 

PCO Concept Plan Approval Required?  

No 

 

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Impact Analysis 

No significant impact is anticipated by the addition of 3 mobile units. 

 

 

 

 

Projected Financial Impact of the Request 

The property is owned by Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools and is tax exempt.  

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Site Images 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Area of Expansion 



20
16

-6
49

 
6-

28
-2

01
6 



 

 

  
 
Decision on Sportsplex Rezoning 
 
DATE: August 2, 2016  
FROM: Jay Camp  
 
Background/Issue 
After the deferral of the decision last month, Town and County Staff met to discuss the conditional 
notes for the site and agreed on new language for both Independence Pointe Parkway as well as 
what uses are allowed at the site. We are comfortable that the language adequately addresses the 
future extension of Independence Pointe Parkway in the area. The revised notes are attached.    

 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Approve rezoning 2016-645     



Conditional Notes (suggested revisions following meeting on 7-20-16) 
Sportsplex  
I-485 at US74  
 
General Provisions:  
The site proposed for rezoning includes Mecklenburg County Tax parcels 215-231-01, 215-231-02, and 
215-081- 15, currently utilizing street addresses of 1601 Tank Town Road, 1585 Tank Town Road, and 
2425 Sports Parkway respectively. All three parcels are currently owned by Mecklenburg County.  
 
The drawings and aerial map of the subject property provided for this rezoning action – SP.01, a sheet 
from the Phase 2 (civil engineering) plan documents, and Site Aerial, showing outline of the property with 
current Phase 1 improvements – along with these notes comprise the details of this zoning request from 
R-20 to ENT.  
 
The Town of Matthews established the ENT zoning district specifically for the Sportsplex site and the 
adjacent mostly-vacant surrounding property with the intention of an entertainment focused neighborhood 
being developed over time. The Sportsplex is an integral anchor use and quality of life incentive for the 
adjacent property as it develops. The Town adopted a Small Area Plan and Development Policies to 
guide further development around the Sportsplex site so it will be compatible and beneficial.  
 
Proposed Use:  
The development and use of the site will be for a public park and recreation facility.  
 
This site has been planned and is currently under development as a County-owned park and recreational 
facility. Completed Phase 1 includes 5 sports fields, associated parking, a playground and picnic area, 
restrooms and amenities. Phase 2 now underway will add 7 additional sports fields with one being a 
“championship field” with seating (stadium), parking, running trails, greenway/multi-use paths, concession 
and restroom facilities, parking, picnicking areas, open fields, and natural areas. A roadway through the 
park site connects the park to Town streets in two directions, and may intersect with Independence Pointe 
Parkway in the future. The site is being developed generally as illustrated on SP.01. Minor modifications 
to layout of the overall park plan may take place during construction that do not substantially alter the 
intended recreational opportunities and preservation of natural features.  
 
To determine whether individual uses, either primary and/or accessory, are allowed, the site shall be 
reviewed in its entirety and include all property owned by Mecklenburg County at the park site. Park and 
recreation uses not listed in the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance, but that as allowed or 
subsequently amended in the ENT District, and that are found in a Mecklenburg County Regional Park 
shall be allowed at the site as outlined below under Future Changes. and are hereby deemed to fall into 
one of three following categories:  

• Athletic or sports fields, ballfields, in a concentration of three or more, and similar outdoor  
physical recreation facility intended for use by teams of participants  
• Community recreation center, fitness/health center, gymnasium, YMCA, and similar use with  
multiple physically involved activities, primarily indoor, can take place concurrently  
• Park and playground, not otherwise listed  

 
Future changes:  
Ongoing repair and maintenance, including replacement of certain materials with alternate materials that 
will provide improved durability and maintenance, is allowed. Converting an artificial turf field to natural 
grass or a natural grass field to artificial turf is allowed. Adding field lighting or pedestrian/parking 
lot/security lighting is allowed when following Matthews outdoor illumination ordinance at 155.609. 
 
Future new or expanded recreational amenities as allowed or subsequently amended in the ENT District 
are allowed as long as required setbacks and similar zoning standards are met, and preserved tree 
canopy is not reduced.  
 



Future expansion of seating at the stadium will be reviewed and approved by the Matthews Board of 
Commissioners as a site plan, using the process at 155.401.5.B. of the Matthews UDO.  
 
Changes or future additions to the park site as allowed or subsequently amended in the ENT District that 
may reduce tree canopy, or will remove then-existing trees (individual or groves, without replacement of 
like caliper at same place) other than due to tree disease, significant decline, or death, as determined by 
a certified arborist, may follow the provisions at 155.401.5 for Administrative Amendment.  
 
Internal Streets:  
Sports Parkway: The internal street being developed as the park facilities are installed, currently known 
as Sports Parkway, will be dedicated to the Town of Matthews as a public street. This dedication will be 
completed prior to Phase 2 of the park site being opened for public use, and will include the portion of the 
street from existing Brigman Road (Town street) to existing Tank Town Road (Town street). At the time of 
Phase 2 plan review, it was determined that the final platting of this street through both the County park 
facility and the strip of land obtained from the Brigman Family to connect the park facility to Brigman 
Road, to be used as a construction access, would be delayed until this was no longer required for major 
park construction purposes.  
 
Independence Pointe Parkway:  The County agrees to continue discussions regarding the future route of 
Independence Pointe Parkway.   Independence Pointe Parkway has been proposed to extend through 
undeveloped/underdeveloped land and across I-485 in the vicinity of the Sportsplex site for many 
years.  The potential for the final alignment to cross into a portion of the Sportsplex site has been known 
throughout the design and development of the park facility.  A specific street alignment has not yet been 
determined although a study is currently underway, with the effort to least impact improved 
properties. Mecklenburg County has worked with the Town of Matthews in its park planning to find a 
suitable revised alignment that would minimize impact to completed park improvements while allowing 
proper connection to the section of the future roadway across I-485, and will continue to discuss possible 
alignments with the Town of Matthews, NCDOT and CRTPO. 
 
 
 
Sportsplex cond notes draft 7-20-16 



srobertson
New Stamp

srobertson
Sticky Note
Unmarked set by srobertson



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



Draft Conditional Notes 
Sportsplex 
I-485 at US74 
 
 
 
General Provisions: 
The site proposed for rezoning includes Mecklenburg County Tax parcels 215-231-01, 215-231-02, and 215-081-
15, currently utilizing street addresses of 1601 Tank Town Road, 1585 Tank Town Road, and 2425 Sports 
Parkway respectively.  All three parcels are currently owned by Mecklenburg County. 
 
The drawings and aerial map of the subject property provided for this rezoning action – SP.01, a sheet from the 
Phase 2 (civil engineering) plan documents, and Site Aerial, showing outline of the property with current Phase 1 
improvements – along with these notes comprise the details of this zoning request from R-20 to ENT. 
 
The Town of Matthews established the ENT zoning district specifically for the Sportsplex site and the adjacent 
mostly-vacant surrounding property with the intention of an entertainment focused neighborhood being developed 
over time.  The Sportsplex is an integral anchor use and quality of life incentive for the adjacent property as it 
develops.  The Town adopted a Small Area Plan and Development Policies to guide further development around 
the Sportsplex site so it will be compatible and beneficial. 
 
 
Proposed Use: 
The development and use of the site will be for a public park and recreation facility. 
 
This site has been planned and is currently under development as a County-owned park and recreational facility.  
Completed Phase 1 includes 5 sports fields, associated parking, a playground and picnic area, restrooms and 
amenities.  Phase 2 now underway will add 7 additional sports fields with one being a “championship field” with 
seating (stadium), parking, running trails, greenway/multi-use paths, concession and restroom facilities, parking, 
picnicking areas, open fields, and natural areas.  A roadway through the park site connects the park to Town 
streets in two directions, and may intersect with Independence Pointe Parkway in the future.  The site is being 
developed generally as illustrated on SP.01.  Minor modifications to layout of the overall park plan may take place 
during construction that do not substantially alter the intended recreational opportunities and preservation of 
natural features.   
 
To determine whether individual uses, either primary and/or accessory, are allowed, the site shall be reviewed in 
its entirety and include all property owned by Mecklenburg County at the park site. Park and recreation uses not 
listed in the Town’s Unified Development Ordinance, but that are found in a Mecklenburg County Regional Park 
shall be allowed at the site and are hereby deemed to fall into one of three following categories: 
 

• Athletic or sports fields, ballfields, in a concentration of three or more, and similar outdoor 
physical recreation facility intended for use by teams of participants 

• Community recreation center, fitness/health center, gymnasium, YMCA, and similar use with 
multiple physically involved activities, primarily indoor, can take place concurrently 

• Park and playground, not otherwise listed 
 
   
Future changes: 
Ongoing repair and maintenance, including replacement of certain materials with alternate materials that will 
provide improved durability and maintenance, is allowed.  Converting an artificial turf field to natural grass or a 
natural grass field to artificial turf is allowed.  Adding field lighting or pedestrian/parking lot/security lighting is 
allowed when following Matthews outdoor illumination ordinance at 155.609. 
 

srobertson
New Stamp



Future new or expanded recreational amenities are allowed as long as required setbacks and similar zoning 
standards are met, and preserved tree canopy is not reduced. 
 
Future expansion of seating at the stadium will be reviewed and approved by the Matthews Board of 
Commissioners as a site plan, using the process at 155.401.5.B. of the Matthews UDO. 
 
Changes or future additions to the park site that may reduce tree canopy, or will remove then-existing trees 
(individual or groves, without replacement of like caliper at same place) other than due to tree disease, significant 
decline, or death, as determined by a certified arborist, may follow the provisions at 155.401.5 for Administrative 
Amendment. 
 
 
 
Internal Streets: 
Sports Parkway: 
The internal street being developed as the park facilities are installed, currently known as Sports Parkway, will be 
dedicated to the Town of Matthews as a public street.  This dedication will be completed prior to Phase 2 of the 
park site being opened for public use, and will include the portion of the street from existing Brigman Road (Town 
street)  to existing Tank Town Road (Town street).  At the time of Phase 2 plan review, it was determined that the 
final platting of this street through both the County park facility and the strip of land obtained from the Brigman 
Family to connect the park facility to Brigman Road, to be used as a construction access, would be delayed until 
this was no longer required for major park construction purposes. 
 
 
Independence Pointe Parkway: 
The County agrees to continue discussions regarding the future route of Independence Pointe Parkway. 
 
 

srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



I-485 INNER
I-485

I-485 OUTER

INDEPENDENCE

CPCC

M
O

O
R

E

TANK TOWN

MARGLY
N

DANNY

CA
M

PU
S 

RI
DG

E

ROYAL COMMONS

RAINBOW RIDGE

M
ATTHEW

S SCHOOL

CHIM
ORE

WINGATE COMMONS

CRESTDALE CROSSING

SP
O

R
TS

HADCO

MERANCAS

ALEXAN
D

ER
 R

ID
G

E

I-485

I-485

I-485

20
16

-6
45

20
16

-6
45

M
ec

kl
en

bu
rg

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
po

rts
pl

ex

05/05/16

Sportsplex 
 
TAX PARCEL NUMBER    215-231-01; 215-231-02; 215-081-15 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES    2425 Sports Parkway, 1585 and 1601 Tank Town Road 
EXISTING ZONING    R-20 
PROPOSED ZONING    ENT (Family Entertainment)  
EXISTING USE     Recreation; Sportsplex  
PROPOSED USE    Recreation; Sportsplex   
SITE AREA     160.16 Acres  
MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA   N/A  
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT                                    60/80 (see note below) 
REQUIRED PARKING:  See note below 
PARKING PROVIDED    See note below 
MINIMUM SETBACK    N/A 
BUILD-TO LINE     N/A  
MINIMUM SIDE YARD    N/A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD    N/A 
TREE CANOPY     35.7% total saved 
 
NOTE: Required minimum side and rear yards must be increased one feet (1') for each foot or fraction of a foot in height over  the given 
maximum when adjacent to a residential district, or one foot (1') for each two feet (2') in height over the given maximum when adjacent 
to all nonresidential districts. 
 

PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
PHASE 1 Required Installed 

Vehicle 100 280 
Bicycle 0 7 
   
PHASE 2   
Vehicle 579 992 
Bicycle 50 56 

 
 

 Mecklenburg County Sportsplex

±1 in = 200 ft
2016-645 
5-5-2016 



I-485 INNER
I-485

I-485 OUTER

INDEPENDENCE

CPCC

M
O

O
R

E

TANK TOWN

MARGLY
N

DANNY

CA
M

PU
S 

RI
DG

E

ROYAL COMMONS

RAINBOW RIDGE

M
ATTHEW

S SCHOOL

CHIM
ORE

WINGATE COMMONS

CRESTDALE CROSSING

SP
O

R
TS

HADCO

MERANCAS

ALEXAN
D

ER
 R

ID
G

E

I-485

I-485

I-485

20
16

-6
45

20
16

-6
45

M
ec

kl
en

bu
rg

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
po

rts
pl

ex

05/05/16

Sportsplex 
 
TAX PARCEL NUMBER    215-231-01; 215-231-02; 215-081-15 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES    2425 Sports Parkway, 1585 and 1601 Tank Town Road 
EXISTING ZONING    R-20 
PROPOSED ZONING    ENT (Family Entertainment)  
EXISTING USE     Recreation; Sportsplex  
PROPOSED USE    Recreation; Sportsplex   
SITE AREA     160.16 Acres  
MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA   N/A  
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT                                    60/80 (see note below) 
REQUIRED PARKING:  See note below 
PARKING PROVIDED    See note below 
MINIMUM SETBACK    N/A 
BUILD-TO LINE     N/A  
MINIMUM SIDE YARD    N/A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD    N/A 
TREE CANOPY     35.7% total saved 
 
NOTE: Required minimum side and rear yards must be increased one feet (1') for each foot or fraction of a foot in height over  the given 
maximum when adjacent to a residential district, or one foot (1') for each two feet (2') in height over the given maximum when adjacent 
to all nonresidential districts. 
 

PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
PHASE 1 Required Installed 

Vehicle 100 280 
Bicycle 0 7 
   
PHASE 2   
Vehicle 579 992 
Bicycle 50 56 

 
 

 Mecklenburg County Sportsplex

±1 in = 200 ft
2016-645 
5-5-2016 



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



srobertson
New Stamp



Pre Public Hearing Rezoning Staff Analysis  

June 6, 2016 

Project Summary 

Location:   2425 Sports Parkway 
 

Owner(s):   Mecklenburg County                                          

Agent:                  

 

Current Zoning:  R-20 

 

Proposed Zoning:  ENT  

Existing Use:   Sportsplex 

Proposed Use:  Same 

Community Meeting:  May 18, 2016 

 

Summary of Request 

The requested rezoning ensures that the Sportsplex is zoned properly and also conforms with 
long term plans for the ENT District  

 

 

Staff Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning as the ENT zoning category was specifically created 
for both the Sportsplex as well as adjacent parcels that are a part of the Entertainment District.  

Application: 2016-645  Sportsplex 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Background And History 

The approximately 160 acre Sportsplex site is located on land once earmarked for a landfill. Once I-485 
was constructed, dividing much of the property, CPCC was constructed on the south side while talks 
turned to discussion about a sports complex for the subject property. Bonds for the Sportsplex were ap-
proved in 2007 with phase 1 opening in 2013.      

Details of the Site Plan 

The zoning plan is based on approved plans for construction of phases 1 and 2 of the Sportsplex. Access 
is provided to the site via the new Sports Parkway that connects Brigman Road to Tank Town Rd.  

 

Summary of Proposed Conditions 

See attached proposed conditions on page 7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Planning Staff Review 

 

Outstanding Issues/Planning Staff Comments  

(Please see additional comments in staff memos for more detail) 

 

1. More detail on the future location of Independence Pointe Parkway should be provided in the 
conditional notes to make clear the fact the this roadway has long been planned to extend 
through the Sportsplex property.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Consistency with Adopted Plans and Policies and Town Vision Statements 

The rezoning is consistent with the adopted Entertainment District Small Area Plan.  

 

 

Reports from Town Departments and County Agencies 

 

Matthews Police 
No Concerns   

 

Matthews Fire 

No Concerns 

Public Works 

No Concerns 

 

Matthews Parks and Recreation 

No Concerns 

 

Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools 

Not Applicable 

 

Town Arborist 

N/A 

 

PCO Concept Plan Approval Required?  

Previously approved 

 

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Impact Analysis 

The property is owned by Mecklenburg County and is tax exempt.  

 

 

 

 

Projected Financial Impact of the Request 

The Sportsplex is a local amenity for area residents while also serving as a destination for local 
and regional sports tournaments. The primary financial benefit to the Town is visitor spending.   

 



Pre Public Hearing Staff Analysis  

 

Site Images 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



I-485 INNER
I-485

I-485 OUTER

INDEPENDENCE

CPCC

M
O

O
R

E

TANK TOWN

MARGLY
N

DANNY

CA
M

PU
S 

RI
DG

E

ROYAL COMMONS

RAINBOW RIDGE

M
ATTHEW

S SCHOOL

CHIM
ORE

WINGATE COMMONS

CRESTDALE CROSSING

SP
O

R
TS

HADCO

MERANCAS

ALEXAN
D

ER
 R

ID
G

E

I-485

I-485

I-485

20
16

-6
45

20
16

-6
45

M
ec

kl
en

bu
rg

 C
ou

nt
y 

S
po

rts
pl

ex

05/05/16

Sportsplex 
 
TAX PARCEL NUMBER    215-231-01; 215-231-02; 215-081-15 
PROPERTY ADDRESSES    2425 Sports Parkway, 1585 and 1601 Tank Town Road 
EXISTING ZONING    R-20 
PROPOSED ZONING    ENT (Family Entertainment)  
EXISTING USE     Recreation; Sportsplex  
PROPOSED USE    Recreation; Sportsplex   
SITE AREA     160.16 Acres  
MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA   N/A  
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT                                    60/80 (see note below) 
REQUIRED PARKING:  See note below 
PARKING PROVIDED    See note below 
MINIMUM SETBACK    N/A 
BUILD-TO LINE     N/A  
MINIMUM SIDE YARD    N/A 
MINIMUM REAR YARD    N/A 
TREE CANOPY     35.7% total saved 
 
NOTE: Required minimum side and rear yards must be increased one feet (1') for each foot or fraction of a foot in height over  the given 
maximum when adjacent to a residential district, or one foot (1') for each two feet (2') in height over the given maximum when adjacent 
to all nonresidential districts. 
 

PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
PHASE 1 Required Installed 

Vehicle 100 280 
Bicycle 0 7 
   
PHASE 2   
Vehicle 579 992 
Bicycle 50 56 

 
 

 Mecklenburg County Sportsplex

±1 in = 200 ft
2016-645 
5-5-2016 



 

 

Agenda Item: Eden Hall Administrative Amendment 
 
DATE: August 2, 2016 
FROM: Mary Jo Gollnitz, Planner  
 
Background/Issue: 

• Rezoning Application 2014-612 for Eden Hall subdivision was approved on July 14, 2014 with several site 
specific conditions. 

• An Administrative Amendment was approved on April 6, 2015 with the following conditions: 
o Use meandering sidewalk similar to existing sidewalk to provide a “pleasurable walking experience”  
o Required replacement of large maturing trees along the cleared area with a minimum 3 ½” caliper (2” is 

UDO minimum) 
• The new developer David Weekley Homes with Pace Development managing site development, initially 

requested at the July 11, 2016 Town Board meeting the following amendments: 
o Moving the brick screening wall at the property line closer to Fullwood Lane approximately 3 to 10ft from 

back of right-of-way. 
o All of the landscape/streetscape would be in the Town’s right-of-way. 
o Developer has stated that they will maintain the landscaping along Fullwood Lane. Because this will now 

be in the town right-of-way, an agreement with the Town will need to be completed in order to clarify 
maintenance responsibility. 

o Applicant depicts the larger minimum caliper tree size that was agreed upon in the Administrative 
Amendment of April 2015. However, with moving the masonry wall closer to the sidewalk, there is 
concern that the proposed Redbuds (once mature in five to ten years) canopy will interfere with 
pedestrian traffic.  

o Staff will verify that the streetscape/landscape plan meets Matthews UDO requirements and sign off on 
proposed plan once all issues are resolved. 

o Revised streetscape plan depicts a revised meandering sidewalk similar to 2015 Administrative 
Amendment. 

• Town Council deferred a decision until August 8. 
 
Since the July 11, 2016 Board meeting, the developer has revised the Administrative Amendment request to include the 
following listed in italic: 

o Moving the brick screening wall approximately 6ft forward from the original amendment on the lots 
west of the entrance (Lots #43-50). Moving the wall forward places it 3’ to 9’ off of property lines in 
this portion of the subdivision.  

o Screening wall to stay in basically same location as approved Administrative Amendment of April 
2015 (2’ to 3’ off of property line) on the east side of entrance and near Marion Dr. 

o Some of the landscape screening will be on public and private property. 
o Developer has stated that they will maintain the landscaping along Fullwood Lane. Since landscaping 

maintenance is normally completed by one provider, an agreement with the Town will need to be 
completed in order to clarify maintenance responsibility. The agreement should include but not limited to: 

• Maintaining a seven and one-half feet (7.5) clearance over sidewalk 
• Proper watering, weeding, fertilizing, mulching, and pruning 
• Removal and replacement of dead or diseased trees and shrubs 
• Mowing of grass on a regular basis 
• Keeping area litter free 

o Applicant commits to 3½” caliper tree size that was agreed upon in the Administrative Amendment of 
April 2015 for street trees generally between sidewalk and curb. Developer will work with staff to ensure 
all landscaping meets UDO requirements and approval of Town Arborist Ralph Ramsaur. 

o Staff will verify that the streetscape/landscape plan meets Matthews UDO requirements and sign off on 
proposed plan once all issues are resolved. 



o Revised streetscape plan depicts a revised meandering sidewalk smoother than the 2015 Administrative 
Amendment. 

o Sidewalk is moved back to the original location, before any construction began, in the closest area 
approx. 20’ from edge of pavement.  
 

The attached plans compares the location of the screening wall of the approved Administrative Amendment from April 
2015 and new revised location submitted July 27, 2016; along with a depiction of the revised meandering sidewalk. 
 
The following chart is provided in order to see side by side comparisons of the condition changes: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Proposal/Solution: 

• Allow for a change in location of the brick wall. 
• Allow the revised road frontage plan to incorporate a new meandering sidewalk.  

 
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life:  #2 Continue pedestrian friendly initiatives and promote alternative means of travel.  #3 Develop and 
expand green initiatives by the Town, assist in informing citizens about a healthy environment, and continue to enhance 
the appearance of the community.   
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Approve, approve with conditions or disapprove the Administrative Amendment request for revised location of brick 
screening wall for Eden Hall. 

Rezoning Condition 
2014-612 

Initial Administrative 
Amendment Request 4/6/15 

Current Administrative 
Amendment Request 

Site plans showed as many 
as possible existing trees to 
remain along Fullwood Ln 

Remove all trees, install trees of 
a minimum of 3.5” caliber, above 
UDO requirements along street 

Install trees of a minimum of 3.5” 
caliber, above UDO requirements 
and meet all other landscape and 
screening requirements 

Site plans noted sidewalk 
along Fullwood Ln to remain 
in place 

Requested removal of sidewalk 
and install a meandering 5’ wide 
sidewalk in same location 

Install a smoother meandering 5’ 
wide sidewalk in same location of 
original sidewalk (approx. 20’ 
from edge of pavement at 
narrowest location) 

Approved plans showed the 
screening wall at the 
property lines for the town 
homes along Fullwood Ln 

Approved plan showed the 
screening wall approx. 3’ to 15’ in 
from property lines 

Proposed screening wall to be 6’ 
closer to the property lines 
towards Fullwood Ln (lots #43-50 
west of entrance). Wall closest to 
Marion Dr and on east side of 
entrance are located within 2’ of 
approved amendment of April 6, 
2015 

Site plans showed existing 
trees remaining in right-of-
way in front of proposed 
screening wall 

Site plan showed removal of 
trees, planting new landscape 
screening all on private property  

Proposed site plan shows some 
of the landscape screening on 
private property and some in 
Town right-of-way. An agreement 
with the Town clarifying 
maintenance may be necessary  





New smoother meandoring sidewalk



 

 

 
Agenda Item: Eden Hall Administrative Amendment 
 
DATE: July 5, 2016 
FROM: Mary Jo Gollnitz, Planner  
 
 
Background/Issue: 

• Zoning for Eden Hall subdivision was approved on July 14, 2014. 
• During subsequent plan review, the site/grading plans called for the removal of all existing vegetation and 

sidewalk along the approximately 980 lineal feet of Fullwood Lane frontage. 
• Because this was a change from approved zoning conditions, the applicant was directed to request an 

Administrative Amendment. 
• The Administrative Amendment was approved on April 6, 2015 with the following conditions: 

o Use meandering sidewalk similar to existing sidewalk to provide a “pleasurable walking experience”  
o Required replacement of large maturing trees along the cleared area with a minimum 3 ½” caliper (2” is 

UDO minimum) 
• The subdivision has since sold to David Weekley Homes with Pace Development managing site development. 
• The current revised streetscape plan depicts a revised meandering sidewalk similar to 2015 Administrative 

Amendment.  
• The new revised streetscape plan moves the brick screening wall at the property line closer to Fullwood Lane 

approximately 3 to 10ft from back of right-of-way. 
• The new streetscape plan increases the private back yards by 3 to 10 ft. 
• The 2015 Administrative Amendment had most of the landscape between the sidewalk and wall on private 

property. The current proposal places all of the landscape/streetscape in the Town’s right-of-way. 
• The developer has stated that they will maintain the landscaping along Fullwood Lane. Because this will now be 

in the town right-of-way, an agreement with the Town will need to be completed in order to clarify maintenance 
responsibility. 

• Applicant depicts the larger minimum caliper tree size that was agreed upon in the Administrative Amendment of 
April 2015. However, with moving the masonry wall closer to the sidewalk, there is concern that the proposed 
Redbuds (once mature in five to ten years) canopy will interfere with pedestrian traffic. There may not be 
adequate space for the long term viability of the trees. Attached is an email correspondence with Town Arborist 
Ralph Ramsaur regarding this issue.  

• Staff will verify that the streetscape/landscape plan meets Matthews UDO requirements and sign off on 
proposed plan once all issues are resolved. 

• Staff consistently does not approve any landscape or hardscape within the sight triangle based on UDO Section 
155.601.13.A which states:  
“Within a sight triangle, and except as provided in § 155.601.13.B below, no structure, sign, plant, shrub, 
tree, berm, fence, wall, mailbox or object of any other kind shall be installed, constructed, set out or 
maintained so as to obstruct cross-visibility at a level between two (2) feet and ten (10) feet above the level 
of the center of the street intersection.”  
The exceptions are for public utilities, fire hydrants, governmental signs and traffic control devices. 

• Approved Administrative Amendment from April 2015 and new proposed plans are attached. 
 
 

Proposal/Solution: 
• Allow for a change in location of the brick wall. 
• Allow the revised road frontage plan to incorporate a new meandering sidewalk.  

 
 



 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life:  #2 Continue pedestrian friendly initiatives and promote alternative means of travel.  #3 Develop and 
expand green initiatives by the Town, assist in informing citizens about a healthy environment, and continue to enhance 
the appearance of the community.   
 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
 
Approve, approve with conditions or disapprove the Administrative Amendment request for new location of brick 
screening wall for Eden Hall. 
 









W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W

I

E
D

E
N

B
R

O
O

K
 D

R
IV

E
(7

5'
 P

U
B

LI
C

 R
/W

)

FULLWOOD LANE
(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W) FULLWOOD LANE

(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)
FULLWOOD LANE

(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)

0'15' 15' 30' 60'

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

D
A

TE
:

D
ES

IG
N

ED
 B

Y
:

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y

:
C

H
EC

KE
D

 B
Y

:
Q

.C
. B

Y
:

SH
EE

T 
#

:

SC
A

LE
:

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

:

ED
EN

 H
A

LL
M

U
LT

I-F
A

M
IL

Y
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
N

D
TE

C
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

 IN
C

.

JA
N

U
A

RY
 3

0,
 2

01
5

10
13

17
2

N
C

 E
ng

. F
ir

m
 L

ic
en

se
: C

-0
65

8

4/
7/

15
 -

 R
EV

IS
ED

 P
ER

 L
U

ES
A

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

04/07/15

R
EV

IS
ED

 F
U

LL
W

O
O

D
 S

T
R

EE
T

SC
A

PE

M
EK

PM
K M
EK

M
EK

1"
=

30
'

EX
-1

.0

LARGE MATURING
TREE, TYP. LARGE MATURING

TREE, TYP.

ORNAMENTAL
TREE, TYP. ORNAMENTAL

TREE, TYP.

LARGE EVERGREEN
SHRUB, TYP. LARGE EVERGREEN

SHRUB, TYP.

LARGE EVERGREEN
SHRUB, TYP.

EVERGREEN ACCENT
SHRUBS, TYP.

EVERGREEN ACCENT
SHRUBS, TYP.

BRICK SCREEN
WALL, TYP.

BRICK SCREEN
WALL, TYP.

BRICK SCREEN
WALL, TYP.

NOTE: ALL PROPOSED VEGETATION SHALL CONFORM WITH THE PLANTING
STANDARDS FOUND IN SECTION 155.606.12 OF THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE.  ALL PROPOSED VEGETATION SHALL BE SELECTED
FROM THE APPROVED TREE AND SHRUB LIST FOUND IN SECTION 155.606.14 OF
THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE.

APPROVED PLAN APRIL 6, 2015







MINUTES 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY, JULY 21, 2016 – 7:00 AM 
JORDAN ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

 
 
PRESENT:  Chairman Paul Jamison; Vice Chairman Tim Jones; Members Adam Brooks, Bev Martin, Roger 

Martin, Chamber Executive Director Kelly Barnhardt (ex-officio); Town Manager Hazen Blodgett, 
Assistant Town Manager Becky Hawke, Town Clerk Lori Canapinno 

 
ABSENT: Members Amy Carr, Russ Gill, Greg Klein, Steve Thomson and Commissioner John Higdon 

(appointed member) 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Zoning Administrator Mary Jo Gollnitz 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Jamison called the meeting to order at 7:06 am. 
 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Mr. Martin rendered an invocation. 
  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Motion by Mr. Martin to approve the minutes of the May 19, 2016 meeting. Seconded by Ms. Martin and 
unanimously approved.  
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
REVIEW EDAC’S MISSION 
 
Vice Chairman Jones discussed the challenges the Committee faces now that there are several organizations 
doing similar work. EDAC has done good work and has completed numerous successful projects but members 
should be thinking about new projects and activities that can continue into the future.  
 
Ms. Martin suggested investigating what types of businesses millennials are interested in. Mr. Brooks discussed 
how to get Matthews to become a destination. Many of EDAC’s previous events have been targeted at business 
people and professionals but perhaps future events should become more along the lines of a community 
conversation. Mr. Blodgett said economic development and community development can be similar. The Town 
offers a lot of events, particularly for younger families and older generations. The demographics are changing and 
the Town is looking into ways to meet the needs of younger people. He noted some of the major attractors that 
drive people into Matthews: events like concerts in the park, First Thursday and Food Truck Friday along with 
locations like the library, hospital, sportsplex and farmers market. 
 
Mr. Brooks said there hasn’t been enough effort to create an infrastructure for a citizen community downtown. The 
downtown residents need to become evangelists of the benefits of living downtown, similar to what Charlotte’s 

 



Economic Development Advisory Committee 
 July 21, 2016 

NoDa had in the 1990s. Mr. Blodgett questioned how that came about – whether the area’s revitalization was 
driven by the city or by its residents.   
 
Mr. Jones said the committee should discuss what land is available in town and what can be done with it. Ms. 
Martin noted that EDAC instituted the successful business façade grant and suggested expanding that to other 
structures to allow for home renovations. This is something that could benefit from a partnership with Lowes or 
Home Depot. Mr. Brooks agreed, saying transitioning neighborhoods need businesses to serve them. Mr. Martin 
suggested reviewing some of the topics discussed at Union County Economic Development meetings to see what 
they’ve been doing.  
 
Ms. Barnhardt noted that some of the items discussed were more community development than pure economic 
development. She suggested the Economic Development Advisory Committee may want to consider changing its 
mission and name to the Community and Economic Development Advisory Committee if this is the type of activity 
it will delve into in the future.  
 
Discussion continued regarding development plans and the Town’s Land Use Plan. This type of discussion may 
be good for a future business summit.  
 
 
NEXT BUSINESS SUMMIT 
 
Possible topics for the next and future summits were discussed, including a discussion of land use, a SWOT 
(strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats) analysis and future development project visioning. Mr. Brooks 
suggested holding a summit with multiple events using concurrent sessions – different topics with economic 
development as the overall theme.  
 
Mr. Martin suggested contacting local developers to give feedback and direction on development in Matthews as 
a whole. That should be done on a one-on-one basis to encourage developers to share their thoughts more 
openly.  
 
A special meeting will be called soon to plan the next summit in detail.  
 
 
NEXT BREAKFAST WITH THE MAYOR 
 
Mr. Jones suggested focusing on one type of business, such as development, real estate or hospitality. Mr. Martin 
cautioned against holding a group meeting for developers, explaining that it would be difficult for several to be 
available at the same time and that many would prefer to discuss issues individually rather than in a group setting. 
There should be separate meetings held with developers outside of the Mayor’s Breakfast program. Mr. Jones 
and Mr. Martin will work together to get a list of developers together and plan out how to approach them. 
 
Discussion on the next Breakfast continued. By consensus the idea of a hospitality-based focus was chosen. 
Those in the restaurant and hotel business could benefit from learning about the possibilities associated with the 
Sportsplex. Ms. Canapinno will work on the list of contacts and. Mr. Blodgett will contact the County to get more 
specific information regarding the Sportsplex.  
 
The plan is to hold the next Breakfast in the fall. Mr. Jones will work with staff and Mayor Taylor to choose the 
date and make more specific plans for the next event.  
 
 
 
 

 
2 

 



Economic Development Advisory Committee 
 July 21, 2016 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
WALK THE COMMUNITY-STYLE SIGNAGE 
 
Zoning Administrator Mary Jo Gollnitz researched this after it was brought up at the last EDAC meeting. The 
actual program suggested last time is a Raleigh-based grassroots effort that incorporates inexpensive, short-term 
signage that directs pedestrians to local destinations by pointing out their location and stating the distance to get 
there.  They are attention-getting and help people become aware of locations they previously walked right by. The 
people involved in this program generally don’t ask for permission first and the signs are relatively low-quality. Ms. 
Gollnitz explained that Matthews does have regulations regarding advertisements and signage and offered 
suggestions on how to incorporate similar signage into Matthews while adhering to the ordinance.  
 
Ms. Gollnitz displayed some possible options, which include using colored bricks or cobbles embedded in 
pathways, stamps embedded into sidewalks and painted lines on roads. These items would have to be generic – 
for example, a coffee cup or soccer ball image could be used but not one with a specific business name printed 
on it. She explained that businesses could also place signage on the interior of their windows.  
 
Paint would be the easiest method to apply and maintain. She suggested the railroad parking lot off North Trade 
Street as a good location to start with. The Planning Department can provide the distance calculations if the 
Committee moves forward with this project.  
 
Mr. Brooks suggested incorporating a digital map that could be made available to businesses electronically to 
supplement the real signage. The digital resource could be a simple PDF with time and distances. It would be 
easy to start collecting information and then deciding if the program should proceed with the signs and/or digital 
map. Mr. Brooks then suggested to a Google Maps-based program to tie in the base map, directory, business 
reviews, etc. It could become a multifunctional tool with a lot of valuable data in it. By consensus it was 
determined that Mr. Brooks will research the process involved in starting this type of Google-based program.  If 
the program proceeds it will be important to work with the Red Brick Partnership on it.  
 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Mr. Blodgett reported on development projects, noting that the Windsor Run groundbreaking recently occurred 
and their sales are ahead of schedule. The conditions relating to this development mean that $3 million will be 
coming to the Town soon for road improvements. $2 million of that will be allocated to McKee Road section A – 
the portion between East John Street and Pleasant Plains Road. Mr. Blodgett also reported that the ACTS 
community addition is proceeding as planned, as is the construction on businesses in North End.  
 
Ms. Barnhardt gave a Chamber update, noting that membership numbers are trending well. She plans on getting 
out into the community more soon. Work on the major fall events is going well. The new title sponsor of the auto 
reunion is Carolinas Healthcare System.  
 
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Mr. Martin noted that the CPCC campus can’t be seen by drivers on 485 due to the thick undergrowth in the tree 
buffer. It would benefit the school from a marketing perspective to make the campus more visible. Mr. Brooks 
explained that the school appreciates the growth as a noise buffer and would be unlikely to agree to cut it. Mr. 
Blodgett noted that the Town seeks to preserve trees and growth and so wouldn’t recommend that the school cut 
it back as suggested.   
 

 
3 

 



Economic Development Advisory Committee 
 July 21, 2016 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Ms. Martin to adjourn. Seconded by Mr. Brooks and unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned at 
8:33 am. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Lori Canapinno 
Town Clerk 

 
4 

 



        

 



  

 



 
 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

JORDAN ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 
JULY 11, 2016 – 5:30 PM 

 
PRESENT: Mayor James Taylor; Mayor Pro Tem John Higdon; Commissioners Chris Melton, Jeff Miller, 

John Urban and Larry Whitley; Town Manager Hazen Blodgett, Assistant Town Manager Becky 
Hawke; Town Clerk Lori Canapinno 

 
ABSENT: Commissioner John Ross 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners met with Buzz Bizzell of Bizzell Design to discuss gateway signs and discuss a 
proposed ordinance to allow alcoholic beverage consumption on public property in certain circumstances.  
   

 
MINUTES 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

JULY 11, 2016 – 7:00 PM 
 
 

PRESENT: Mayor James Taylor; Mayor Pro Tem John Higdon; Commissioners Chris Melton, Jeff Miller, 
John Urban and Larry Whitley; Town Attorney Charles Buckley; Town Manager Hazen Blodgett, 
Town Clerk Lori Canapinno 

 
ABSENT: Commissioner John Ross 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Assistant Town Manager Becky Hawke; Communications Director Jen Thompson; Planning 

and Development Director Kathi Ingrish; Senior Planner Jay Camp; Zoning Administrator Mary Jo 
Gollnitz; Planning Board Chair Steve Lee and Members Barbara Dement, Mike Ham, Kerry 
Lamson, Kress Query and David Weiser 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Mr. Whitley rendered an invocation.  
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Taylor led the audience in the pledge. 
 

1 
 



Board of Commissioners 
July 11, 2016 

Mayor Taylor discussed the American Planning Association award that was recently awarded to the town. The 
award celebrates great main streets and Matthews’ was won for the history, design, use and activities of the 
Trade Street/Matthews Station Street area. He noted that this has become a gathering place and a focal point for 
the community and the town is very proud of it.  
 
  
ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA 
 
None 
 
 
RECESS REGULAR MEETING FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS 
 
Motion by Mr. Melton to recess the regular meeting for public hearings to amend the Unified Development 
Ordinance. The motion was seconded by Mr. Whitley and unanimously approved.  
 
Planning and Development Director Kathi Ingrish introduced members of the Planning Board in attendance: Chair 
Steve Lee, Vice Chair Barbara Dement, Members Mike Ham, Kerry Lamson, Kress Query and David Weiser 
 
 
Zoning Application 2016-644: to change the zoning from Conditional District to B-1(CD) on that certain property 
belonging to Michael and Julia Todd and designated as 9601 East Independence Boulevard and more particularly 
described as Tax Parcel 193-303-12. 
 
Senior Planner Jay Camp reviewed the proposal. A few years ago staff began the process to rezone those 
properties using the now defunct Conditional zoning designation and rezone them into current zoning categories. 
This is one such property at the corner of Highway 74 and Sam Newell Road. This would be a flat rezoning to B-
1(CD) with all uses in the B-1 district permitted and a maximum square footage of 8,500 square feet. There is 
some uncertainty surrounding the plans for a 74 flyover which means that leaving the building as is and having 
the owners fill it with tenants is the best option.  
 
The Land Use Plan calls for sites on 74 to have access to a parallel access system; this site doesn’t have direct 
access to 74 but there are plenty of cross-access easements in place. Planning Board Chair Steve Lee asked 
about the possibility of future access once 74 is converted and Mr. Camp explained that the state is heading 
toward having fewer access points, not more. This conversion will be at least six to eight years away but it’s more 
likely that this location will not have a driveway cut. Planning Board member Mike Ham asked about required 
parking and Mr. Camp explained that the lot would have sufficient spaces for general commercial use but not for 
high intensity use like multiple restaurants.   
 
Mr. Urban asked if the Board could offer suggestions for the deletion of certain uses. Mr. Camp noted that the 
applicant would have to agree but the issue can be discussed.  
 
Mayor Taylor opened the floor to public comment. No one spoke in favor of or opposition to this application. This 
will go to the Planning Board for their meeting on July 26 and come back to the Board of Commissioners on 
August 8.  
 
 
Zoning Application 2016-649: to change the conditions on that certain R/I(CD) zoning district located at 121 
Elizabeth Lane and being property belonging to the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of Education, more commonly 
known as Elizabeth Lane Elementary School, to allow the addition of mobile classrooms to the site and further 
being property designated as Tax Parcel 227-034-91. 

2 
 



Board of Commissioners 
July 11, 2016 

Mayor Taylor noted that Planning Board Vice Chair Barbara Dement is an adjoining property owner. As this 
meeting is jointly held between the Board of Commissioners and the Planning Board, she will have to be excused 
from acting as a Planning Board member in any capacity in regard to this application. Motion from Mr. Higdon to 
excuse Ms. Dement. The motion was seconded by Mr. Urban and unanimously approved. The meeting continued 
without Ms. Dement acting as a member of the Planning Board.  
 
Mr. Camp explained that Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools (CMS) has requested to expand an existing boundary 
line to add three new mobile classrooms to the site. The school property was first rezoned in 1995 and the school 
was built in 1996. The yellow line on the site plan indicates the area dedicated for future mobile classrooms as 
necessary. The plan did not dictate the number. As growth continued the school system proposed a change of 
conditions to expand that mobile classroom area and allow a few more mobile units to be placed on site. The 
request was approved in 2001 to enlarge the mobile classroom area to allow for three new units. This approval 
included a sunset clause which required the new units to be removed by July 1, 2002.  Staff has since learned 
from satellite imagery that there has been between 8 and 14 units on site over the last ten years.  
 
The current request is to add three new mobile units, for a total of 17 on site. Staff became aware that 5 units are 
currently located outside the boundary line, which is a zoning violation. Staff recommends approving the request 
and relocating the fire lane further toward the woods on the side of the site. Some landscaping may need to be 
removed to accommodate the new mobiles.  
 
Mr. Miller asked about the violation of the sunset clause and Mr. Camp explained that some units had been 
removed after the sunset clause date and some others were added. CMS has not been able to indicate when they 
were added.  
 
Peggy Hey, Charlotte Mecklenburg Schools’ Executive Director of Planning and Management, addressed the 
Board. Ms. Hay, who did not work for CMS at the time this activity took place, said she found documentation 
showing that some units were added in 2001 and some in 2005 but doesn’t have anything that refers to town 
approval.  
 
Mr. Melton asked about alternative plans if this application is not approved. Ms. Hey explained that if the 
boundary line isn’t expanded to allow the three new mobile units then CMS would have to shift rooms around 
inside the building. It’s likely that special rooms for art and music would be taken over, leaving the specials 
teachers traveling from room to room. If the sunset provisions are enforced and numerous units had to be 
removed then it would mean a significant impact to the students and CMS would have to come up with a new 
plan. Mr. Melton asked if students would be forced to travel to another school and Ms. Hey said that would be the 
least desirable outcome and all other options would be tried first.  
 
Mr. Higdon asked if CMS had any plans to ever remove the mobile units, calling them unattractive, inferior and a 
substandard place in which to receive an education. He said that by the time 15-18 mobiles are on site CMS 
could probably build a new building for the same price. Ms. Hey said the challenge is to meet the immediate 
needs of the school as well as the capital plan for the next 5-10 years. The Superintendent has been very vocal 
about trying to eliminate the mobile units, and they’re not anyone’s first choice but often are what are needed to 
accommodate growth. Mr. Urban explained that Ms. Hey’s predecessor told the Board that the mobile units would 
be there only temporarily while CMS worked on a ten year plan. CMS is putting approximately $75,000 into each 
of these units when they could be putting that money into a permanent structure. The photos shown of the units 
show that it doesn’t look like they offer a good educational environment and it’s frustrating to keep getting 
requests for more mobile units.  
 
Mayor Taylor said he thinks there should be a temporary solution granted to deal with the capacity issues at 
Elizabeth Lane Elementary School, saying it’s a wonderful school with a great educational environment no matter 
where the children are. However, this Board had instituted similar sunset provisions on units at Butler High School 
which required CMS to come back every year to justify why that time needed to be extended. Butler now has its 

3 
 



Board of Commissioners 
July 11, 2016 

900 wing that is likely due to this – the mobile units would still be there today if not for the actions of the Matthews 
Board. The Elizabeth Lane Elementary School situation goes back to 2001 so there is nothing temporary about it. 
The school board and county commission need to realize that the brick and mortar structure needs to be 
expanded. 
 
The Mayor continued: there are two issues to deal with: the violation of the sunset clause and the expansion of 
the boundary line. There are some units inside the footprint, some outside the envelope because of the sunset 
clause and three additional units being requested. He said there is an argument to expand the building envelope 
but he would advocate for a sunset provision on the mobile units. 
 
Planning Board member Kress Query asked if there was any thought about moving students to Crown Point 
Elementary. Ms. Hey said neither she nor the team has looked at that as an option. Mr. Query asked about long 
range plans and Ms. Hey said that there is no plan to expand Elizabeth Lane Elementary in the first billion dollars 
of CMS’ capital plan. Mr. Query asked when the mobile units would be removed if there was no sunset clause and 
Ms. Hey said that was unknown; they couldn’t be removed if there were students in them who need to be 
educated. Mayor Taylor commented that relocating current students is not the desire of anyone at this point; the 
objective is to find the appropriate educational setting for the students in that zone in the long term.  
 
Mr. Camp clarified that there are currently five units sitting outside the original boundary and the request is for 
three more.  
 
Mr. Urban spoke about the surplus property on the campus that CMS is seeking to sell, asking if it could be used 
in a way to benefit the students and the community.  
 
Mayor Taylor opened the floor to public comment. Barbara Dement, 515 Clairview Lane, Matthews, spoke as a 
resident and not as a member of the Planning Board. She explained that she had been educated in the CMS 
system and supports it any way she can, but said that it’s important for CMS to be a good steward of the land and 
to be a good neighbor. The current condition of the land makes it difficult for her to support this application. The 
surplus land mentioned previously was purchased for buffer space and to allow for growth and expansion, but it 
was declared surplus last year and now CMS wants to shoehorn more mobile classrooms into the back of the 
property. The current units are in disrepair and are located near thick woods and undergrowth with no security. 
Children need to be in an access-controlled environment.  
 
Ms. Hey noted that staff from CMS is scheduled to walk the site and examine the units tomorrow, and any 
maintenance issues will be resolved. 
 
Mayor Taylor explained that this application will be heard by the Planning Board on July 26 and come back to the 
Board of Commissioners on August 8.  
 
Motion by Mr. Urban to readmit Ms. Dement as an active Member of the Planning Board. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Higdon and unanimously approved. Ms. Dement rejoined the joint meeting as an active Planning 
Board member.  
 
 
RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING 
 
Motion by Mr. Higdon to reconvene the regular meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr. Urban and 
unanimously approved.  
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NAMING NEWLY CONSTRUCTED ROAD BETWEEN EAST JOHN STREET 
AND CAMPUS RIDGE ROAD AS MCKEE ROAD 

4 
 



Board of Commissioners 
July 11, 2016 

Ms. Ingrish explained that notices were sent to adjacent and nearby property owners. Only one existing address 
would be changed. The three owners who responded indicated that the change is acceptable and they support 
the change to McKee Road. Only one question was raised regarding the name stopping at what is now the right 
angle turn so that Campus Ridge Road continues without interruption, or if McKee Road should go from East 
John Street through to the railroad tracks. That area will eventually become McKee Road but in the interim it will 
create a disconnect from one piece of Campus Ridge Road to the other. Neither option is obviously better than 
the other at this time. Once changed the street addresses for each section of McKee Road will be in different 
ranges to help differentiate the sections for property owners and emergency service responders.  
 
Mayor Taylor invited the public to comment on this potential name change. No one spoke in favor or against the 
proposal.  
 
 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS 
 
 
REPORT FROM PLANNING BOARD 
 
Planning Board Chair Steve Lee presented the report (Exhibit #1 hereby referenced and made a part of these 
minutes). 
 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING RELATED ACTIONS 
 
2016-645/Sportsplex: To change the zoning from R-20 to ENT District on that certain property commonly referred 
to as the Sportsplex and being designated as 2425 Sports Parkway, 1601 and 1585 Tank Town Road, and further 
identified as tax parcels 215-081- 15, 215-231-01 and -02 
 
Mayor Taylor noted that some issues arose between the Town and County regarding specific verbiage. The 
attorneys are meeting to discuss the issue so this application will have to be deferred until it’s resolved.  
 
Motion by Mr. Melton to defer to August 8, 2016. The motion was seconded by Mr. Urban and unanimously 
approved.  
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENT: EDEN HALL 
 
Mayor Taylor noted this is the second such request received regarding this site. Zoning Administrator Mary Jo 
Gollnitz explained that the first Administrative Amendment was requested in 2015 by the then owner. This current 
request is being brought forward by the current applicant, who purchased the land from the original petitioner. 
David Weekly Homes now owns the land and Pace Development is managing site conditions.  
 
The new application includes two proposed changes: to move the brick screening wall at the property line closer 
to Fullwood Lane, approximately three to ten feet back from the right of way, to give more land to the subdivision’s 
back yards; and to revise the streetscape in conjunction with the relocation of the wall. All of the 
landscaping/streetscaping would be placed in the Town’s right of way and there is some question regarding the 
type of trees that would be viable in the proposed location. There is some concern about the redbud trees but that 
will be addressed by staff through the landscape plan approval process.  
 
Mr. Urban asked about drainage issues and Ms. Gollnitz explained that she and Town Engineer Susan Woolard 
visited the site. Ms. Woolard noted that the site is just a blank piece of land at this time, so the applicants can 
work it out so the drainage is sent wherever it needs to go.  

5 
 



Board of Commissioners 
July 11, 2016 

Mayor Taylor asked about issues with sight triangles if the wall is moved and Ms. Gollnitz explained that the knee 
wall would have to be removed from the sight triangle area. Mayor Taylor noted that meant that the wall couldn’t 
be fully completed.  
 
Shannon Bowling of David Weekly Homes addressed the Board. He explained that they’re working with Pace 
Development to develop the site. Infrastructure is in the ground, roads are paved and they’re close to pulling 
building permits. Landscaping is next and the intent is for the wall, entryway and landscaping to be representative 
of the subdivision’s quality and price point.  
 
Last year’s Administrative Amendment should have included the request to move the wall. There are advantages 
to the placement of the wall on the property line instead of outside it, including drainage and screening from 
Fullwood Lane. It would still allow plenty of room for the planting strip and meandering sidewalk. Mr. Melton asked 
about the smallest distance between Fullwood Lane and the proposed wall location and Mr. Bowling explained it 
would be in the thirty foot range from the wall to the asphalt of Fullwood Lane.  
 
Mr. Urban noted that the original plan pulled the sidewalk pretty far away from Fullwood Lane and the new plan 
proposes the sidewalk coming in within eight to ten feet of the street, close to 40 mile per hour traffic. That 
concerns him. The original plan allowed for that buffer and offered a sense of luxury. He is not in favor of pushing 
pedestrians closer to the street since drivers aren’t always paying attention to pedestrians. He would prefer to see 
the meandering path and larger tree buffer maintained. Mr. Higdon noted he was out of town for the first 
Administrative Amendment; if he were present he would not have voted to approve it. He echoed Mr. Urban in 
stating the meandering path was too close to Fullwood and he can’t support moving the wall. The buffer is very 
important to him and the path is very important to the citizens. He wants to see the meandering sidewalk in place 
further away from Fullwood Lane. Mr. Melton asked Mr. Bowling to explain how these changes would benefit the 
community rather than just the developer. Mr. Bowling said the screening from the street to the back of the homes 
would be better and less distracting for drivers.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding the original planned placement of the wall and its impact to each parcel. The platted 
lots showed the wall significantly inside the lots rather than at the outer edge. This issue should have been 
handled last year. There are issues that the Board would like the applicants to review to see if some changes can 
be made.  
 
Mayor Taylor asked about the storm water situation and how it would be improved if the wall was moved. Property 
Manager Eric Smith with Pace Development explained that the water is conveyed down Fullwood Lane towards 
the entrance. They will likely need private drainage in the rear yards, so if the wall if left in its existing location then 
some of the townhomes will have a very tight fit for their back yards. Mayor Taylor noted that it just means that the 
problem is more easily solved if the wall is moved but that they could figure out another solution if necessary. Mr. 
Smith agreed.  
 
Motion by Mr. Melton to defer this to August 8, 2016 to allow the applicants time to consider the Board’s 
comments. The motion was seconded by Mr. Miller and unanimously approved.  
 
 
MASTER SIGN PLAN: NOVANT HEALTH MATTHEWS MEDICAL CENTER  
 
Ms. Gollnitz explained that this is a revision to the Master Sign Plan approved for the site in 2011. The current 
request is for a reallocation of total signage area allowed – they are not asking for any additional sign area. They 
want to put a larger sign up for the new women’s center. Even with that larger sign they’d be under the maximum 
allowed sign area.  
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to approve the Master Sign Plan as requested. The motion was seconded by Mr. Higdon and 
unanimously approved.  

6 
 



Board of Commissioners 
July 11, 2016 

SCHEDULE MEETING TIME TO DISCUSS POLICY DIRECTIONS FOR WIRELESS SERVICES TECHNOLOGY  
 
Ms. Ingrish explained that the current nineteen year old code needs to be updated. There are a lot of new options 
and the Board needs to discuss policy directions.  
 
By consensus it was decided that the Board of Commissioners, Planning Board and staff will hold a special 
meeting on Monday. August 1, 2016 at 6:00 pm to discuss these issues.  
  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Barbara Dement thanked the Board for the proclamation recognizing the 60th anniversary of Sister Cities 
International and announced the second annual Bastille Day celebration in Matthews, which will be held on July 
14 at 6:30 pm at Grapes Wine Bar.  
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Minutes of the June 27, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting 
B. Approve Purchase of Outen Pottery Site for $300,452 
C. Initiate UDO Text Amendment; Motion 2016-2, to Revise the Criteria for New Street Names at 

§155.405.4.P, and Set the Public Hearing for August 8, 2016 
D. Appoint Gregory Lee as Regular Member of Planning Board 
E. Appoint Vince Manno to Transportation Advisory Committee 
F. Approve Proclamation Honoring 60th Anniversary of Sister City International  
G. Approve Tax Collector’s Order of Collection for Tax Year 2016 
H. Approve Resolution Adding Street [Chaphyn Connector] to the Town’s Street System 
I. Approve Ordinance Establishing a Maximum Speed Limit, Direction of Traffic, No Parking Areas 

and Posting of Stop Sign on Chaphyn Connector 
J. Approve Budget Ordinance Amendment to Reallocate $51,143.45 in Unspent FY16 Federal 

Seized Funds to the FY17 Police Department Budget 
K. Approve Tax Refunds 

 
 

Motion by Mr. Whitley to approve consent agenda items A through K. The motion was seconded by Mr. Melton 
and unanimously approved.   
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 
CONSIDER TECHNOLOGY UPGRADES TO HOOD ROOM 
 
Mr. Melton explained that references were solicited from both vendors. The subcommittee recommends engaging 
with Simply Smart Technology on this project. There are two options for the screen: a surface mount and a 
recessed mount. The recessed mount would be more expensive due to the additional carpentry and drywall work 
needed. Discussion ensued regarding the options. By consensus the Board agreed that the screen should be 
recessed.  
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to engage Simply Smart Technology and proceed with the project, to include the recessed 
screen option, and with the total project cost not to exceed $27,192.32. The motion was seconded by Mr. Whitley 
and unanimously approved.  
 

7 
 



Board of Commissioners 
July 11, 2016 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
APPROVE NAME OF NEWLY CONSTRUCTED ROAD BETWEEN EAST JOHN STREET AND CAMPUS 
RIDGE ROAD AS MCKEE ROAD 
 
Motion by Mr. Whitley to name the newly constructed road between East John Street and Campus Ridge Road as 
McKee Road. The motion was seconded by Mr. Higdon and unanimously approved.  
 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Taylor discussed Penny Higdon’s appointment to the Mecklenburg County Historic Landmarks 
Commission. He also noted that Matthews will be receiving some state funding for sidewalks, downtown projects 
and enhancements to the Sportsplex stadium.  
 
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
None 
 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mr. Whitley to adjourn. The motion was seconded by Mr. Urban and unanimously approved.  The 
meeting adjourned at 8:47 pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Lori Canapinno 
Town Clerk 

8 
 



 

  
 
Agenda Item:  Accept Zoning Application 2016-650, Matthews Festival 
 
DATE: Aug 2, 2016 
FROM: Kathi Ingrish 
 
Background/Issue: 

• Matthews Festival Shopping Center was one of the earliest conditional zoning actions taken in Matthews, and 
still today several parcels within it are zoned “Conditional”, the original district classification. 

• The portion of the center that fronts on US74 includes three tax parcels that recently were sold to a new owner. 
• The company now owning these sites wishes to make considerable changes to the development site, and one of 

the first steps is to bring it into contemporary zoning designations. 
• Town Planning staff has been working with the new owners to remove the Conditional zoning so that standard 

zoning provisions of the UDO apply to this site. 
 
 
Proposal/Solution: 

• To set the site on the redevelopment path the new owners wish to pursue, they are requesting two zoning 
designations – B-1SCD Shopping Center District, and B-H(CD) Highway Commercial. 

• Because the site has been built out and functioning as a shopping center for more than the past quarter century, 
the applicants have requested a waiver of a new traffic study. 

• Planning staff concurs with the applicants’ findings that there will not be a significant change in traffic generation 
due simply to the change in zoning classification, and therefore the waiver of a full new traffic study is 
appropriate. 

 
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal(s) and/or Strategies:   
Quality of Life 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning 
 
 
Recommended Motion/Action: 
Set public hearing date for October 10, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Zonapp 2016-650 memo 

 



PEOPLE  •  PRIDE  •  PROGRESS  •  PARTNERSHIPS 
700 East Stonewall Street  •  P.O. Box 31457  •  Charlotte, North Carolina 28231  •  704-336-7600 

MECKLENBURG COUNTY 
Office of the Tax Collector 

 
 
 
 
 
July 21, 2016 
 
Hazen Blodgett 
Town Manager 
232 Matthews Station Street 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 
RE: TAX COLLECTOR’S SETTLEMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016 
 
Dear Mr. Blodgett: 
 
Please find the enclosed FY 2016 Tax Collector’s Settlement. I am pleased to inform you that we 
achieved our collections objectives. We will continue to collect taxes for FY 2016 and other 
prior years as we move forward with the FY 2017 billing cycle (tax year 2016). 
 
According to NCGS 105-373(3), the Tax Collector’s Settlement must be entered into the official 
record of the governing board. Please have this document entered into the record to comply with 
statute. 
 
It was my pleasure to serve you, your board, and your residents again this year. Please do not 
hesitate to contact me with any feedback about our service to Matthews during this past year. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Neal L. Dixon 
Director/Tax Collector 
 
c: Christopher Tucker, Finance Director 







RESOLUTION ADDING STREET TO THE TOWN’S STREET SYSTEM 
 
 

PURSUANT, to Article 15 of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes of North Carolina, 
the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews hereby adopts this resolution to add to the 
Town’s street system a street in the Forest Brook Estates subdivision known as Oscar Drive.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town 

of Matthews, North Carolina, that it hereby adds Oscar Drive located within the Forest Brook 
Estates subdivision to the Town’s street system. 

 
RESOLVED, this the    day of     2016. 

 
 
 
              
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Town Clerk 



 

 
Appointment to Veteran Affairs Committee  
      
TO:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
DATE:   August 3, 2016 
FROM:  Rad Pate 
 
 
 
Background/Issue:   
 
The Veteran Affairs Committee bylaws allow for up to twenty appointed members. Fourteen members are currently 
appointed. Staff has received two applications from interested parties.  
 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
 
The committee chair has reviewed the applications and recommends appointing Mr. Fred Baylor and Mr. Raymond 
Gaskins to the Veteran Affairs Committee.  
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal:  
 
Quality of Life: To maintain a small town identify by providing a vibrant downtown, pedestrian friendly community, 
extensive greenway system, and recreation and cultural activities. 
 
 
Recommended Action:  
 
Appoint Fred Baylor and Raymond Gaskins to the Town of Matthews Veteran Affairs Committee. 
   

 
 
 
 

 



232 Matthews Station Street
Matthews, NC 28'l 05

APPLICATION FOR BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Mafthews sincerely appreciates the interest of all citizens in the Town
wishing to serue on advisory committees and urges the public to nominate qualified persons for fhese poslfions.

ADVTSORY BOARD/COMMTTTEE/COMMISSTON(S) ON WHTCH APPLTCANT WTSHES TO SERVE:

, Appearanceflree Committee
Board of Adjustment
Economic Development Advisory Committee
Environmental Advisory Com mittee
Historic Preservation Advisory Committee

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resource Advisory Committee
Planning Board
Special Needs Advisory Committee

mittee

APPLICANT INFORMATION

NAME: F Qed J;
HOME ADDRESS: uJ odd ive - /nn-f Theui /. c, Z t/a s-
PRIMARY PHoNE NUMBER: (1ou) A 8 I ' 6o 8 3 Oor" Qnobite ()usiness

EMATLADDRESS: FB+ytoB @ LEpoL;,,rt+. e Q. Co rrr

OCGUPATION:

BUSfNEss ADDRESS: 5'7o t Tld eoepderce EL'td. - C-h fr1214

BUsrNEss PHONEtQ1 U) 53b-?b 3 sBUSINESS EMAIL:

REASON(S) FORWTSHTNG TO SERVE ON TH|S/THESE BOARD(S)?

NUMBER OF HOURS AVAILABLE PER MONTH FOR THIS SERVIGE:

EDUcATfoN , [4 S - BuuSip ess Nnir,r;sTln r ia,l

g

BUSINESS AND CIVIC EXPERIENCE/SKILLS: 4.1o uRce s ^

AREAS OF EXPERTISE/NTEREST/SPECIAL SKILLS:

DArE: 5- ie-/bSIGNATURE: :
I understand that this application will active status for two vears from date of application.

Return to: Town Glerk LorlGanapinno.lcanaplnno@matthewsnc.gov. (p) 704-708-1222[fI704€45-1964



Town of , ,

ffi 232Matthewsstationstreet

North carotina t""n'io';Ili.zl?1

APPLICATION FOR BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

The Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews sincerely appreciates the interest of all citizens in the Town
wishing to serue on advisory commiftees and urges the public to nominate qualified persons for these posrtions.

ADVTSORY BOARD/COMMTTTEE/COMM|SS|ON(S) ON WHTCH AppLtcANT WTSHES TO SERVE:

, Appearancefl-ree Committee
,Board of Adjustment
'Economic Development Advisory Committee

' Environmental Advisory Committee
, Historic Preservation Advisory Committee

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resource Advisory Committee
Planning Board
Special Needs Advisory Committee

/ ,--APPLICANT INFORMATION

,4oNd A (4rsffSc
lo'Duntrv ,/s i/\ t/nn)reut A) o5

PRfMARY PHoNE NUMBER: 76 / t+/ - 01 8 7o
HOME ADDRESS:

Ousiness

Q tt-:trJ-re"-EMATL ADDRESS: lAyn a

BUSINESS ADDRESS: SN^A 4 S AAOIT A
BUSINESS EMAIL: BUSINESS PHONE:

REAsoN(s) FoR wrsHrNG ro sERvE oN rHfs/rHEsE BoARD(sr? E s elLu e (24o ,./
Ve7-t

NUMBER OF HOURS AVAILABLE PER MONTH FoR THls SERVIGE: O{ q
,<<)

BUSINESS AND CIVIC EXPERIENCE/SKILLS:
'/n;^fuAt

AREAS oF ExpERTtsE/NTEREsT/spEctAL SKTLLS: frraittl4)r+tfOe

I understand that this application will be kept in active status for two vears ftom date of application.

Return to: Town Glerk Lorl Ganapinno. lcanapinno@matthewsnc.gov. (p) 704-708-1222(fl704€45-1964

It
DArE: 5(adl /le



 

 

 
Removal from Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Committee 
 
DATE:  August 1, 2016   
RE:  Advisory Committee Resignation 
FROM:  Corey King, Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource Department Director 
 
 
Background/Issue:  Recent Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resource Advisory Committee appointee, Corey 
Villas, has requested to resign from the committee.  Changes in his work schedule and other commitments will 
prevent him from fulfilling his commitment as a member of the committee.  
 
 
Proposal/Solution: Remove Corey Villas as a member of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource Advisory 
Committee.  The advisory committee will now have 1 vacancy available.  Availability will be posted by traditional 
means in attempt to fill the position as quickly as possible. 
 
Financial Impact:  None 
 
Related Town Goal: Create an informed citizenry by providing relevant information about the Town and 
enhancing communication between department staff and citizens. 
 
 
Recommended Motion: Remove Corey Villas as a member of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource 
Advisory Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Agenda Item: Approve Fire Department’s Fill-the-Boot Activities  

Date: August 1, 2016 

Re: Consideration of Solicitation of Donations 

From: Assistant Chief Jason Gurian 

Background / Issue: 

Members of the Fire Department have been active proponents of the Muscular Dystrophy Association’s 
(MDA) Fill-the-Boot campaign for the past 10 years. Our department’s activities also serve to strengthen 
the relationship among our citizens and the employees of the town. Much of the funds raised are 
through direct contributions of local businesses which have come to learn our commitment to service.  

Proposal / Solution:  

In addition to other activities we have planned throughout the year, we are planning a special day of 
activities on Saturday, October 18, 2016. On this day, as we have done in years past, members will solicit 
for donations at the intersection of John St. and Trade St. from 0800-1300. We will have signs explaining 
the activities to approaching motorists, fire apparatus visible to approaching traffic, and our members 
will be wearing their reflective safety vests. 

Financial Impact: 

There will be no financial impact upon the town. 

Recommended Motion: Approve the request to allow the fire department to stand in the intersection of 
John St. and Trade St. from 8:00 am and 1:00 pm of Saturday, October 8, 2016, for the solicitation of 
donations for the MDA. 



 2016 PLANNING CONFERENCE TO-DO LIST

1

# ITEM ASSIGNED DUE DATE NOTES

8 Inventory Fire/EMS vehicles Fire Chief 4/30/2016

My intention is to combine #8 and #9 into one memo. I have some preliminary information. I 
recommend having the new permanent chief review this information and make a report on Oct. 
31th. 

9 Provide maintenance costs for fire vehicles that we want replaced to TB Fire Chief 4/30/2016 See notes above

10
Supply detailed South Trade Street budget to TB. Detail what funds were reimbursed back to town after bonds were 
sold. CT 4/30/2016

Attached is memo from Chris Tucker outlining the expenditures associated with South Trade Street 
project beginning in 2004 until the present.

11

Clarify library’s responsibilities for building maintenance or look into rent payments after lease expiration

HB 4/30/2016

Charlie Buckley talked to the library attorney. We are interpreting the library agreement differently from 
the library. The library argues the roof, parking lot etc. are capital improvements and the agreement is 
silent. They agree they are responsible for annual maintenance. I have talked to the Library Direct Lee 
Kessler and we (library, county and us) will sit down and discuss an agreement in September. Lee said to 
me they want to be good partners. 

12 Investigate contracting a grant writer position BH 4/30/2016

Attached is a memo from Becky Hawke. Departments heads need to be commended for their 
success in obtaining grants. Grant opportunities are not being ingored due to a lack of staffing. At 
this time a grant writer is not warrented. 

13

5:30 meeting with Buzz to discuss gateway signage; brainstorm new concepts; staff/Buzz will re-evaluate locations 
(show street view of each)

JT 4/30/2016
Town Board met with Buzz Bizzell on July 11th. Town Board to sign off on general locations. Buzz to 
focus on design. Staff is investigating cost of power and securing locations for sign.

14 Provide list of major capital equipment needs to TB CT 4/30/2016 Compiling this list is more comprehensive than expected. Staff is requesting an extension to Sept 30. 
16 Try to secure first right of refusal for downtown property, pursue purchase of adjacent property HB 4/30/2016 The property owners told the manager they want $1.5 million for the property.
17 Start posting completed to do list/year end accomplishments on website. “State of the Town” report. JT 5/30/2016 The 2015 Planning Conference todo list is posted on the website. 
18 Pursue diversity and sensitivity training for all town staff. BH 5/30/2016 The Town will be conducting diversity and inclusion training for all employees in the fall of 2016. 

19
Obtain cost estimates of selected pilot projects in Downtown Streetscape Plan (some may have good/better/best 
options) and include a couple pilot projects in the CIP. KI 6/30/2016

In the FY 17 budget is $72,000 for multiuse trail along railroad parking lot and stairs up to Bank 
Street.

20 Proposed replacement schedule for fire vehicles Fire Chief 6/30/2016 Attached is five year CIP/replacement schedule for the Fire and EMS department.
21 Consider paying for CAFS and pumper - order in FY 17 and pay in FY 18 Fire Chief 6/30/2016 I recommend revisting this issue with the new permanent chief. Move to a Oct. 31 due date.
22 Bring proposal back to board focusing on preservation and preventative maintenance of roads CJO 6/30/2016

23 Continue to ID potential park properties through town CK 6/30/2016
Attached is a memo from Corey King discussing potential additional sites for park property. I would 
recommend we set a time on a future agenda to discuss this matter in depth. 

24 CJ to investigate McKee A point ranking – would ranking improve if Matthews offered funds? CJO 6/30/2016
The Town has committed $2.0 million toward the construction of McKee Road in order to improve 
our ranking. At this point we do not know if it received funding.

25 Ensure employee recruiting and screening practices are inclusive in nature BH 6/30/2016

Attached is a thorough memo from Becky Hawke regarding the Town's recruiting and promotional 
process. I am confident that supervisors will continue to hire and promote the most qualified person for 
the position while also continuing to look for new opportunities to diversify Town staff. We have also 
attached a diversity statistics spreadsheet showing the demographic makeup of Matthews citizens and 
the Town by department.

26 Review consultant costs over last three years BH 6/30/2016

27
Downtown Streetscape Plan: review shall vs. should issue. Communicate with Transportation Advisory Committee. Add 
sections delineating required vs. suggested components KI 6/30/2016 The downtown streetscaping plan has been approved by the town board.

28 Charlie to investigate possible penalties for infractions of tree protection ordinance CB 6/30/2016
Charlie Buckley emailed a memo to the town board about possible penalties for violating the Town 
Tree Protection Ordinance. Attached is a copy.

29
Evaluate options for consultant/staff to organize community meeting to update vision statements. After community 
input staff will re-evaluate goals and strategies. BH 6/30/2016 Staff is requesting this date be moved to September 30th 



 2016 PLANNING CONFERENCE TO-DO LIST

2

# ITEM ASSIGNED DUE DATE NOTES
30 Update a/v for Hood Room prior to 6/30 (3 companies) LC 6/30/2016 A/V improvements to begin in the Hood Room on August 24th. 

31 Sportsplex informational kiosk: approach County to create opportunity, then hand off CK 6/30/2016
Attached is a memo from Corey King. The County has not committed to installing kiosks at the 
sportsplex. We will revisit this issue after the sportsplex is complete.

32 Investigate economic development liaison – Jay/Becky BH 6/30/2016

Attached is a memo from Becky Hawke in which Becky, Jay Camp and Kelly Barnhardt, Chamber 
executive, will meet at least quarterly to discuss economic development opportunities. The Town  will 
begin using Xceligent to provide updated real estate listings for commercial and industrial spaces and land 
for sale or lease. This program will be hosted on the Town's website.

33 Draft resolution promoting equity and inclusion BH 6/30/2016 Equity and Inclusion policy statement will be part of the update personnel policy- Sept. 30. 

34 Reevaluate the community meeting process for park planning. CK 6/30/2016
Attached is a memo from Corey King recommending how to improve the public meeting process in 
the future.

35 Revise technology allowance from $3,500 to $3,600 per two year term - start July 1, 2016. HB 6/30/2016 Completed as part of FY17 budget.
36 Update Personnel Policy BH 9/30/2016

37
What’s the gap between our current funding model and what we actually need to properly maintain roads. Investigate 
town/regional asphalt production. CJO 9/30/2016

38 Hold Town Hall-style meeting for public – “Let’s Talk Traffic” – with DOT in attendance HB 9/30/2016

39
Evaluate redundancies/distribution of responsibilities between Red Brick Partnership/EDAC/Quad/and the Chamber of 
Commerce HB 9/30/2016

40 Look at parks & rec master plan; potentially have Park & Rec Advisory Committee work on updates CK 9/30/2016
41 Complete installation of mural at Town Hall wall CK 9/30/2016

42

Provide pending project tree save data, and background on other communities' tree canopy/tree preservation efforts 
to Appearance and Tree Board for them to discuss current code requirments and Town expectations on tree 
protection; A&T Committee to recommend new policy, goals, implementation tactics. Identify tree species and 
location. KI/CJO 9/30/2016

43
Start discussions with Lat Purser regarding parklet/active seating area in parking space in front of Dilworth Coffee – get 
design and preliminary costs KI 9/30/2016

44 Rob to work with CMS on traffic flow at Matthews Elementary RH 9/30/2016

45
Trend line out revenues projections – use actual revenues from 3-5 year trend line to prepare revenue estimates

CT 9/30/2016
46 Work with private developers to develop pocket park opportunities, especially downtown CK 9/30/2016
47 Corey to provide list of underserved areas in need of park facilities CK 9/30/2016
48 Pursue regional grant and use opportunities for smokehouse trailer DG 12/31/2016
49 Explore joint facility for Fire/EMS training facility with all area departments DG 12/31/2016
50 Price Crestdale Road widening and evaluate feasibility CJO 12/31/2016
51 Communicate Independence Blvd./ US 74 project plans/ impacts to area businesses and residents JT 12/31/2016

52
Receive Outen Pottery Task Force recommendation about site usage; prepare cost estimates, timeline and budget for 
site work to create it a neighborhood park CK 12/31/2016 Clarified and reworded

53 Revise plan for Pleasant Plains Road  - change bike lane to multiuse path CJO 2017 Review process for applications will begin again in 2017
54 Review concept of West John Street area historical district   KI ?

55
Talbot Court – send letter to residents of neighborhood to inform them of progress. Come back to Board to discuss 
traffic warrant study some time (12 + months) after opening of street; consider impact of new ACTS traffic light HB Ongoing Letter sent to neighborhood March 17

56 Look into used or lease equipment opportunities for Public Works CJO Ongoing



 2016 PLANNING CONFERENCE TO-DO LIST

3

# ITEM ASSIGNED DUE DATE NOTES

57
When preparing agenda items, think of how the visual looks on the screen. 11x17 or landscape is difficult to see.

LC Ongoing
58 Explore options/possibilities for Town to create independent school system HB Ongoing

1 Confirm revaluation schedule with Assessor’s office CT Complete Next county revaluation scheduled for 2019
2 Inquire if insurance will cover town hall roof repair HB Complete Received $11,000 check from insurance company
3 Corey to confirm exact measurement of Four Mile Creek greenway segment CK Complete Exact greenway length is 2.25 miles

4
Collect and report on Fullwood Station specifics to Town Board: a) tree preservation calculations; b) location of 
preserved trees on the site; c) whether there is a SWIM buffer violation. KI Complete Clarified and reworded; report sent to Board and discussed at March 14 meeting

5 Adopt legislative priorities at next TB meeting HB Complete Adopted by Board at March 14 meeting

6
Recognize Martin Luther King Day beginning in 2017, revise floating days from 2 to 1. Official action at next board 
meeting. BH Complete Approved by Board at March 28 meeting

7 Review new website at 5:30 meeting on March 14. Go live goal after TB has thoroughly reviewed entire site. JT Complete Website went live on April 1

COMPLETED ITEMS



 

 

 
 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 1998-Present. 

                                   

 
July 28, 2016 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Christopher Tucker, Finance Director 
 
CC: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager 
 Becky Hawke, Assistant Town Manager 
 Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
RE: Planning Conference To-Do Item – S. Trade St  
 
During the February 2016 Planning Conference, a discussion arose about the S. Trade Project and its payback 
to the General Fund. From that, a request detailing the S. Trade St. expenditures was added to the Planning 
Conference To-Do. Please find below information detailing the costs associated with this project. 
 
In 2004, the citizens of Matthews voted in favor of a General Obligation Bond referendum in the amount of 
$5.5 Million to support a major road improvement project, which became the S. Trade St project. 
 
From 2006-2009, the Town spent $655,486.12 on costs associated with this project. The majority of these 
funds were expended to Kimley-Horn for design of the project. Right of way purchase from MARA is also 
included here.  
 
From 2010-2013, the Town spent $473,526.44 on costs associated with this project. The majority of these 
expenditures were for engineering, design, right of way purchases, and other professional services. 
 
Together, prior to any debt issuance or contract bidding, the Town expended $1,129,012.56 on the South 
Trade Street project.  
 
In July 2013, PW Director Ralph Messera presented to the Board the original project budget for the bond 
proceeds totaling $5.7M including an additional $200K being provided by ACTS. In September 2014, Mr. 
Messera presented a revised budget once the bids for the project had been received. The total budget did not 
change, but monies moved between line items. Since 2014, there has only been one significant budget 
change, where the contribution from ACTS was reduced to $71,629 with a corresponding expenditure 
reduction to the project’s contingency funds.  
 
The takeaway from these budgets is that they were for project expenses yet to be incurred and did not include 
line items to transfer funds back to the General Fund for the costs incurred prior to the budgets being created. 
During the time that elapsed between the original bond approval, to the actual receipt of bids, the project 
became a $6.7M project with only $5.5M in bond proceeds. 
 

lcanapinno
DATE



 

However, the project does present three opportunities to pay some amount back to the General Fund. The 
project has some remaining contingency budget, which if unspent, could partially repay the General Fund. 
Secondly, First Tennessee paid the Town a premium of $107k as a bid enhancement. Lastly, the Town has 
earned about $6k in interest in its interest bearing bond account. As the project winds down, if these balances 
are not needed, they can go back to the General Fund.  
 
I have included several attachments to this memorandum that hopefully will shed some light on the moving 
parts. 
 
I – Memo and action item from R. Messera (July 2013) 
II – Memo and action item from R. Messera (July 2014) 
III – Pre Debt Costs by Vendor 
III – Project Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures from inception to June 30 2016 
 



 

 
A)   Adopt Working Budget for S. Trade St. Project 
B)   Approve Re-engineering Agreement with Kimley Horn      
 
DATE:  July 22, 2013 
 
FROM:  Ralph Messera, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Background/Issue: 
 
At the end of May, the Board approved proceeding with a “Modified Plan” for the S. Trade Street project. A 
working budget has been prepared to advance the project. In addition the re-engineering agreement needs 
approval.  
 
Proposal/Solution: 
 
Attached is a working budget that assumes that the full amount of $5.5M in bonds will be issued, and in 
addition, budgets for payments required of ACTS for the Village at Plantation Estates project. This is a working 
budget at this point that will take us through the redesign period, where costs will be further refined, and most 
engineering and utility estimates and right-of-way purchase will have been completed. There may also be 
savings from the DOT participation in signals and paving that we can incorporate into a final construction 
estimate, which we hope may actually reduce that final figure.  
 
At that time, we can set the final bond issuance total, before taking final numbers to the LGC, and the Board 
will be asked to adopt a final budget.     
 
Also attached is the re-engineering proposal from Kimley-Horn. This agreement does two things. First, it closes 
out the previous contracts, with no further payments due, despite the construction phases not being completed. 
Second it spells out the phases needed to take the project from re-engineering through construction 
completion.  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
Project will continue to require General Fund advances through the Bond Issuance date, but clearly spells out 
what’s being paid for and what costs will be reimbursed to the General Fund after this date, along with possible 
additional reimbursement to the G/F at project completions should the Board so choose. Final borrowing 
amount and future tax rates to be set by the Board closer to bond issuance time, most likely in the next 
summer.  
 
Related Town Goal:  
 
Functional Transportation System 
 
Recommended Motion:  
 
Motion to A) approve working budget as presented and B) approve revised agreement with Kimley-Horn. 

 



S. Trade Street Project
(Modified Plan)

Revenues Expected

General Obligation Bonds Issued 5,500,000$                      
Payment from ACTS for Required Improvements 200,000$                         
Payment from ACTS for Optional Improvements -$                                  

Total Revenues 5,700,000$                      

Expenditures Expected

Construction per K/H Estimate of 6/13 4,107,500$                      
Utility Re-location Allowance 225,000$                         
Construction Inspection 100,000$                         
Geo-Tech During Construction (QA/QC) 117,500$                         
Engineering Redesign through Construction 70,800$                           
Final Permitting 5,000$                              
R/W- Fee Simple & Easements (inc. appraisals and PPS assistance) 535,000$                         
Survey Updates, Soft-digs, etc. 30,000$                           
Landscaping (more than grass) 50,000$                           

Subtotal 5,240,800$                      

Bond Issuance Costs 70,000$                           
Project Contingency** 389,200$                         

Total 5,700,000$                      

** Any remaining project contingency at the end of the project will be used to either reimburse the 
       General Fund for past expenditures or for resurfacing on other Town streets



n
2000 South Boulevard
Suite 440
Charlotte, NC
28203

July 16, 2013

Mr. Ralph S. Messera

Town of Matthews

232 Matthews Station Street

Matthews, North Carolina 28106-0398

Re: South Trade Street Improvements Project

Modified Trade Street Plans

Dear Ralph:

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (“Kimley-Horn” or “Consultant”) is pleased to

submit this letter agreement (the “Agreement”) to The Town of Matthews the

(“Town” or the “Client”) for providing engineering design services for the Modified

Trade Street Project. Our project understanding, scope of services, schedule, and fee

are below.

Project Understanding

The Town Board voted on June 24
th
, 2013 to proceed with the construction of a

“Modified” Trade Street plan. The full plan was previously permitted through

NCDOT  in  the  1
st
 quarter of 2011. The new “Modified” plan will have all the

elements of the full project except that Trade Street will be improved only north of

the culvert crossing at Four Mile Creek. Elements of the prior design plans to extend

the Four Mile Creek culvert and construct a parallel overflow and greenway tunnel

will not be a part of the Modified Trade Street plan. The roadway improvements

will include a taper to connect the proposed widened cross section of Trade Street

back to the existing two lane roadway (between Chaphyn Lane and the existing Four

Mile Creek culvert). This contract will close out and supersede existing contracts

with The Town of Matthews relating to the widening of Trade Street. The existing

contracts that will be closed out are:

1) Concept contract dated 11-20-2007,  signed by Hazen Blodgett

2) Preliminary/Final design contract dated 12-17-2008, signed by Hazen

Blodgett

Standards and Procedures
The Consultant will perform roadway design services for the Town in general

accordance with Mecklenburg County/City of Charlotte/NCDOT general procedures

and polices relating to local highway design.  Design coordination and approval will

be conducted with the NCDOT Division 10, District 2 office. If the District office



Ralph S. Messera, July 16, 2013, Pg. 2 of 9

C:\Users\benjamin.taylor\Desktop\2013-07-16-Letter Agreement-Matthews.doc

decides to send the project to NCDOT in Raleigh, the Consultant may ask for an

additional service since the Raleigh NCDOT requirements are more stringent. The

project will be prepared using AutoCAD with English units.

Scope of Services

The Consultant will provide the services specifically set forth below.

Task A – Roadway Design

A1- Updated Roadway plan design

The Consultant will modify the existing plans to exclude extending the existing

culvert and all other work at the culvert and to the south. A new merge taper will be

designed beginning after the intersection of Chesney Glen/Trade. Modified plans

sheets will include:

1) Typical sections

2) Plans sheets

3) Right-of-way sheets

4) Profiles sheets

5) Erosion control sheets

6) Cross Section sheets

7) Pavement marking sheets

As a part Task A, the Consultant will utilize data from the test holes (to be

conducted under task B) to review the proposed drainage system. The review will

focus on revising the design as needed to accommodate the new project limits as

well as seek opportunities for costs savings. An updated drainage report will be

prepared and resubmitted to the NCDOT. It is assumed that water quality (BMP) or

detention facilities will not be required. BMPs can be designed as an additional

service if required.

Task B –Utility Coordination

B1- Private Utility Coordination

The Consultant will contact and meet with utility companies whose facilities are in

and/or may need to be relocated within the project limits. The Consultant will

request that the utilities provide plans that define the location and description of

existing facilities and easements within the project limits and work with them on

suitable design locations for their relocation. The proposed utility relocations

provided by the private utility companies will be incorporated into the Final

Modified Roadway plans.  This scope assumes that no new proposed utilities are

planned within the new roadway section.



Ralph S. Messera, July 16, 2013, Pg. 3 of 9

C:\Users\benjamin.taylor\Desktop\2013-07-16-Letter Agreement-Matthews.doc

This task includes developing a new utility contact list (since many of the utility

company contacts have likely changed in the past few years since the project was

last coordinated with the utilities) and up to 8 meetings with the utility companies.

Up to 25 soft dig test holes will be completed with this task (current pricing from

our subconsultant for this work is $450 per test hole).

The Consultant will coordinate CAD files and plans with the utility companies. The

Consultant will modify the utility by others (UBO) plans based on updated designs

from the utility companies.

The consultant cannot control whether the utilities will provide cost estimates prior

to construction.

B2- Coordination with Charlotte Mecklenburg Utilities Department (CMUD)

The Consultant will coordinate with Charlotte Mecklenburg Utilities Department to

confirm that they have no proposed utilities for the corridor. CMUD water lines

were a large reason that the current plans required two separate storm sewer trunk

lines. The existing water lines create a barrier for a cost effective storm system to

cross the street. The Consultant will meet with CMUD to determine if the project

can lower the water line in specific locations to allow a proposed lateral storm

system to cross the street. The intent of this investigate is to potentially lower

construction costs. Should public utilities design, such as water and/or sewer,

become a part of the project; we can provide planning and/or design as an additional

service.

Task C – Traffic Signal Modification Plan

C1- Plan Update

Three traffic signal designs were completed for the initial project at Trade/Fullwood,

Trade/Chesney Glen, and Trade/Weddington. The traffic signal at

Trade/Weddington is no longer within the project limits and will therefore be

removed from the plans with no further work. The traffic signal at Trade/Fullwood

was recently updated with a fourth leg connection into the Church. The current

signal plan will have to be modified.



Ralph S. Messera, July 16, 2013, Pg. 4 of 9

C:\Users\benjamin.taylor\Desktop\2013-07-16-Letter Agreement-Matthews.doc

Task D – Permitting

D1- North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources
(NCDENR)

The Project will disturb more than 0.5 acres and will need approval from NCDENR

for a grading permit. It is anticipated that the Consultant will make two submittals

to NCDENR to assist the Town with gaining the project’s erosion and sediment

control permit.  Any permitting fees will be paid for by the Client. The fees are

currently $65/disturbed acre.

D2- NCDOT- District 2 (Division 10) Encroachment permit

An encroachment agreement will be required between the Client and the North

Carolina Department of Transportation. The Consultant will prepare the

Encroachment form (with signatures from the Client) and submit 5 sets of full size

plans.  There is currently no fee associated with an NCDOT encroachment permit.

Task E – Right-of-Way Assistance

It is assumed that the Town will retain a qualified consultant to handle the property

acquisition process.  The Consultant will assist the Town and the Town’s

consultant:

· Review prepared plats and/or legal descriptions for general compliance with

the project prepared right-of-way plans,

· Meet with the property acquisition consultant to outline the scope of the

proposed construction project, and review impacts to the affected parcels,

· Answer technical questions that arise during negotiations, and

· When deemed necessary by the Town, accompany the property acquisition

consultant on property owner visits to discuss proposed improvements and

associated impacts.

The Consultant will attend up to 10 meetings for this task.

Task F – Bid Phase and Construction Phase Services

The Bid phase and construction phases tasks below represent minimal involvement

by the Consultant during the bid and construction process. The construction phase

services should not be confused with construction inspection. The Consultant

assumes that the Client will contract directly with a private construction inspection

and/or testing firm for this project.



Ralph S. Messera, July 16, 2013, Pg. 5 of 9

C:\Users\benjamin.taylor\Desktop\2013-07-16-Letter Agreement-Matthews.doc

F1- Bid Document Preparation and Contractor Notification.  Consultant will

prepare and assemble construction bidding documents, including specifications and

special provisions for the construction contract, based on The City of Charlotte

project Manual. Consultant will issue bid packages for the submittal of quotations

to perform the work and conduct a pre-bid meeting with potential bidders.

Consultant will tabulate the bids received and evaluate the compliance of the bids

received with the bidding documents.  Consultant will prepare a written summary of

this tabulation and evaluation of the Contractor’s submittals.  If requested by the

Client, Consultant will notify the selected Contractor. It is assumed that the Client

will prepare and coordinate a newspaper ad announcing the project bid.

F2- Pre-Construction Conference.  Consultant will conduct a Pre-Construction

Conference prior to commencement construction.

F3- Recommendations with Respect to Defective Work.  Consultant will

recommend to Client that Contractor's work be disapproved and rejected while it is

in progress if, on the basis of such observations, Consultant believes that such work

will not produce a completed Project that conforms generally to Contract

Documents.

F4- Clarifications and Interpretations.  Consultant will respond to reasonable and

appropriate Contractor requests for information and issue necessary clarifications

and interpretations of the Contract Documents to Client as appropriate to the

orderly completion of Contractor's work.  Any orders authorizing variations from

the Contract Documents will be made by Client.

F5- Change Orders.  Consultant may recommend Change Orders to Client, and will

review and make recommendations related to Change Orders submitted or proposed

by the Contractor. This task includes review of up to five (5) change orders.

F6- Shop Drawings.  Consultant will review and approve or take other appropriate

action in respect to Shop Drawings and other data which Contractor is required to

submit, but only for conformance with the information given in the Contract

Documents.  Such review and approvals or other action will not extend to means,

methods, techniques, equipment choice and usage, sequences, schedules, or

procedures of construction or to related safety precautions and programs.

Limitation of Responsibilities.  Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or

omissions of any Contractor, or of any of their subcontractors, suppliers, or of any

other individual or entity performing or furnishing the Work.  Consultant shall not

have the authority or responsibility to stop the work of any Contractor.



Ralph S. Messera, July 16, 2013, Pg. 6 of 9

C:\Users\benjamin.taylor\Desktop\2013-07-16-Letter Agreement-Matthews.doc

Services Not Included

Any other services, including but not limited to the following, are not included in

this Agreement:

- Construction inspection

- Construction testing

- Design changes during construction

Additional Services

Any services not specifically provided for in the above scope will be billed as

additional services and performed at our then current hourly rates.  Additional

services we can provide include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Water or sewer design

- Retaining wall design

- Traffic signal coordination plans

Information Provided By Client

We shall be entitled to rely on the completeness and accuracy of all information

provided by the Client or the Client’s consultants or representatives.  The Client

shall provide all information requested by the Consultant during the project,

including but not limited to the following:

- It is assumed that Sanborn, Inc. will be contracting directly with the Client

to update the project survey where changes have taken place since the initial

survey. Specific areas include the new signal at Trade and Church. The

Consultant will also require updated pavement survey.

- It is assumed that S&ME, Inc will be contracted directly with the Client to

perform additional pavement cores and boring to provide a revised

pavement design. In recent discussions with NCDOT, the Consultant

believes that a revised pavement design could potentially reduce the project

cost.

Schedule

We will provide our services as expeditiously as practicable.



Ralph S. Messera, July 16, 2013, Pg. 7 of 9

C:\Users\benjamin.taylor\Desktop\2013-07-16-Letter Agreement-Matthews.doc

Fee and Expenses

The Consultant will perform the services in Tasks A - F for the total lump sum fee

below. Individual task amounts are informational only.  All permitting, application,

and similar project fees will be paid directly by the Client.

Task A   Roadway Design $ 25,261

Task B   Utility Coordination $   9,060

Task C   Traffic Signal Modification $   8,368

Task D   Permitting $   4,318

Task E   Right-of-Way assistance $   4,514

Task F   Bid and Construction Phase services $   6,887

Expenses (Including 20 test holes) $   12,400

Total Lump Sum Fee $   70,808

Lump sum fees will be invoiced monthly based upon the overall percentage of

services performed.  Payment will be due within 25 days of your receipt of the

invoice.

Closure

In addition to the matters set forth herein, our Agreement shall include and be

subject to, and only to, the attached Standard Provisions, which are incorporated by

reference.  As used in the Standard Provisions, "Consultant" shall refer to Kimley-

Horn and Associates, Inc., and "Client" shall refer to The Town of Matthews.

Kimley-Horn, in an effort to expedite invoices and reduce paper waste, submits

invoices via email in an Adobe PDF format.  We can also provide a paper copy via

regular mail if requested.  Please provide the following information:

____  Please email all invoices to ___________________________

____  Please copy _______________________________________

If you concur in all the foregoing and wish to direct us to proceed with the services,

please have authorized persons execute both copies of this Agreement in the spaces

provided below, retain one copy, and return the other to us.  We will commence

services only after we have received a fully-executed agreement. Fees and times

stated in this Agreement are valid for sixty (60) days after the date of this letter.

To ensure proper set up of your projects so that we can get started, please complete

and return with the signed copy of this Agreement the attached Request for



Ralph S. Messera, July 16, 2013, Pg. 8 of 9

C:\Users\benjamin.taylor\Desktop\2013-07-16-Letter Agreement-Matthews.doc

Information.  Failure to supply this information could result in delay in starting

work on your project.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide these services to you.  Please contact me if

you have any questions.

Very truly yours,

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

By:  Benjamin Taylor, P.E.

Project Manager

Town of Matthews
A Municipality

____________________________________

(Date)

(Print or Type Name and Title)

(Email Address)

                                                                     , Witness

(Print or Type Name)

Official Seal:



Ralph S. Messera, July 16, 2013, Pg. 9 of 9

C:\Users\benjamin.taylor\Desktop\2013-07-16-Letter Agreement-Matthews.doc

Client’s Federal Tax ID: _______________________

Client’s Business License No.: __________________

Client’s Street Address: _______________________

_______________________

Attachment – Request for Information

Attachment – Standard Provisions

Attachment – Rate Schedule



Rev 07/13

Request for Information
Please return this information with your signed contract; failure to provide this information could result in delay in starting

your project

Client Identification
Full, Legal Name of Client

Mailing Address for Invoices

Contact for Billing Inquiries

Contact’s Phone and e-mail

Client is (check one) Owner Agent for Owner Unrelated to Owner

Property Identification
Parcel 1 Parcel 2 Parcel 3 Parcel 4

Street Address

County in which

Property is Located

Tax Assessor’s

Number(s)

Property Owner Identification
Owner 1 Owner 2 Owner 3 Owner 4

Owner(s) Name

Owner(s) Mailing

Address

Owner’s Phone No.

Owner of Which Parcel

#?

Project Funding Identification – List Funding Sources for the Project

Attach additional sheets if there are more than 4 parcels or more than 4 owners



Rev 07/13 1

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
STANDARD PROVISIONS

(1) Consultant's Scope of Services and Additional Services. The Consultant’s undertaking to perform professional services

extends only to the services specifically described in this Agreement.  However, if requested by the Client and agreed to by the

Consultant, the Consultant will perform Additional Services, which shall be governed by these provisions.  Unless otherwise

agreed to in writing, the Client shall pay the Consultant for any Additional Services an amount based upon the Consultant’s

then-current hourly rates plus an amount to cover certain direct expenses including telecommunications, in-house reproduction,

postage, supplies, project related computer time, and local mileage.  Other direct expenses will be billed at 1.15 times cost.

(2) Client's Responsibilities. In addition to other responsibilities described herein or imposed by law, the Client shall:

(a)  Designate in writing a person to act as its representative with respect to this Agreement, such person having complete

authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and make or interpret the Client's decisions.

(b)  Provide all information and criteria as to the Client's requirements, objectives, and expectations for the project including all

numerical criteria that are to be met and all standards of development, design, or construction.

(c)  Provide to the Consultant all previous studies, plans, or other documents pertaining to the project and all new data

reasonably necessary in the Consultant's opinion, such as site survey and engineering data, environmental impact assessments or

statements,  upon all of which the Consultant may rely.

(d)  Arrange for access to the site and other private or public property as required for the Consultant to provide its services.

(e)  Review all documents or oral reports presented by the Consultant and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a

reasonable time so as not to delay the services of the Consultant.

(f)  Furnish approvals and permits from governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the project and approvals and

consents from other parties as may be necessary for completion of the Consultant's services.

(g)  Cause to be provided such independent accounting, legal, insurance, cost estimating and overall feasibility services as the

Client may require.

(h)  Give prompt written notice to the Consultant whenever the Client becomes aware of any development that affects the scope,

timing, or payment of the Consultant's services or any defect or noncompliance in any aspect of the project.

(i)  Bear all costs incidental to the responsibilities of the Client.

(3) Period of Services.  Unless otherwise stated herein, the Consultant will begin work timely after receipt of a properly

executed copy of this Agreement and any required retainer amount.  This Agreement is made in anticipation of conditions

permitting continuous and orderly progress through completion of the services.  Times for performance shall be extended as

necessary for delays or suspensions due to circumstances that the Consultant does not control. If such delay or suspension

extends for more than six months (cumulatively), Consultant’s compensation shall be renegotiated.

(4) Method of Payment. Compensation shall be paid to the Consultant in accordance with the following provisions:

(a) Invoices will be submitted periodically for services performed and expenses incurred.  Payment of each invoice will be due

within 25 days of receipt.  The Client shall also pay any applicable sales tax.  All retainers will be held by the Consultant for the

duration of the project and applied against the final invoice.  Interest will be added to accounts not paid within 25 days at the

maximum rate allowed by law.  If the Client fails to make any payment due to the Consultant under this or any other agreement

within 30 days after the Consultant's transmittal of its invoice, the Consultant may, after giving notice to the Client, suspend

services and withhold deliverables until all amounts due are paid in full and may commence proceedings, including filing liens,

to secure its right to payment under this Agreement.

(b) If the Client relies on payment or proceeds from a third party to pay Consultant and Client does not pay Consultant’s invoice

within 60 days of receipt, Consultant may communicate directly with such third party to secure payment.

(c)  If the Client objects to an invoice, it must advise the Consultant in writing giving its reasons within 14 days of receipt of the

invoice or the Client’s objections will be waived, and the invoice shall conclusively be deemed due and owing.  If the Client

objects to only a portion of the invoice, payment for all other portions remains due within 25 days of receipt.

(d)  If the Consultant initiates legal proceedings to collect payment, it may recover, in addition to all amounts due, its reasonable

attorneys' fees, reasonable experts' fees, and other expenses related to the proceedings.  Such expenses shall include the cost, at

the Consultant's normal hourly billing rates, of the time devoted to such proceedings by its employees.

(e)  The Client agrees that the payment to the Consultant is not subject to any contingency or condition.  The Consultant may

negotiate payment of any check tendered by the Client, even if the words “in full satisfaction” or words intended to have similar

effect appear on the check without such negotiation being an accord and satisfaction of any disputed debt and without

prejudicing any right of the Consultant to collect additional amounts from the Client.

(5) Use of Documents. All documents, including but not limited to drawings, specifications, reports, and data or programs

stored electronically, prepared by the Consultant are related exclusively to the services described in this Agreement, and may be

used only if the Client has satisfied all of its obligations under this Agreement.  They are not intended or represented to be



Rev 07/13 2

suitable for use, partial use or reuse by the Client or others on extensions of this project or on any other project.  Any

modifications made by the Client to any of the Consultant’s documents, or any use, partial use or reuse of the documents without

written authorization or adaptation by the Consultant will be at the Client's sole risk and without liability to the Consultant, and

the Client shall indemnify, defend and hold the Consultant harmless from all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including

but not limited to attorneys' fees, resulting therefrom.  The Consultant’s electronic files and source code developed in the

development of application code remain the property of the Consultant and shall be provided to the Client only if expressly

provided for in this Agreement.  Any electronic files not containing an electronic seal are provided only for the convenience of

the Client, and use of them is at the Client’s sole risk.  In the case of any defects in the electronic files or any discrepancies

between them and the hardcopy of the documents prepared by the Consultant, the hardcopy shall govern.  Because data stored in

electronic media format can deteriorate or be modified without the Consultant’s authorization, the Client has 60 days to perform

acceptance tests, after which it shall be deemed to have accepted the data.

(6) Opinions of Cost. Because the Consultant does not control the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services furnished by

others, methods of determining prices, or competitive bidding or market conditions, any opinions rendered as to costs, including

but not limited to opinions as to the costs of construction and materials, shall be made on the basis of its experience and

represent its judgment as an experienced and qualified professional, familiar with the industry.  The Consultant cannot and does

not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual costs will not vary from its opinions of cost.  If the Client wishes greater assurance

as to the amount of any cost, it shall employ an independent cost estimator. Consultant's services required to bring costs within

any limitation established by the Client will be paid for as Additional Services.

 (7) Termination. The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated by either party upon

seven days' written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof

through no fault of the terminating party, or upon thirty days’ written notice for the convenience of the terminating party.  If any

change occurs in the ownership of the Client, the Consultant shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement.  In

the event of any termination, the Consultant shall be paid for all services rendered and expenses incurred to the effective date of

termination, and other reasonable expenses incurred by the Consultant as a result of such termination. If the Consultant's

compensation is a fixed fee, the amount payable for services will be a proportional amount of the total fee based on the ratio of

the amount of the services performed, as reasonably determined by the Consultant, to the total amount of services which were to

have been performed.

(8) Insurance. The Consultant carries Workers' Compensation insurance, professional liability insurance, and general liability

insurance.  If the Client directs the Consultant to obtain increased insurance coverage, the Consultant will take out such

additional insurance, if obtainable, at the Client's expense.

(9) Standard of Care. The standard of care applicable to Consultant’s services will be the degree of care and skill ordinarily

exercised by consultants performing the same or similar services in the same locality at the time the services are provided.  No

warranty, express or implied, is made or intended by the Consultant's undertaking herein or its performance of services, and it is

agreed that the Consultant is not a fiduciary with respect to the Client.

(10) LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to the Client and the

Consultant, the risks have been allocated such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent of the law, and notwithstanding any

other provisions of this Agreement or the existence of applicable insurance coverage, that the total liability, in the aggregate, of

the Consultant and the Consultant's officers, directors, employees, agents, and subconsultants to the Client or to anyone claiming

by, through or under the Client, for any and all claims, losses, costs or damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in

any way related to the services under this Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited to, the negligence,

professional errors or omissions, strict liability or breach of contract or any warranty, express or implied, of the Consultant or

the Consultant's officers, directors, employees, agents, and subconsultants, shall not exceed twice the total compensation

received by the Consultant under this Agreement or $50,000, whichever is greater.  Higher limits of liability may be negotiated

for additional fee.  Under no circumstances shall the Consultant be liable for extra costs or other consequences due to changed

conditions, or for costs related to the failure of contractors to perform work in accordance with the plans and specifications.

This Section 10 is intended solely to limit the remedies available to the Client or those claiming by or through the Client, and

nothing in this Section 10 shall require the Client to indemnify the Consultant.

(11) Mutual Waiver of Consequential Damages.  In no event shall either party be liable to the other for any consequential,

incidental, punitive, or indirect damages including but not limited to loss of income or loss of profits.

(12) Certifications. The Consultant shall not be required to execute certifications or third-party reliance letters that are

inaccurate, that relate to facts of which the Consultant does not have actual knowledge, or that would cause the Consultant to

violate applicable rules of professional responsibility.



Rev 07/13 3

(13) Dispute Resolution. All claims by the Client arising out of this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to

mediation in accordance with the Construction Industry Mediation Procedures of the American Arbitration Association as a

condition precedent to litigation.  Any mediation or civil action by Client must be commenced within one year of the accrual of

the cause of action asserted but in no event later than allowed by applicable statutes.

(14) Hazardous Substances and Conditions.    In no event shall Consultant be a custodian, transporter, handler, arranger,

contractor, or remediator with respect to hazardous substances and conditions.  Consultant's services will be limited to

professional analysis, recommendations, and reporting, including, when agreed to, plans and specifications for isolation,

removal, or remediation.  The Consultant shall notify the Client of hazardous substances or conditions not contemplated in the

scope of services of which the Consultant actually becomes aware.  Upon such notice by the Consultant, the Consultant may

stop affected portions of its services until the hazardous substance or condition is eliminated.

(15)  Construction Phase Services.
(a)  If the Consultant's services include the preparation of documents to be used for construction and the Consultant is not

retained to make periodic site visits, the Client assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the documents and for

construction observation, and the Client waives any claims against the Consultant in any way connected thereto.

(b)  If the Consultant provides construction phase services, the Consultant shall have no responsibility for any contractor's

means, methods, techniques, equipment choice and usage, sequence, schedule, safety programs, or safety practices, nor shall

Consultant have any authority or responsibility to stop or direct the work of any contractor.  The Consultant's visits will be for

the purpose of endeavoring to provide the Client a greater degree of confidence that the completed work of its contractors will

generally conform to the construction documents prepared by the Consultant.  Consultant neither guarantees the performance of

contractors, nor assumes responsibility for any contractor’s failure to perform its work in accordance with the contract

documents.

(c)  The Consultant is not responsible for any duties assigned to the design professional in the construction contract that are not

expressly provided for in this Agreement.  The Client agrees that each contract with any contractor shall state that the contractor

shall be solely responsible for job site safety and for its means and methods; that the contractor shall indemnify the Client and

the Consultant for all claims and liability arising out of job site accidents; and that the Client and the Consultant shall be made

additional insureds under the contractor’s general liability insurance policy.

(16) No Third-Party Beneficiaries; Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone

other than the Client and the Consultant, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for

the sole benefit of the Client and the Consultant.  The Client shall not assign or transfer any rights under or interest in this

Agreement, or any claim arising out of the performance of services by Consultant, without the written consent of the Consultant.

 The Consultant reserves the right to augment its staff with subconsultants as it deems appropriate due to project logistics,

schedules, or market conditions.  If the Consultant exercises this right, the Consultant will maintain the agreed-upon billing rates

for services identified in the contract, regardless of whether the services are provided by in-house employees, contract

employees, or independent subconsultants.

(17) Confidentiality. The Client consents to the use and dissemination by the Consultant of photographs of the project and to

the use by the Consultant of facts, data and information obtained by the Consultant in the performance of its services.  If,

however, any facts, data or information are specifically identified in writing by the Client as confidential, the Consultant shall

use reasonable care to maintain the confidentiality of that material.

(18) Miscellaneous Provisions. This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the State of North Carolina.  This Agreement

contains the entire and fully integrated agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous

negotiations, representations, agreements or understandings, whether written or oral.  Except as provided in Section 1, this

Agreement can be supplemented or amended only by a written document executed by both parties.  Provided, however, that any

conflicting or additional terms on any purchase order issued by the Client shall be void and are hereby expressly rejected by the

Consultant.  Any provision in this Agreement that is unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such unenforceability

without invalidating the remaining provisions.  The non-enforcement of any provision by either party shall not constitute a

waiver of that provision nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement.



 
 
 
 
Approve Revised Budget for S. Trade Street Project  
      
DATE: September 17, 2014 
 
FROM:  Ralph Messera, Director of Public Works 
 
 
Background/Issue: 
  
In July 2013 the Board adopted a budget for the “Modified” S. Trade Street project. Since bids have now been received 
for the construction, along with other known expenses, that budget needs to be revised.  
 
Proposal/Solution: 
 
Attached is a revised budget document for the S. Trade street project. This budget incorporates the known contract 
amounts for most items, though several are still estimates. I call your attention to the notes regarding reimbursements to 
the General Fund.  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
Bond sale and receipt of proceeds will lead to an almost immediate reimbursement to the general Fund of $347,875 for the 
actual expenses that have been incurred since July 2013. Upon project completion, funds may be available to provide 
additional reimbursement to the General Fund for past expenditures since the inception of the project, or may be used for 
other roadway activities.  
 
Related Town Goal:  
 
-To identify, plan, design, fund and build transportation facilities that efficiently and effectively serve the community in a 
cost effective and environmentally sensitive manner.  
 
-To provide financial resources in a prudent and responsible manner through traditional and alternative sources of 
revenue, effective budgeting and cost control, while maintain a healthy fund balance. 
  
Recommended Motion:  
 
Motion to approve the revised budget for the S. Trade Street project, as attached, along with the related notes.   
 

 

 



FUND ORG DESC OBJECT PROJECT

July 2013 Budget Est. Sept. 2014 Final Est.
46 46000001 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS ISSUE 484009 PW214 5,500,000$                          5,500,000$                     
46 46000001 PAYMENT FROM ACTS-REQUIRED 484010 PW214 200,000$                             200,000$                        *
46 46000001 PAYMENT FROM ACTS OPTIONAL 484011 PW214 -$                                      

5,700,000$                          5,700,000$                     

46 46451000 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 6576 PW214 4,107,500$                          4,223,642$                     
46 46451000 UTILITY RELOCATION ALLOWANCE 657601 PW214 225,000$                             225,000$                        *
46 46451000 CONST. ADMIN. & INSPECTION 657602 PW214 100,000$                             226,349$                        
46 46451000 GEO-TECH DURING CONSTRUCTION 657603 PW214 117,500$                             101,925$                        
46 46451000 ENGINEERING REDESIGN 657604 PW214 70,800$                                90,800$                          #
46 46451000 FINAL PERMITTING 657605 PW214 5,000$                                  4,000$                            #
46 46451000 R/W FEE SIMPLE & EASEMENTS 657606 PW214 535,000$                             325,000$                        #
46 46451000 SURVEY UPDATES, SOFT-DIGS, ETC. 657607 PW214 30,000$                                25,000$                          #
46 46451000 LANDSCAPING 657608 PW214 50,000$                                50,000$                          

46 46451000 BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 657609 PW214 70,000$                                70,000$                          * 
46 46451000 PROJECT CONTINGENCY 657610 PW214 389,200$                             358,284$                        

5,700,000$                          5,700,000$                     

    2. Items marked with a  #  are amounts that can be reimbursed back to the General Fund after bond sale for expenditures already made.

S. TRADE STREET-GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PROJECT

Notes:  1. Items Marked with a * remain our best estimates at this time.

   3.  Any remaining contingency at the project completion can be used to reimburse G/F for past expenses or for road paving or construction.
 4. The Manager, as Budget Officer, is authorized to make adjustments to line items, with a report to the Board at the following meeting. 



Sanborn 35,525.00$       
TB Harris 2,500.00$         
S & Me 33,000.24$       
NC DoT 20,311.46$       
Mulkey Eng. 4,400.00$         
MARA 162,000.00$     
Kimley Horn 403,899.55$     
JE (6,615.03)$        
JE 464.90$            

655,486.12$     

Kimley-Horn 223,829.07$     
Morrison Eng. 20,000.00$       
Nat. Flood Ins. Prog. 4,400.00$         
NC DoT 7,500.00$         
NC Div of WQ 240.00$            
Prof. Prop. Surveryors 400.00$            
S & Me 5,752.50$         
Sanborn 14,400.00$       

276,521.57$     

2011

Buckley Trust 25,550.00$       
Habitat 358.00$            
James Owens 4,000.00$         
Kimley Horn 48,467.00$       
Morrison Eng 5,000.00$         
Prof. Prop. Surveyors 4,172.50$         
JE (6,922.50)$        

80,625.00$       

MARA 22,654.00$       
John Davenport Eng. 28,402.50$       
James Owens 2,000.00$         
Kimley Horn 43,876.87$       
Morrison Eng 3,750.00$         
Prof. Prop. Surveyors 14,164.50$       
JE 1,532.00$         

116,379.87$     

2010-2013 473,526.44$     

Pre-Debt Issuance 1,129,012.56$  

2006-2009

2010

2012-2013



Variance
Project Actual Positive

Authorization Prior Years Current Year Total to Date (Negative)
Revenues:
Interest Earnings -$                     687.53$               4,977.52$            5,665.05$            5,665.05$            
Restricted Intergovernmental:

Payment from ACTS 71,629.00$          71,628.90$          -$                     71,628.90$          (0.10)$                  
-$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total Revenue 71,629.00$          72,316.43$          4,977.52$            77,293.95$          5,664.95$            

Expenditures:
Post Debt Issuance:

Construction 4,223,642.00$     1,169,104.88$     1,979,397.15$     3,148,502.03$     1,075,139.97$     
Utility Relocation 305,000.00$        -$                     286,311.39$        286,311.39$        18,688.61$          
Inspection 330,000.00$        145,164.60$        102,448.00$        247,612.60$        82,387.40$          
Tech During -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Engineering 72,044.54$          72,044.54$          -$                     72,044.54$          -$                     
Final Permit 1,500.00$            1,040.00$            -$                     1,040.00$            460.00$               
R/W Fee Simple 316,817.50$        316,817.50$        -$                     316,817.50$        -$                     
Survey Update 21,000.00$          20,750.00$          -$                     20,750.00$          250.00$               
Landscaping 50,000.00$          -$                     -$                     -$                     50,000.00$          
Issuance Costs 58,550.69$          58,550.69$          -$                     58,550.69$          -$                     
Contingency 193,074.27$        -$                     -$                     -$                     193,074.27$        

Total Expenditures 5,571,629.00$     1,783,472.21$     2,368,156.54$     4,151,628.75$     1,420,000.25$     

Excess of revenues under
expenditures (5,500,000.00)$    (1,711,155.78)$    (2,363,179.02)$    (4,074,334.80)$    1,425,665.20$     

Other Financing Sources:
Long Term Debt Issued 5,500,000.00$     5,607,132.49$     -$                     5,607,132.49$     107,132.49$        

Excess of revenues and other
sources under expenditures -$                     3,895,976.71$     (2,363,179.02)$    1,532,797.69$     1,532,797.69$     

Fund Balance, July 1 3,895,976.71$     

Fund Balance, June 30 1,532,797.69$     

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

S. TRADE STREET / GO BONDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL



 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
Cc: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager  
From: Becky Hawke, Assistant Town Manager/HR Director 
Date: 7/28/2016 
RE: 2016 Planning Conference Action Item – Investigate Need for Grant Writer Position 
 
Background/Issue:  
 
At the 2016 Planning Conference that was held this past February, the Town Board requested that the need 
for a grant writer be investigated.   
 
Analysis: 
 
A survey was conducted internally to assess how the Town has handled grants for the past three years. 
Areas of inquiry included: identifying which grants have been received in the past three years; who is 
currently handling grant applications and/or grant administration within each department; how many hours 
are presently allocated to this type of work; whether there were known grant opportunities the Town had 
either not been able to apply to or had not been awarded because of lack of time or staff 
manpower/knowledge; and director’s assessment on the need or benefit of adding staff or additional 
resources to grants. 
 
Based on feedback from Town department directors, the Town has been very successful in identifying and 
pursuing grant opportunities and administering awarded grants utilizing existing staff. Only viable 
opportunities are pursued and the Town is often successful in being awarded the grant, representing that 
Town departments are knowledgeable regarding how to match projects with available grants and that the 
ability to apply to grants exists in house with current staff.  
 
The only caveat to this assessment may reside in the police department, in that understaffing and sustained 
challenges in filling open positions has left little room for existing staff to identify or pursue grant 
opportunities. Once staffing levels are stabilized, staff may then be more available to identify and pursue 
grants. Still, there are no specifically known missed opportunities related to grants.       
 
A survey was also sent to peer North Carolina local government human resources directors and managers 
who participate in a listserv to ascertain whether or not like-sized organizations funded this type of position 
either in-house or via a contract. No localities who responded have a grant writer position on staff. Like 
Matthews, other local governments who responded operate on a decentralized model that utilizes existing 
staff in applicable departments to take on grant writing assignments as they arise. Completion of grant 
management tasks vary from locality to locality, with administrative assistants or finance office associates 
typically managing this function.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
Given the information gathered, I do not recommend the Town pursue the addition of a grant writer position 
to either our staff or as an independent contractor at this time. There does not appear to be a need to 
centralize or expand on this function; workload is presently being managed effectively as an added duty to 
existing staff members’ responsibilities; and the Town has not lost out on known grant opportunities due to 
lack of available time or knowledge. Departments overall have a good grasp on available grant opportunities 
and are proactive in pursuing grants when the Town is deemed to be a competitive applicant. If funds are 
available for additional staffing, I believe they would be better utilized supporting other Town operations. 

 

lcanapinno
New Stamp



Potential Sites for Future Parks 

DATE:   July 27, 2016 

FROM:  Corey King, Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource Director 

Background/Issue:  
The 2016 Planning Conference To-Do list included identifying potential sites for future parks.  Staff along 
with input from the Parks, Recreation Advisory Committee, compiled the list of potential sites below.  A 
brief description and comments are noted for each below.  Each site is located in an area identified as 
underserved in terms of park acreage.  The Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource Advisory Committee 
along with staff, will continue research of potential sites around Matthews.  This list reflects locations 
identified to date, and could be updated with more investigation.   

Criteria, including availability, has not been established to prioritize these potential sites.  

Site 1  
PID 21525424; Phillips Road between Stallings Rd – Lion Heart Lane 
Acreage: 13.85 
Land Use: Agricultural – Commercial Production 
Description: wooded, road front, surrounded by residential, relatively flat/little elevation change through 
majority of the site 

Site 2 
PIDs: 21302107, 21302108,  21302109,  21302133; Sardis Road, adjacent to existing Sardis Park site 
Acreage: 15 (Combined) 
Land Use: Single Family - Residential 
Description: open site (not heavily wooded), existing pond, history of garden use 

Site 3 
PIDs: 22729101, 22727140, 22727162, 22727163; near Weddington Rd/Trade Street intersection  
Acreage: approximately 16.6 (combined) 
Land Use: Rural-Homesite 
Description: wooded in rear, road front, surrounded by residential, existing pond, site of planned future 
greenway extension; include rear portions of residential property in addition to larger property at 
Weddington/Trade Street intersection; estimates portion of larger site located in flood plain.  

Site 4  
PIDs: 22737181, 22723978; near Four Mile Creek Greenway, John Street access 
Acreage: 21.25 (combined) 
Land Use: Rural-Homesite 
Description: existing Town owned property, wooded, lacks road/vehicle access, adjacent to existing Four 
Mile Creek Greenway, potential site for additional bike/walk trails. 

lcanapinno
New Stamp



 

 

 
Site 5  
PIDs: 22701236; Parklet design adjacent to Matthews Community Center 
Acreage: .03  
Land Use: Church 
Description: adjacent to Matthews Community Center, near access to Community Center Connector Trail. 
 
Site 6 
PIDs: 22760105; Intersection of McKey Rd – Pleasant Plains Rd 
Acreage: 22.75 
Land Use: Single Family Residential 
Description: Relatively flat, non-wooded, existing pond, adjacent to multiple neighborhoods. 
 



µ0 0.035 0.070.0175 Miles

This map or report is prepared for the inventory of real property within Mecklenburg County and is compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, planimetric maps, and other public records and data. 
Users of this map or report are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification. Mecklenburg County and its mapping contractors assume no legal 
responsibility for the information contained herein.

Site 1
Phillips Road



µ0 0.035 0.070.0175 Miles

This map or report is prepared for the inventory of real property within Mecklenburg County and is compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, planimetric maps, and other public records and data. 
Users of this map or report are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification. Mecklenburg County and its mapping contractors assume no legal 
responsibility for the information contained herein.

Site 2
Sardis Road



µ0 0.025 0.050.0125 Miles

This map or report is prepared for the inventory of real property within Mecklenburg County and is compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, planimetric maps, and other public records and data. 
Users of this map or report are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification. Mecklenburg County and its mapping contractors assume no legal 
responsibility for the information contained herein.

Site 3
Weddington Rd / Trade Street



µ0 0.075 0.150.0375 Miles

This map or report is prepared for the inventory of real property within Mecklenburg County and is compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, planimetric maps, and other public records and data. 
Users of this map or report are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification. Mecklenburg County and its mapping contractors assume no legal 
responsibility for the information contained herein.

Site 4  
Existing Town Property



µ0 0.006 0.0120.003 Miles

This map or report is prepared for the inventory of real property within Mecklenburg County and is compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, planimetric maps, and other public records and data. 
Users of this map or report are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification. Mecklenburg County and its mapping contractors assume no legal 
responsibility for the information contained herein.

Site 5
Parklet at Matthews Community Center



µ0 0.035 0.070.0175 Miles

Date Printed: 6/23/2016 3:11:27 PM

This map or report is prepared for the inventory of real property within Mecklenburg County and is compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, planimetric maps, and other public records and data. 
Users of this map or report are hereby notified that the aforementioned public primary information sources should be consulted for verification. Mecklenburg County and its mapping contractors assume no legal 
responsibility for the information contained herein.

Site 6
McKey Rd - Pleasant Plains



 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
Cc: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager  
From: Becky Hawke, Assistant Town Manager/HR Director 
Date: 7/28/2016 
RE: 2016 Planning Conference Action Item – Hiring and Promotions Equity 
 
Background/Issue:  
 
At the 2016 Planning Conference that was held this past February, the Town Board received information 
related to Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) statistics for full-time employees, with specific interest 
shown in improving women and minority representation across all Town departments. Related to this 
discussion, the Board requested that hiring and promotional processes be analyzed to insure that equitable 
opportunities are given to all qualified applicants.  
 
Analysis/Findings: 
 
Hiring Practices 
 
The Town of Matthews posts all job openings on the Town’s website, posts on the popular job search site 
Indeed.com, emails all current employees with notification of the opening, and posts a notice on Town 
bulletin boards. Positions expected to be hired externally are posted for a minimum of two weeks. Positions 
with multiple qualified internal applicants (typically promotional opportunities, such as having maintenance 
workers who are qualified and interested in an open equipment operator position) will be posted for five 
days, with the public still given an opportunity to submit an application.  
 
The Board may be aware of “Ban the Box” initiatives that have occurred across the country in recent years, 
where members of the public have challenged the fairness of including questions about criminal convictions 
and/or criminal charges on employment applications. The initiative’s premise is that including these 
questions allows employers to preclude applicants with convictions or charges from being seriously 
considered for employment and has a disproportionately negative impact on minority applicants.  The Town’s 
employment application already follows the best practice of not including any questions related to criminal 
convictions or charges faced by the applicant.  
 
When an application is submitted, a required EEO questionnaire is also included with their information. The 
Town’s human resources specialist separates the EEO questionnaires from the applications prior to sending 
applications to the applicable department.  
 
Each department assembles their own application review committee specific to the job opening, with a 
variety of supervisors participating in each process. Minimum qualification criteria based on the job 
description and job advertisement are used to select a pool of qualified candidates. From that pool, the most 
qualified candidates are selected for interview based on years of relevant work experience, education, job-
specific skills, etc. 
 
Interview format varies from position to position, utilizing a combination of panel-based interview questions 
and hands-on scenario testing. Questions and hands-on testing are developed to assess the experience and 
qualifications of the applicant as it relates to the position and are non-discriminatory in nature.  
 
The applicant who is most qualified for the position is selected without bias or discrimination toward race, 
sex, or any other classification protected under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.   
 

 

lcanapinno
New Stamp



 

 
Once an applicant is selected as the finalist, a conditional offer of employment is sent that outlines the 
additional pre-employment testing/checks that will be required prior to a final offer of employment being 
extended. These pre-employment steps include a criminal background check and drug/alcohol screen for all 
finalists. Depending on the specific position, other pre-employment checks may include a driving record 
check, credit check, Wonderlic personality and cognitive ability assessment, physical exam, psychological 
exam, and/or polygraph examination.  
 
Also in support of fairness and equity as it relates to prior criminal convictions, if a criminal background check 
reveals information on an applicant’s record, the findings are forwarded to the human resources director (or 
police chief, for sworn officer positions) for further review. The director then assesses the suitability of the 
applicant for the position, taking into account such factors as the relevance of the conviction to the proposed 
position, amount of time that has elapsed since the conviction, seriousness of the conviction, and other 
relevant details of the conviction gathered by talking to the candidate. Charges that did not result in a 
conviction are not considered. 
 
All applicable pre-employment testing/checks must be passed in order to be hired. The human resources 
director is responsible for final determination of whether all tests have been passed. Assessment of test 
results is made without consideration of or discrimination against any protected class. 
 
Information related to EEO statistics for full-time employees that compares February 2016 data with August 
2016 data has also been enclosed for your review. Since February 2016, 14 new full-time employees have 
been hired. Of those 14 employees, four are black (28.6% of all new hires), and five are women (35.7% of all 
new hires). Two of the positions hired are supervisory positions and both were filled with a female or minority 
candidate (100%).  
 
These new hires have increased the Town’s overall female representation from 25.9% to 26.1% and minority 
representation from 8.8% to 11.5% from February to August, respectively. Additionally, female and/or 
minority representation among supervisors has increased from 17.1% in February to 18.6% in August.  
 
 
Promotional Practices 
 
Internal promotional opportunities are posted on Town bulletin boards and emailed to all Town employees. 
The Town tries to prioritize promoting from within when qualified internal applicants exist, but each position is 
assessed on a case by case basis.  
 
Since the end of February, two promotional opportunities have occurred within the Town, one for a 
recreation program manager in the parks, recreation, and culture department and another for an equipment 
operator in the public works department. The recreation program manager was advertised internally and 
externally for a two week period, resulting in 65 applications for the position, including 16 women, 23 
minorities, and one internal applicant. Five candidates were selected for interview based on their 
qualifications and experience. These candidates included the internal applicant, as well as two minorities. 
Following the interview process, one of the minority applicants was deemed to be the most qualified for the 
position and will be starting in the position later in August. 
 
The opening for an equipment operator in public works was posted internally and externally for a period of 
five days, as it was believed that multiple qualified internal applicants existed. Two internal applications were 
received, one from a minority and one from a non-minority. Upon learning who else had applied, the non-
minority voluntarily withdrew his application from consideration because he believed the other applicant was 
more qualified and he desired to see that person get the position. The minority candidate was, indeed, more 
qualified for the position and he has since been promoted. 

 



 

 
The history and organization of promotional processes within the police department was also assessed, 
looking back over a period of 11 years.  Six promotional processes have been held during this time period 
and four of those six processes (and all since 2011) have utilized external assessors to score candidates on 
assessment scenarios. These external assessors have been diverse in both gender and race and are not 
given information about the candidates ahead of time. The scores they give each candidate, along with 
performance reviews, years of experience, and related additional training are combined to determine the top 
scorer. In all cases, the top scoring candidates were offered the promotion.  
 
Minority candidates have applied for three of the six promotional processes since 2005. Of those three 
processes that included a minority applicant, the minority candidate received the top score and was 
promoted twice. At least one female has applied to each process but was not the top score earner and thus 
was not promoted. The police chief is working with departmental staff to develop additional promotional 
development opportunities to help continue to support the career growth of all interested officers, include 
women and minorities. 
 
Conclusions and Opportunities: 
 
The Town has experienced positive gains in female and minority hiring, as well as representation among 
supervisors, in the past five months. However, it is important to point out that the Town’s relatively low 
turnover rate and limited staffing in each department will cause change to be slow and also means that a 
single hire has the ability to skew statistics either positively or negatively. I am confident that supervisors will 
continue to hire and promote the most qualified person for the position while also continuing to look for new 
opportunities to diversify Town staff.    
 
As it relates to gender equity, employee statistics should also be placed in the context of the types of jobs 
that are available if a person wishes to work for the Town. Over 80% of available positions in the Town are in 
the male-dominated fields of fire, police, and public works, which can historically make it challenging to 
achieve statistics that mirror the virtual 50/50 split of male/female population figures. To provide better 
context, assessing the percentages of women working in these fields nationally can give a better picture of 
how the Town is fairing overall. Nationally, women make up 11.6% of sworn police officers (FBI, 2013), 
compared to 14.3% of the Town’s police force. Approximately 7% of all fire fighters nationwide are women 
(NFPA, 2014), while the Town’s career fire staff does not presently include any women (the female 
employee is in an administrative role). While no national data was readily available for women working in 
public works, anecdotally looking at statistics for individual cities shows that public works departments are 
made up of approximately 8% women. The Town’s public works department currently includes women in 
10% of its positions, though all are presently working in engineering or administrative roles. Hopefully over 
time the police department will continue to build on its positive trend of employing female officers, while the 
fire and public works departments will shift to include more women on staff. 
 
The Town’s current process of posting job openings is neutral and allows all citizens the opportunity to apply. 
However, there are currently no specific outreach initiatives that target female or minority applicants. The 
police department is assembling a recruitment team to promote the department and encourage more 
applications across the board, with specific interest in increasing application numbers from females and 
minorities. Additional opportunities to post job openings that will be seen by female and minority applicants 
that are cost and time effective will also be sought.  
 
Additionally, the Town will be conducting diversity and inclusion training for all employees in the fall of 2016. 
This creates additional opportunities to further our efforts to be an inclusive and welcoming employer of 
choice for all interested and qualified individuals. 
 

 



 

To further ensure equitable hiring and promotional processes, additional training on recruitment and 
selection is recommended for all supervisors. This training can be incorporated into the supervisors training 
that is being organized for the spring of 2017.  
 
To conclude, I am satisfied that the Town has and is continuing to evaluate and select candidates in an 
equitable manner based on candidate qualifications and skills, without regard to gender, race, or any other 
protected class. There are opportunities that exist to become even more proactive and inclusive in our 
recruitment efforts and I believe that supervisors are sensitive to these interests and share the Board’s 
desire to have a diverse workforce. We will continue to work diligently to hire the best candidate for each 
position and appreciate the Board’s support with these endeavors.  
 
 

 



Diversity Statistics for Town of Matthews, NC Residents (per 2010 U.S. Census)

Total Number of Residents: 30,008 (2014 estimate)

Gender: Male: 48.1%
Female: 51.9%

Race: White: 78.5%
Black: 9.6%
Hispanic: 5.8%
Asian: 4.2%
Two or more races: 1.9%
American Indian/Alaskan Native: 0.3%

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Statistics for Full-Time Town Employees

2/26/2016* 8/1/2016**
Total Number of Employees: 135 138

Gender: Male: 100 74.1% 102 73.9%
Female: 35 25.9% 36 26.1%

Race: White: 123 91.1% 122 88.4%
Black: 10 7.4% 14 10.1%
Hispanic: 1 0.7% 1 0.7%
Asian: 1 0.7% 1 0.7%

7 of 41 17.1% 8 of 43 18.6%

*Corrected information from original data distributed in February 2016
**Includes three candidates with job offers who are scheduled to start in August 2016

Statistical Breakdown by Town Department

2/26/2016 8/1/2016
Administration: 7 employees 8 employees

Gender: Male: 3 42.9% 4 50%
Female: 4 57.1% 4 50%

Race: White: 7 100% 8 100%

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:



1 of 2 50% 1 of 3 33.3%

Finance: 4 employees 3 employees

Gender: Male: 1 25% 1 33.30%
Female: 3 75% 2 66.70%

Race: White: 4 100% 3 100%

0 of 1 0% 0 of 1 0%

Fire/EMS: 14 employees 15 employees

Gender: Male: 13 92.9% 14 93.3%
Female: 1 7.1% 1 6.6%

Race: White: 14 100% 14 100%

0 of 6 0% 0 of 6 0%

Parks, Recreation & Culture: 7 employees 7 employees

Gender: Male: 3 42.90% 4 57.10%
Female: 4 57.10% 3 42.90%

Race: White: 6 85.70% 5 71.40%
Black: 1 14.30% 2 28.60%

3 of 5 60% 3 of 5 60%

Planning: 5 employees 6 employees

Gender: Male: 3 60% 3 50%
Female: 2 40% 3 50%

Race: White: 4 80% 5 83.3%
Black: 1 20% 1 16.7%

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:



1 of 1 100% 1 of 1 100%

Police: 70 employees 69 employees

Gender: Male: 51 72.9% 49 71%
Female: 19 27.1% 20 29%

Race: White: 61 87.1% 58 84%
Black: 8 11.4% 10 14.5%
Hispanic: 1 1.4% 1 1.4%

2 of 17 11.8% 2 of 17 11.8%

Sworn Positions: 57 employees 56 employees

Gender: Male: 50 87.7% 48 85.7%
Female: 7 12.3% 8 14.3%

Race: White: 50 87.7% 49 87.5%
Black: 6 10.5% 6 10.7%
Hispanic: 1 1.7% 1 1.8%

2 of 17 11.8% 2 of 17 11.8%

Public Works: 30 employees 30 employees

Gender: Male: 28 93.3% 27 90%
Female: 2 6.7% 3 10%

Race: White: 29 96.7% 28 93.3%
Black: 0 0% 1 3.3%
Asian: 1 3.3% 1 3.3%

0 of 9 0% 1 of 10 10%

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:

Woman and/or 
Minority in 
Supervisory Role:



CRANFORD, BUCKLEY, SCHULTZE, TOMCHIN, ALLEN & BUIE, P.A. 
 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
7257 PINEVILLE-MATTHEWS ROAD 

SUITE 2100 
CHARLOTTE, NORTH CAROLINA 28226 

 
CHARLES  H. CRANFORD  
CHARLES  R. BUCKLEY, III  
MICHAEL F. SCHULTZE  
R. GREGORY TOMCHIN  
R.  MICHAEL ALLEN    
CRAIG P. BUIE  
WILLIAM H. McMULLEN TELEPHONE: 704-442-1010 Ext. 129 
BROOKS F. JAFFA FACSIMILE: 704-442-1020 
MARY C. IMMEN EMAIL: crb3@southcharlottelawfirm.com 
 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 
TO:  Mayor James P. Taylor 
  Board of Commissioners 
  H. Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager 
   
FROM:  Charles R. Buckley, III, Town Attorney 
 
DATE:  August 01, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Possible Penalties for Violations of the Tree Protection Ordinance 
              

The North Carolina General Statutes provide the framework for penalties that a municipal 
corporation may impose.  Chapter 160A-175 “Enforcement of Ordinances” provides the 
following: 
 
A. A city shall have the power to impose fines and penalties for violation of its ordinances, 

and may secure injunctions and abate orders to further insure compliance with its 
ordinances as provided by this section. 

 
B. Unless the council shall otherwise provide, violation of the city ordinance is a 

misdemeanor or infraction as provided by G.S. §14-4.  An ordinance may provide by 
express statement that the maximum fine, term of imprisonment, or infraction penalty to 
be imposed for a violation, a certain amount of money or number of days less than the 
maximum proposed by G.S. §14-4 (up to $500 and/or up to 30 days in jail). 

 
C. An ordinance may provide that violation shall subject offender to a civil penalty to be 

recovered by the city in a civil action in the nature of a debt if the offender does not pay 
the penalty within the prescribed period of time after he has been cited for violation of the 
ordinance.   

 
D. An ordinance may provide that it may be enforced by an appropriate equitable remedy 

issuing from a court of competent jurisdiction.  In such case, general court of justice shall 

Page 1 of 4 
 

lcanapinno
New Stamp



have jurisdiction if it such orders as may be appropriate, and shall not be a defense to 
application of the city for equitable relief that there is an adequate remedy at law. 

 
F. Subject to the express terms of the ordinance, a city ordinance may be enforced by any 

and all or a combination of the remedies authorized and prescribed by this section. 
 
G. A city ordinance may provide, when appropriate, that each day’s continuing violation 

shall be a separate and distinct offense.   
 
H. Notwithstanding any authority under this Article or any local act of the General 

Assembly, no ordinance regulating trees may be enforced on land owned or operated by a 
public airport authority.   

 
Matthews’ current tree ordinance provides under penalties the following: 
 

“In addition to mitigation of tree loss occurring on public or private properties, a 
civil penalty may be imposed by the town for the purpose of destruction or 
removal as a Regulated Tree, a Specimen Tree or a Protected Tree, in an amount 
equal to 1½ times the value of the tree as established by appraisal procedures 
prepared by the Counsel of Tree and Landscape Appraisers.” 

 
Penalties imposed by the Charlotte Tree Ordinance: 
 
(a) Generally.  Any person who violates any of the sections of this chapter, or rules or orders 

adopted or issued pursuant to this chapter, shall be subject to any one, all or a 
combination of the civil penalties prescribed by this section.  Penalties assessed under 
this chapter are in addition to and not in lieu of compliance with the requirements of this 
chapter.  The person performing the work, the property owner and the person contracting 
for the performance shall be jointly and severally liable for any penalty or other 
enforcement action imposed pursuant to this chapter or other provisions of law on 
account of work performed in violation of this chapter. 

 
(b) Civil penalties.  Civil penalties for violations of this chapter shall be assessed pursuant to 

the following: 
  

(1) Failure to plant original or replacement trees in accordance with this chapter shall 
be $50.00 for each tree not planted.  No civil penalty shall be assessed until the 
person alleged to be in violation has been notified of the violation as provided in 
section 21-122.  If the site is not brought into compliance within the time 
specified in the notice of violation, a civil penalty may be assessed from the date 
the notice of violation is received.  The failure to plant each individual tree shall 
constitute a separate, daily and continuing violation. 

 
(2) Injury or damage to, or destruction of, trees and shrubs protected by sections 21-

61 and 21-62 that result in the total loss of the tree or shrub shall be assessed in 
accordance with the tree evaluation formula or other generally accepted industry 

Page 2 of 4 
 



evaluation methods.  However, the maximum civil penalty for each tree injured, 
damaged or destroyed shall not exceed $20,000.00. No notice of violation is 
needed prior to the assessment of a civil penalty issued pursuant to this 
subsection. 

 
(3) Injury or damage to, or destruction of, trees and shrubs protected by sections 21-

61 and 21-62 that do not result in the total loss of the trees shall be assessed for 
each tree or shrub in accordance with the tree evaluation formula or other 
generally accepted industry evaluation methods.  However, the maximum amount 
of the penalty shall not exceed $1,000.00.  No notice of violation is needed prior 
to the assessment of a civil penalty issued pursuant to this subsection. 

 
(4) Failure to install or maintain required tree protection measures in accordance with 

section 21-92 shall be $1,000.00.  No civil penalty shall be assessed until the 
person has been notified of the violation as provided in section 21-122.  If the site 
is not brought into compliance within the time specified in the notice of violation, 
a civil penalty may be assessed from the date the notice of violation is received.  
The failure to install the required tree protection measures shall constitute a 
separate, daily and continuing violation.  Injury or damage to, or destruction of, 
trees in the tree protection zone and tree save area resulting from inadequate or 
omitted tree protection measures constitutes a separate violation which may 
subject the violator to any other applicable penalty set forth in this section. 

 
(5) Any other action that constitutes a violation of this chapter may subject the 

violator to a civil penalty of $50.00, and each day of continuing violation shall 
constitute a separate violation.  However, the maximum amount of the penalty 
shall not exceed $1,000.00. 

  
(c) Nonmonetary penalty.  A nonmonetary penalty, in the form of increased or additional 

planting requirements, may be assessed in addition to or in lieu of any monetary penalties 
prescribed under this section. 

 
(d) Notice.  The city shall determine the amount of the civil penalty and shall notify the 

person who is assessed the civil penalty of the amount of the penalty and the reason for 
assessing the penalty.  The notice of assessment shall be served by any means authorized 
under G.S. 1A-1, rule 4, and shall direct the violator to either pay the assessment or 
contest the assessment as specified in section 21-126.  If payment of assessed penalties is 
not received within 30 days after it is due, or if no request for a hearing has been made as 
provided in section 21-126, the assessment shall be considered a debt due and owing to 
the city, and the matter shall be referred to the city attorney for institution of a civil action 
to recover the amount of the debt.  The civil action may be brought in the Mecklenburg 
County Superior Court or in any other court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
(e) Civil action for unpaid assessment.  A civil action must be filed within three years of the 

date the assessment was due.  An assessment that is not contested is due when the 

Page 3 of 4 
 



violator is served with a notice of assessment.  An assessment that is contested is due at 
the conclusion of the administrative and judicial review of the assessment. 

(f) Use of civil penalties collected.  Civil penalties collected pursuant to this chapter shall be 
credited to the general fund as a nontax revenue and shall be used to further the purposes, 
intent and requirements of this chapter.  The commission shall be consulted with regard 
to use of collected funds. 

 
(g) Criminal penalties.  Any person who knowingly or willfully violates any section of this 

chapter shall be guilty of a Class 2 misdemeanor and may, upon conviction thereof, be 
subject to punishment as provided in section 2-21.  This remedy is in addition to any civil 
penalties that may be assessed. 

(Ord. No. 4521, § 1, 9-27-2010) 
 
Sec. 21-125. – Injunctive relief. 
(a) Whenever the city has reasonable cause to believe that any person is violating or 

threatening to violate this chapter or any rule or order adopted or issued pursuant to this 
chapter, or any term, condition or provision of an approved permit, it may, either before 
or after the institution of any other action or proceeding authorized by this chapter, 
authorize the city attorney to institute a civil action in the name of the city for injunctive 
relief to restrain the violation or threatened violation.  The action shall be brought in the 
county superior court or any other court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
(b) Upon determination of a court that an alleged violation is occurring or is threatened, the 

court shall enter such orders or judgments as are necessary to abate the violation.  The 
institution of an action for injunctive relief under this section shall not relieve any party 
to such proceedings from any civil or criminal penalty prescribed for violation of this 
chapter. 

 (Ord. No. 4521, § 1, 9-27-2010) 
 
 
CRB/khh 

Page 4 of 4 
 



 

 

 

Matthews Sportsplex: Marketing of Attractions in Matthews  
      
DATE:   July 19, 2016 
 
FROM:   Corey King, Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource Director 
 
Background/Issue:   
The presence of the Matthews Sportsplex was discussed as an opportunity for the Town to work with 
Mecklenburg County, and provide information to visitors about the businesses and services in Matthews.  
Various methods were explored, including interactive kiosks, electronic displays along with other ideas staff 
investigated.  Mecklenburg County Parks and Recreation initially agreed, that providing this type of information 
within the Sportsplex could be an additional service to patrons, though a final design was not agreed upon. 
 
Changes to some items, most notably a larger scoreboard and a change of infill product type on the synthetic 
turf fields, have rearranged some expense priorities for the project.  Per conversation with Mecklenburg County 
staff, the infrastructure (conduit, available power) should be installed as planned, but the electronic 
displays/kiosks were re-prioritized and may not be installed upon completion of phase 2 of the project.  Staff 
will continue conversations with Mecklenburg and provide updates as they become available. 
 
Proposal/Solution:   
No action required.  This information is an update on this to-do-list item from the 2016 Planning Conference. 
 
Financial Impact: 
None 
 
Related Town Goal:  
Quality of Life: To maintain small town identity, provide a vibrant downtown 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Formal action is not asked of the Board at this time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

lcanapinno
New Stamp



 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
Cc: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager  
From: Becky Hawke, Assistant Town Manager/HR Director 
Date: 7/28/2016 
RE: 2016 Planning Conference Action Item – Investigate Economic Development Liaison 
 
Background/Issue:  
 
At the 2016 Planning Conference that was held this past February, the Town Board requested that how best 
to organize and formalize the Town’s function as an economic development liaison be investigated and 
solidified.  
 
Work Completed: 
 
Assistant Town Manager (ATM) Becky Hawke and Senior Planner Jay Camp have met to work through tasks 
related to serving as an economic development liaison, as well as to identify opportunities to work together, 
improve the Town’s economic development profile, and partner with other organizations moving forward. 
 
The ATM serves as the staff liaison to the Red Brick Partnership Board of Directors and the Economic 
Development Advisory Committee, while the Senior Planner is the frequent go-to contact for prospective 
developers given the position’s role in explaining zoning regulations and guiding plans through the Town’s 
approval process. The ATM and Senior Planner have determined that a partnership related to the role of 
economic development liaison is the best approach. This includes adopting a relationship with open and frequent 
communication regarding any applicable contact that has been made to one or the other person and meeting 
with interested parties together. The ATM will be the main contact for any general contact made to the Town and 
her lead areas will center on tax rates, incentives, and marketing, while the Senior Planner will focus on zoning, 
allowed uses, and demographics. This approach has already been utilized and is working well. Quarterly 
meetings will also be scheduled to ensure progress is being made on other economic development-related 
initiatives. 
 
Work in Progress: 
 
The ATM and Senior Planner have identified other opportunities to improve the Town’s message that it is 
open for business. Work currently underway includes updating the basic economic development brochure 
that is on the Town’s website and will be contracting with Xceligent beginning in August 2016 for $225/month 
to provide updated real estate listings for commercial and industrial spaces and land for sale or lease on the 
Town’s website. The listing/map format will be interactive and searchable and is presently in use by 
neighboring economic development organizations, including the Charlotte Regional Partnership, Mooresville-
South Iredell EDC, Gaston County EDC, the Charlotte Chamber of Commerce, and the Charlotte Regional 
Partnership. Xceligent also provides a vast array of back end data that will be extremely useful for economic 
development and planning-related initiatives moving forward. Please see the attached information from 
Xceligent for more information. 
 
Additional initiatives related to the Town website include adding more information on potential incentives 
available to prospective developers/businesses and clearer links to Red Brick Partnership website and 
marketing video. In addition to the economic development brochure, more photo-rich content to market ‘Why 
Matthews?’ is also desired and will be implemented at a later date.   
 
The ATM and Senior Planner have also met with Executive Director of the Matthews Chamber of Commerce 
Kelly Barnhardt to begin establishing a cohesive working relationship that will better coordinate efforts and 

 

lcanapinno
New Stamp



 

marketing initiatives moving forward. As a former director of economic and community development, Ms. 
Barnhardt is a wealth of knowledge in this area and is also keenly interested in being a partner in the Town’s 
initiatives, particularly when input on the existing business community is needed. As Ms. Barnhardt continues 
to settle into her new role, the ATM and Senior Planner plan to continue to meet with her and find new ways 
to promote the healthy and vibrant Matthews business community as a means to retain and recruit business 
in town.  
 
Both the ATM and Senior Planner are pleased with how the economic development liaison role is being 
developed and will continue to look for additional opportunities to market the Town and continue to attract 
and retain businesses successfully. 
 
  

 



We build and maintain
comprehensive
commercial real estate data
so you don’t have to.
Our full and robust local market research includes the 
latest property information, verified sale and lease 
listings, historical occupancy and lease rate trends, 
verified tenant information, researched sale 
comparable data, and much more.

C O M P R E H E N S I V E  L I ST I N G  &  P R O P E RT Y  I N F O R M AT I O N

V E R I F I E D  SA L E  C O M PA R A B L E S

Xceligent empowers users with the advanced searching tools necessary to e�iciently locate commercial real 
estate properties that match their needs and the needs of their clients. Xceligent’s proactive research model 
ensures that users have access to all relevant properties, including those not currently being marketed. Finding 
the right properties is further simplified by utilizing Xceligent’s map-based searches and property-specific 
criteria options. Through one simple interface, search results can be viewed, mapped, saved, printed or emailed 
with incredible ease and speed.

Our sales comparable research team proactively 
verifies transaction information, identifying true 
buyer and seller information, and attaching key 
collateral pieces to each sales comparable. 
Identifying accurate and relevant sales comparable 
data through Xceligent’s platform allows users to 
quickly make informed decisions, mitigate 
investment risk, and identify new opportunities.

T R U E  OW N E R  DATA

A dedicated research team pierces the corporate veil to determine true owner details for commercial properties. 
Xceligent’ enables users to generate real prospects using key contact information and identify the true investors 
in a market.

SOLUTIONS



V E R I F I E D  T E N A NT  DATA

L E AS E  C O M PA R A B L E S

We proactively maintain the tenant rosters of 
commercial structures, ensuring that you have 
access to the most accurate and relevant 
information. Generate leads, gain market 
knowledge, and track tenant activity using our 
verified tenant solution, which includes key 
contact information, occupancy dates, occupied 
square footage, and more critical tenant data.

Our lease comparable research team references transactional level data with verified tenant data to provide 
more comprehensive lease information. Our enhanced lease comparables help users evaluate tenant needs, 
prospect future needs, evaluate investments, and generate leads for tenant services. Users can even create and 
share proprietary lease comparables and utilize our report generator to create comprehensive and confidential 
investment packages.

For more information:
866.303.2895
info@xceligent.com

B R OA D C AST  E M A I L

Instantly email your client needs or listing announcements to commercial practitioners in your region. 
Xceligent’s broadcast email platform handles the management of email lists, email formatting, and message 
delivery, allowing you to focus on getting deals done. Target your messages to specific audiences quickly using 
predefined market areas, property types, and investment criteria.

M A R K E T  A N A LY S I S

Not only do we know the commercial real estate market, we 
know how to disseminate our knowledge. Our comprehensive 
reports are second to none and our customizable analytics 
allow users to quickly and e�iciently evaluate specific 
properties and user-defined subject areas. To ensure we 
remain your trusted source for commercial real estate data, 
our research and analysis is reviewed and certified quarterly 
by an Advisory Board comprised of the top industry 
professionals in the market, as nominated by their peers.

We are your source for commercial real estate data. Get started at xceligent.com.



 
Source: Xceligent 
April 06, 2016 13:29 ET

Xceligent Brings Commercial Information Platform to Charlotte

Xceligent Works with Charlotte Region Commercial Board of REALTORS® to Provide Enhanced
Commercial Real Estate Information Platform 

CHARLOTTE, N.C., April 06, 2016 (GLOBE NEWSWIRE) -- Xceligent, a leading provider of commercial real
estate information and technology, has signed an agreement with the Charlotte Region Commercial Board of
REALTORS® (CRCBR) to launch its proactively researched platform in the market.  Xceligent has successfully
brought its service to over 45 US markets and is launching its research product into the top 65 markets by 2018. 

“We’re currently on an accelerated launch timeline to bring a viable competitor across the US for commercial
real estate professionals,” said Doug Curry, CEO of Xceligent.  “We’re excited to work with the CRCBR, as they
have been the recognized voice of commercial real estate in Charlotte for over 20 years and Charlotte has always
been a cornerstone to our plans to bring our product to the Carolinas.”

CRCBR members have been relying on a broker-loaded system for their technology and information needs,
provided by Karnes, for over a decade.  Xceligent acquired Karnes in January 2015 and converted the Raleigh-
Durham market over to its proactive research platform later that year.  Now Charlotte’s commercial professionals
will have access to Xceligent’s expanded universe of property & listing information, verified sales comps,
verified tenant information, lease comps, National access, and more.

“We are thrilled to have the agreement, which will offer our members a fully-researched database, that is actively
researched and updated, in addition to the broker input,” said Theresa Salmen, CRCBR’s Executive Vice
President. “Due to our strong membership base, combined with Xceligent’s recent acquisition of KARNES, we
were able to form a partnership that continues to expand our offering to CRCBR members.”

Xceligent has already driven the entire market area, acquired a tax-base of data for the region, physically site-
inspected over 36,000 properties, researched 12-months of sales transactions, and begun the tenant verification
process for all office, industrial, and retail buildings over 10,000 square feet.  Xceligent’s market analysts will
then call every listing agent to update their listing information and gather any new listings not identified during
the market drive. Xceligent’s team of market analysts will continue to contact every agent or firm on a monthly
basis, utilizing custom data strategies, to maintain listing information.

Andrew Jenkins, EVP of Xceligent (and Managing Partner of KARNES) said, “The new Xceligent platform,
combined with KARNES’ 25 years of analytic research in the Charlotte region, will provide area commercial
real estate brokers with access to information never before seen in the Charlotte region. Our combined efforts
and the continued relationship with CRCBR and its industry-leading members ensure that subscribers have
access to the most comprehensive and accurate solution in the marketplace.”

Xceligent will create peer-nominated Top Producer Advisory Boards for each building type (office, industrial,
and retail), who will certify each transaction in the market every quarter. These local boards will also make
decisions on submarket boundaries, tracked set inventory, definitions of specific uses, and more that will allow
Xceligent to provide industry-aligned market reports and analytics.  Xceligent’s Advisory Boards are a key
differentiator that have generated a reputation for the company of superior data quality in each of its markets.

About Xceligent  
Xceligent is a leading provider of verified commercial real estate information across the United States.  Our



professional research team pro-actively collects: a comprehensive inventory of commercial properties, buildings
available for lease and sale, tenant information, sales comparables, historical trends on lease rates and building
occupancy, market analytics, and demographics.  This information assists the real estate professionals,
appraisers, owners, investors, and developers that make strategic decisions to lease, sell, and develop commercial
properties.  Xceligent, backed by dmg information, has launched an aggressive national expansion that will
provide researched information in the 100 largest United States markets.

For more information on Xceligent, please visit www.xceligent.com.

About CRCBR 
The Charlotte Region Commercial Board of REALTORS (CRCBR) is a professional organization dedicated to
promoting high professional standards and services for its members and the commercial real estate industry.
CRCBR is organized to help commercial real estate professionals develop to their fullest potential and foster
recognition and respect of your profession.

For more information on CRCBR visit www.crcbr.org.

Sam Lewis 
(816) 303-2809 
slewis@xceligent.com

Retrieved from "http://globenewswire.com/news-release/2016/04/06/826524/0/en/Xceligent-Brings-
Commercial-Information-Platform-to-Charlotte.html"

http://www.globenewswire.com/Tracker?data=dcm2pHiunHmgHs-2apPR8u_ITkOjnXppzIWGRkZzmrhLSYkO5IejfEg4j2ij-WbrcWgt302h8lqtuIDL1JvxiA==
http://www.globenewswire.com/Tracker?data=Hwb_ieke6K-i-b_v4tdaVG7doTFha-4xV4QjC9kCm_FtdZmpLuuTfy8052lEVam8_nC_3rcZV2YhrBZz8WJeAg==
http://www.globenewswire.com/Tracker?data=NUylP_MubVbHyI--NgCd5lokB0VGcmxX8LQ7M0aC761-Y3NlGQ4mX1WK1tYk1P8FwczF7DCmn2P5h6__h3ytcA==


 

 

Public Meetings: Parks and Recreation 
      
DATE:   July 28, 2016 
 
FROM:   Corey King, Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource Director 
 
Background/Issue:  
 
Parks and Recreation staff was tasked with developing procedures that would mitigate potential for over-representation of 
ideas by groups that attend public meetings.  Research on this topic and discussion within the Parks, Recreation & 
Cultural Resource Department has produced the following draft of procedures for public meetings, specifically related to 
parks and recreation topics. 
 

DRAFT 
Introduction  
The information below outlines the philosophy of the Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resource Department in 
regard to holding meetings that solicit public input.  Specific tasks are included to reinforce the department’s 
approach towards meetings where public support is solicited.  This document serves as a guide used to facilitate 
productive and efficient public meetings.  Each meeting presents varying opportunities for improvement in the 
public participation process. The two guiding objectives below should be used to design public meeting process 
for parks and recreation related projects 
 

1. Ensure that efforts are made to maximize citizen participation 
2. Create a comprehensive approach to receive and measure feedback provided by citizens 

 
1. Maximize Pubic Participation 

Staff will be cognizant of potential reasons that prevent citizens from providing input and feedback.  Efforts 
will be made in anticipation of these potential obstacles to public participation, including: 

 

• Identification of key stakeholders 
 Citizens and community leaders closely associated with the topic should be contacted.  Input and 
 feedback from key stake holders is valuable. Efforts to communicate may extend beyond typical 
 attempts in order to maximize involvement by this group of citizens. 
 

• Meeting time/date/location 
Meetings should be set at a time/location most appropriate and convenient for citizens 
 

• Promotion 
Meeting information (topic, purpose, date, time, and location) should be advertised through multiple 
venues that have been proven effective. Examples include (but not limited to) print media, department 
newsletters, flyers, notification posted at project site, website, social media and other media. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

lcanapinno
New Stamp



 

 

 

• Multiple Opportunities for Input 
The opportunity to collect input and feedback from citizens should be available through multiple venues 
and at multiple times in addition to the public meeting setting.  This input should be collected 
throughout a designated time period prior to, as well as after the advertised public meeting. Examples of 
information collection methods should include: 

o public meeting setting 
o email 
o written comments 
o phone call 
o personal conversation 
o focus groups (when applicable) 
o advisory committee meetings 

 

• Competent Meeting Moderation 
The selected moderator should facilitate discussion limited to useful, productive dialogue that is related 
to the project.  Comments that introduce unfair bias, invoke intimidation on others, or otherwise viewed 
as unproductive, should be managed. 
 

• Positive Perception of Local Government 
Promotion of public meetings should reinforce the value of public input.  Citizens should be reassured 
that their opinions matter and, their ideas will be taken into account when making planning decisions. 
 
 

2) Balance Citizen Input and Planning Documents 
• Comprehensive plans previously designed also contain input from citizens, and will play a role in 

determining results.  Suggestions should fall within parameters of existing plans.  Significant deviations 
should trigger additional conversations, potentially an additional meeting. 
 

• All forms of input will weigh equally, regardless of form that it was received.  Input received via email, 
personal conversation or other forms will be weighed and calculated in the same manner as input 
received during designated public meetings 
. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DEED OF TRUST         
 SATISFACTION: The debt secured by the within  
Deed of Trust together with the note(s) secured  
thereby has been satisfied in full. 
This the                 day of                                    , 20                 
 
Signed:                                                                                     
                                                                                                
 
Tax Lot No.                                                        Parcel Identifier No. 227-023-13, 227-023-19 
Verified by                                                                        County on the               day of                                        , 20        
  
Mail after recording to: Beneficiary, 2100 Randolph Rd., Charlotte, NC 28207. 
This instrument prepared by: Prosser D. Carnegie 
 

Brief Description for the 
index   

Lots C and D, MB 55, Pg. 334 

  
 

NORTH CAROLINA DEED OF TRUST 
 
THIS DEED of TRUST made August,    2016  by and between: 

 GRANTOR 
 
TOWN OF MATTHEWS, a 
North Carolina municipal 
corporation 
 
232 Matthews Station Street 
Matthews, NC 28105 
 

 TRUSTEE 
 
PROSSER D. CARNEGIE 
 
 
PO BOX 363 
Davidson, NC 28036 
 

 BENEFICIARY 
 
CHARLOTTE MECKLENBURG 
HISTORIC LANDMARKS 
COMMISSION 
(A commission established pursuant 
to NCGS §160A-400.7) 
 
2100 Randolph Rd. 
Charlotte, NC 28207 
 
 

 
The designation Grantor, Trustee, and Beneficiary as used herein shall include said parties, their heirs, successors, and assigns, 
and shall include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as required by context. 
 
WITNESSETH, That whereas the Grantor is indebted to the Beneficiary in the principal sum of Two Hundred Forty Five 
Thousand Five Hundred Forty Two and 00/100 Dollars ($245,542.00), as evidenced by a Promissory Note of even date 
herewith, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. The final due date for payments of said Promissory Note, if 
not sooner paid, is September 1, 2021. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, as security for said indebtedness, advancements and other sums expended by Beneficiary pursuant to 
this Deed of Trust and costs of collection (including attorneys fees as provided in the Promissory Note) and other valuable 
consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Grantor has bargained, sold, given and conveyed and does by 
these presents bargain, sell, give, grant and convey to said Trustee, his heirs, or successors, and assigns, the parcel(s) of land 
situated in the Town of Matthews, Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, (the "Premises") and more particularly described as 
follows: 
 
BEING ALL of Lots C and D as shown on a Map of “Lots A, B, C & D, Map Book 39, Page 248” recorded in Map 
Book 55 at Page 334 (a revision of Map entitled “Property of Rufus Franklin Outen Jr.” recorded in Map Book 39 
at Page 248) in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina; reference to which is 
hereby made for a more particular description.  
 
 

1 
 



 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said Premises with all privileges and appurtenances thereunto belonging, to said Trustee, 
his heirs, successors, and assigns forever, upon the trusts, terms and conditions, and for the uses hereinafter set forth. 
 If the Grantor shall pay the Note secured hereby in accordance with its terms, together with interest thereon, and any 
renewals or extensions thereof in whole or in part, all other sums secured hereby and shall comply with all of the covenants, 
terms and conditions of this Deed of Trust, then this conveyance shall be null and void and may be canceled of record at the 
request and the expense of the Grantor. If, however, there shall be any default (a) in the payment of any sums due under the 
Note, this Deed of Trust or any other instrument securing the Note and such default is not cured within ten (10) days from 
the due date, or (b) if there shall be default in any of the other covenants, terms or conditions of the Note secured hereby, or 
any failure or neglect to comply with the covenants, terms or conditions contained in this Deed of Trust or any other 
instrument securing the Note and such default is not cured within fifteen (15) days after written notice, then and in any of 
such events, without further notice, it shall be lawful for and the duty of the Trustee, upon request of the Beneficiary, to sell 
the land herein conveyed at public auction for cash, after having first giving such notice of hearing as to commencement of 
foreclosure proceedings and obtained such findings or leave of court as may then be required by law and giving such notice 
and advertising the time and place of such sale in such manner as may be provided by law, and upon such and any resales 
and upon compliance with the law then relating to foreclosure proceedings under power of sale to convey title to the 
purchaser in as full and ample manner as the Trustee is empowered.  The Trustee shall be authorized to retain an attorney to 
represent him in such proceedings. 
 The proceeds of the Sale shall after the Trustee retains his commission, together with reasonable attorneys fees incurred 
by the Trustee in such proceedings, be applied to the costs of sale, including, but not limited to, costs of collection, taxes, 
assessments, costs of recording, service fees and incidental expenditures, the amount due on the Note hereby secured and 
advancements and other sums expended by the Beneficiary according to the provisions hereof and otherwise as required by 
the then existing law relating to foreclosures. The Trustee's commission shall be five percent (5%) of the gross proceeds of 
the sale or the minimum sum of $3,000.00 whichever is greater, for a completed foreclosure. In the event foreclosure is 
commenced, but not completed, the Grantor shall pay all expenses incurred by Trustee, including reasonable attorneys fees, 
and a partial commission computed on five per cent (5%) of the outstanding indebtedness or the above stated minimum sum, 
whichever is greater, in accordance with the following schedule, to-wit: one-fourth (¼) thereof before the Trustee issues a 
notice of hearing on the right to foreclosure; one-half (½) thereof after issuance of said notice, three-fourths (¾) thereof after 
such hearing; and the greater of the full commission or minimum sum after the initial sale. 
 And the said Grantor does hereby covenant and agree with the Trustee as follows: 
 1. INSURANCE. Grantor shall keep all improvements on said land, now or hereafter erected, constantly insured for the 
benefit of the Beneficiary against loss by fire, windstorm and such other casualties and contingencies, in such manner and in 
such companies and for such amounts, not less than that amount necessary to pay the sum secured by this Deed of Trust, and 
as may be satisfactory to the Beneficiary. Grantor shall purchase such insurance, pay all premiums therefor, and shall 
deliver to Beneficiary such policies along with evidence of premium payments as long as the Note secured hereby remains 
unpaid. If Grantor fails to purchase such insurance, pay premiums therefor or deliver said policies along with evidence of 
payment of premiums thereon, then Beneficiary, at his option, may purchase such insurance. Such amounts paid by 
Beneficiary shall be added to the principal of the Note by this Deed of Trust, and shall be due and payable upon demand of 
Beneficiary. All proceeds from any insurance so maintained shall at the option of Beneficiary be applied to the debt secured 
hereby and if payable in installments, applied in the inverse order of maturity of such installments or to the repair or 
reconstruction of any improvements located upon the Property. 
 2. TAXES, ASSESSMENTS, CHARGES. Grantor shall pay all taxes, assessments and charges as may be lawfully 
levied against said Premises within thirty (30) days after the same shall become due. In the event that Grantor fails to so pay 
all taxes, assessments and charges as herein required, then Beneficiary, at his option, may pay the same and the amounts so 
paid shall be added to the principal of the Note secured by this Deed of Trust, and shall be due and payable upon demand of 
Beneficiary. 
 3. ASSIGNMENTS OF RENTS AND PROFIT. Grantor assigns to Beneficiary, in the event of default, all rents and 
profits from the land and any improvements thereon, and authorizes Beneficiary to enter upon and take possession of such 
land and improvements, to rent same, at any reasonable rate of rent determined by Beneficiary, and after deducting from any 
such rents the cost of reletting and collection, to apply the remainder to the debt secured hereby. 
 4. PARTIAL RELEASE. Grantor shall not be entitled to the partial release of any of the above described property unless 
a specific provision providing therefor is included in this Deed of Trust. In the event a partial release provision is included 
in this Deed of Trust, Grantor must strictly comply with the terms thereof. Notwithstanding anything herein contained, 
Grantor shall not be entitled to any release of property unless Grantor is not in default and is in full compliance with all of 
the terms and provisions of the Note, this Deed of Trust, and any other instrument that may be securing said Note. 
 5. WASTE. The Grantor covenants that he will keep the Premises herein conveyed in as good order, repair and 
condition as they are now, reasonable wear and tear excepted, and will comply with all governmental requirements 
respecting the Premises or their use, and that he will not commit or permit any waste. 
 6. CONDEMNATION. In the event that any or all of the Premises shall be condemned and taken under the power of 
eminent domain, Grantor shall give immediate written notice to Beneficiary and Beneficiary shall have the right to receive 
and collect all damages awarded by reason of such taking, and the right to such damages hereby is assigned to Beneficiary 
who shall have the discretion to apply the amount so received, or any part thereof, to the indebtedness due hereunder and if 
payable in installments, applied in the inverse order of maturity of such installments, or to any alteration, repair or 
restoration of the Premises by Grantor. 
 7. WARRANTIES. Grantor covenants with Trustee and Beneficiary that he is seized of the Premises in fee simple, has 
the right to convey the same in fee simple, that title is marketable and free and clear of all encumbrances, and that he will 
warrant and defend the title against the lawful claims of all persons whomsoever, except for the exceptions hereinafter 
stated. Title to the property hereinabove described is subject to the following exceptions: 
- 2016 Ad Valorem Taxes. 
- Restrictions, Covenants and Conditions of record. 
- Historic Preservation Agreement and Restrictions recorded in Deed Book _________, Page _________ 
- All easements and right of ways of record. 
- Subject to matters that would be revealed on a survey of the property. 
- All statutes, codes, laws, ordinances, orders, rules and regulations of any governmental authority applicable to the 
Property, including those relating to zoning, subdivision, construction and land use. 
 
 
 8. SUBSTITUTION OF TRUSTEE. Grantor and Trustee covenant and agree to and with Beneficiary that in case the 
said Trustee, or any successor trustee, shall die, become incapable of acting, renounce his trust, or for any reason the holder 
of the Note desires to replace said Trustee, then the holder may appoint, in writing, a trustee to take the place of the Trustee; 
and upon the probate and registration of the same, the trustee thus appointed shall succeed to all rights, powers and duties of 
the Trustee. 
 
X  THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPH, 9. SALE OF PREMISES, SHALL NOT APPLY UNLESS 

THE BLOCK TO THE LEFT MARGIN OF THIS SENTENCE IS MARKED AND/OR 
INITIALED. 

 
 9. SALE OF PREMISES. Grantor agrees that if the Premises or any part thereof or interest therein is sold, assigned, 
transferred, conveyed or otherwise alienated by Grantor, whether voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law [other 
than: (i) the creation of a lien or other encumbrance junior to this Deed of Trust which does not relate to a transfer of rights 
of occupancy in the Premises; (ii) the creation of a purchase money security interest for household appliances; (iii) a transfer 
by devise, descent, or operation of law on the death of a joint tenant or tenant by the entirety; (iv) the grant of a leasehold 

2 
 



interest of three (3) years or less not containing an option to purchase; (v) a transfer to a relative resulting from the death of 
a Grantor; (vi) a transfer where the spouse or children of the Grantor become the owner of the Premises; (vii) a transfer 
resulting from a decree of a dissolution of marriage, legal separation agreement, or from an incidental property settlement 
agreement, by which the spouse of the Grantor becomes an owner of the Premises; (viii) a transfer into an inter vivos trust in 
which the Grantor is and remains a beneficiary and which does not relate to a transfer of occupancy in the Premises], 
without the prior consent of Beneficiary, Beneficiary, at its own option, may declare the Note secured hereby and all other 
obligations hereunder to be forthwith due and payable. Any change in the legal or equitable title of the Premises or in the 
beneficial ownership of the Premises, including the sale, conveyance or disposition of a majority interest in the Grantor if a 
corporation or partnership, whether or not of record and whether or not for consideration, shall be deemed to be the transfer 
of an interest in the Premises. 
 10. ADVANCEMENTS. If Grantor shall fail to perform any of the covenants or obligations contained herein or in any 
other instrument given as additional security for the Note secured hereby, the Beneficiary may, but without obligation, make 
advances to perform such covenants or obligations, and all such sums so advanced shall be added to the principal sum, shall 
bear interest at the rate provided in the Note secured hereby for sums due after default and shall be due from Grantor on 
demand of the Beneficiary. No advancement or anything contained in this paragraph shall constitute a waiver by Beneficiary 
or prevent such failure to perform from constituting an event of default. 
 11. INDEMNITY. If any suit or proceeding be brought against the Trustee or Beneficiary or if any suit or proceeding be 
brought which may affect the value or title of the Premises, Grantor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless and on 
demand reimburse Trustee or Beneficiary from any loss, cost, damage or expense and any sums expended by Trustee or 
Beneficiary shall bear interest as provided in the Note secured hereby for sums due after default and shall be due and 
payable on demand. 
 12. WAIVERS. Grantor waives all rights to require marshaling of assets by the Trustee or Beneficiary. No delay or 
omission of the Trustee or Beneficiary in the exercise of any right, power or remedy arising under the Note or this Deed of 
Trust shall be deemed a waiver of any default or acquiescence therein or shall impair or waive the exercise of such right, 
power or remedy by Trustee or Beneficiary at any other time. 
 13. CIVIL ACTION. In the event that the Trustee is named as a party to any civil action as Trustee in this Deed of Trust, 
the Trustee shall be entitled to employ an attorney at law, including himself if he is a licensed attorney, to represent him in 
said action and the reasonable attorney's fee of the Trustee in such action be paid by the Beneficiary and added to the 
principal of the Note secured by this Deed of Trust and bear interest at the rate provided in the Note for sums due after 
default. 
 14. PRIOR LIENS. Default under the terms of any instrument secured by a lien to which this Deed of Trust is 
subordinate shall constitute default hereunder. 
 15. OTHER TERMS. 
 
WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town has caused this instrument to be executed as of year first above 
written by duly authorized officers. 
 
TOWN OF MATTHEWS, 
NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
By: ________________________________________ 
 Hazen Blodgett – Town Manager 
 
By: ________________________________________ 
 Christopher Tucker – Finance Director 
 
 
  
 
 

 

SEAL-STAMP 

NORTH CAROLINA, MECKLENBURG COUNTY. 
I, a Notary Public of such Town and State, certify that Hazen Blodgett and Christopher Tucker personally 
came before me this day and acknowledged that they are the Town Manager and Finance Director, 
respectively, of the Town of Matthews, North Carolina, and that by authority duly given and as the 
act of the Town of Matthews, North Carolina, the foregoing instrument was signed in the Town's 
name by such Town Manager, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by such Finance 
Director. Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this _______  day of August    , 2016. 
 
My commission expires: _______________                                                                        Notary Public 

 
The foregoing Certificate(s) of                                                                                         is certified to be correct. This 
instrument and this certificate are duly registered at the date and time and in the Book and Page shown on the first page 
hereof. 
 
                                                  REGISTER OF DEEDS FOR                                                                           COUNTY 
 
By                                                                                                                             Deputy/Assistant-Register of Deeds. 
 

3 
 



SATISFACTION: The debt 
evidenced by this Note has been 
satisfied in full this 
          day of                            , 20  
    
Signed:                                       
 

 
 
 PROMISSORY NOTE 

 Matthews, N.C. 
$245,452.00 August __, 2016 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED the undersigned, jointly and severally, promise to pay to Charlotte Mecklenburg Historic 
Landmarks Commission, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina organized and existing under the laws 
of the State of North Carolina General Statute §160A-400, or order, the principal sum of Two Hundred Forty Five 
Thousand Four Hundred Fifty Two and 00/100 Dollars ($245,452.00), with no interest on the unpaid balance. Both 
principal shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America, at the office of Charlotte Mecklenburg 
Historic Landmarks Commission, c/o Mecklenburg County Asset and Facility Management, Attention: Bryan Turner, 3205 
Freedom Drive, Suite 101, Charlotte, North Carolina 28208 or at such place as the legal holder hereof may designate in 
writing. The principal and interest shall be due and payable as follows: 
 
First payment September 1, 2017 of $55,000.00 
Second payment September 1, 2018 of $55,000.00 
Third payment September 1, 2019 of $55,000.00 
Fourth payment September 1, 2020 of $55,000.00 
Fifth payment September 1, 2021 of $25,452.00 
 
THIS IS A NONRECOURSE NOTE AND THE BORROWER ASSUMES NO PERSONAL LIABILITY FOR  THE 
PAYMENT OF ANY SUMS DUE HEREUNDER.  THE HOLDER BY ACCEPTANCE OF THIS NOTE WAIVES 
ANY SUCH PERSONAL LIABILITY AND AGREES TO LOOK SOLEY TO POSSESION OF THE REAL 
PROPTERTY SECURING THIS NOTE FOR PAYMENT OF SUCH SUMS. 
 
This Promissory Note is given pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes §160A-20. 
 
If not sooner paid, the entire remaining indebtedness shall be due and payable on September 1, 2021. 
 
If payable in installments, each such installment shall, unless otherwise provided, be applied first to payment of interest 
then accrued and due on the unpaid principal balance, with the remainder applied to the unpaid principal. 
 
 Unless otherwise provided, this Note may be prepaid in full or in part at any time without penalty or premium. Partial 
payments shall be applied to installments due in reverse order of their maturity. 
 
 In the event of (a) default in payment of any installment of principal or interest hereof as the same becomes due and 
such default is not cured within ten (10) days from the due date, or (b) default under the terms of any instrument 
securing this Note, and such default is not cured within fifteen (15) days after written notice to maker, then in either 
such event the holder may without further notice, declare the remainder of the principal sum, together with all interest 
accrued thereon and, the prepayment premium, if any, at once due and payable. Failure to exercise this option shall not 
constitute a waiver of the right to exercise the same at any other time. The unpaid principal of this Note and any part 
thereof, accrued interest and all other sums due under this Note and the Deed of Trust, if any, shall bear interest at the 
rate of Eight (legal rate) per cent (8%) per annum after default until paid. 
 
 All parties to this Note, including maker and any sureties, endorsers, or guarantors hereby waive protest, presentment, 
notice of dishonor, and notice of acceleration of maturity and agree to continue to remain bound for the payment of 
principal, interest and all other sums due under this Note and the Deed of Trust notwithstanding any change or changes 
by way of release, surrender, exchange, modification or substitution of any security for this Note or by way of any 

1 
 



extension or extensions of time for the payment of principal and interest; and all such parties waive all and every kind 
of notice of such change or changes and agree that the same may be made without notice or consent of any of them. 
 
 Upon default the holder of this Note may employ an attorney to enforce the holder's rights and remedies, and the 
maker, principal, surety, guarantor and endorsers of this Note hereby agree to pay to the holder reasonable attorneys 
fees not exceeding a sum equal to fifteen percent (15%) of the outstanding balance owing on said Note, plus all other 
reasonable expenses incurred by the holder in exercising any of the holder's rights and remedies upon default. The 
rights and remedies of the holder as provided in this Note and any instrument securing this Note shall be cumulative 
and may be pursued singly, successively, or together against the property described in the Deed of Trust or any other 
funds, property or security held by the holder for payment or security, in the sole discretion of the holder. The failure to 
exercise any such right or remedy shall not be a waiver or release of such rights or remedies or the right to exercise any 
of them at another time. 
 
 This Note is to be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North Carolina. 
  
 This Note is given as purchase money, and is secured by a first deed of trust on the property described as Lots C and 
D, MB 55, Pg. 334   Tax Parcel: 227-023-13, 227-023-19 and known as Outen Pottery. 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Town of Matthews has caused this instrument to be executed as of the day and 
year first above written. 
 
TOWN OF MATTHEW 
 
By: _____________________________________ 
 Hazen Blodgett – Town Manager 

2 
 













!(1

!(6

!(6A
!(9

!(10A

!(10

!(5

!(8

!(11

!(4

!(2

!(7

!(3

JOHN

I-4
85

 IN
NER

I-485 OUTER

TR
ADE

SAM
 N

EW
E

LL

ID
LEW

ILD

RICE

I-485

MCKEE

PHILLIPS

CPCC

CHARLES

INDEPENDENCE

MATTHEWS TOWNSHIP

WILLIAMS

MAT
TH

EW
S-

MIN
T 

HILL

N
O

R
TH

EA
S

T

SARDIS

MONROE

PLEASANT PLAINS

REVERDY

AMES

SADIE

FU
LLW

O
O

D

M
O

O
R

E

KIMWAY

ST
AL

LI
N

G
S

E
LIZA

B
E

TH

CO
URTNEY

M
AIN

C
AM

P
U

S 
R

ID
G

E

ZE
LD

A

W
IN

D
R

O
W

ANNECY

MULLIS

D
IO

N

MARGLY
N

TANK TOWN

SWAIM

C
LE

A
R

B
R

O
O

K

FR
EEMONT

KEZIAH

BRIGHTMOOR

HOME

MATTHEWS

TANFIELD

MT HARMONY CHURCH

LAKENHEATH

IN
D

U
STR

IAL

H
AC

KAM
O

R
E

LIGHTWOOD

HARTIS

C
R

ES
TD

AL
E

TILLOT

HINSON

REID HARKEY

S
O

M
E

R
S

B
Y

STAN
H

O
PE

HUNTING

HAYDEN

STRATFORDSHIRE
CREWS

AS
HLE

Y 
CREEK

W
IN

D
SO

R
 C

H
A

SE

FO
XFIE

LD

BOYD

STEVENS MILL

LA
KE

VI
EW

FAIR FOREST

CO
UNTRY PLACE

BU
BBLIN

G
 W

ELL

KIN
TYR

E

OSCAR

C
O

N
N

E
M

AR
A

EV
IA

N

BELLASERA

30 FOOT

M
ORN

IN
GW

OO
D

CHANSON

G
AT

E
SH

EA
D

G
R

AY
FO

X

TEAM

KIR
KH

O
LM

WINTER WOOD

M
C

LE
O

D
BRANDYWINE

SP
R

IN
G

W
AT

ER

BUCKTON

LINVILLE

WHITEFRIARS

H
EATH

ER
SH

IR
E

CRESCENT KNOLL

W
O

O
D

BE
N

D

SWEETGUM

CLA
IRE

CREEKSIDE

SALVO

TR
AF

AL
GAR

FO
RESTM

ONT

D
E

E
R

 C
R

E
E

K

WINDING

VINECREST

JOHNSON

D
AV

IS
 T

R
AC

E

MEADOW

NEILL RIDGE

HARGETT

JERRY

FIREWOOD

GLADEW
ATER

BATH
G

ATE

O'TOOLE

ANDULUSIAN

CHESSWOOD

OAKCROFT

LI
G

H
T 

BR
IG

A
D

E

U
M

I

SENNA

BRIGMAN

FOUR LAKES

M
ARJO

RIE

HAMLET

LAUREL FORK

GREYLOCK RIDGE

CRESCENT

NEWBURG

POMMEL

SABOT

AMIR

TR
AC

ELAKE

HOLLEYBANK

C
O

U
N

C
IL

BRENHAM

M
ATTHEW

S SCHOOL

HOUNDS RUN

MARION

HALLMARK

FOREST

W
IN

TE
RBROOKE

OXB
OROUGH

CITHARA

GLENN VALLEY

JO
IN

ES

TRAIL RIDGE

THORNSBY

QUILL

IV
EY

 W
OOD

ATRIUM

LIN
DEN

EDGELA
ND

PR
IVETTE

BAR
IN

G
TO

N

SANDYMEAD

MOONSTONE
S

A
D

D
LE

TR
E

E

SARDIS GLEN

SISKEY

LINDSAY

HADCO

TR
EESID

E

TA
LL

 P
IN

ES

W
IN

D
SO

R
 R

U
N

TA
DLO

CK

M
ARKW

ELL

WINDSOR SQUARE

COVENANT CHURCH

KILK
EN

N
EY H

ILL

CHAPHYN

WILCREST

W
IL

LI
A

M
S

 S
TA

TI
O

N

FEN
C

E PO
ST

C
H

AR
IN

G
 C

R
O

SS

FINCHER FARM
G

LEN
SH

AN
N

O
N

CASTLE CLIFF

R
EVER

D
Y O

AKS

MINDEN

JIL
L

CAPRIOLE

MANN

VININGS O
AK

MCDOWELL

MANICOTT

POLO CLUB

PORTPATRICK

WOODY CREEK

BANK

IRWIN

OAKHAVEN

TOMMY

W
IC

KE
R

BY

STRATHAVEN

PLANTATION ESTATES

MORRIS

CASETTA

WEDDINGTON

FOREST WOOD

A
LA

Q
U

A

ARBORFIELD

PAC
E

S

ABBEY W
ALK

IVY BLUFF

BLA
CK O

AK

PL
EN

TY
W

OOD

CANDALON

PARK CENTER

HONEY C
REEK

BI
RCH V

IE
W

C
IN

D
Y 

C
AR

R

SA
RD

IS
 G

RO
VE

MANGIONNE

KENT

M
ATTRIDGE

PARRISH

POLO VIEW

RITZ

BILT
MORE FOREST

W
ILLO

W
 B

R
O

O
K

PATTEN HILL

SAR
D

IS M
ILL

NEW
 T

OW
NE

JEFFERSON

HICKORY LAKE

PO
R

T R
O

YA
L

TYNECASTLE

MARESHEAD

H
AR

R
O

G
AT

E

DEVEREAUX

W
A

LN
U

T 
P

O
IN

T

COACH RIDGE

DANNY

BLU
EBER

RY R
ID

G
E

FALESCO

H
O

LLY R
ID

G
E

SA
VA

N
N

AH
 H

IL
LS

NEW
BY

TREVERTON

ABLOW

OAKVILLE

KINGS MANOR

THORNBLADE RIDGE

ASH
BY W

O
O

D
S

CEDAR CHASE

W
INGATE COM

M
ONS

BRIAR TRAIL

M
ILL HO

USE

MIK
EL

YN
N

WILROSE

SO
LE

R
A

ELMSFORD

KALE
 W

OOD

FRIE
NDSHIP

H
O

N
E

YS
U

C
KL

E 
R

ID
G

E

TO
R

Y 
O

AK

ROYAL COMMONS

BRITTLE CREEK

DOWNTON

LU
DM

AN

PINEVILLE-M
ATTHEWS

SW
AN

C
R

O
FT

LYLE C
R

EW
S

M
ATTHEW

S PARK

TO
M

'S
 F

AR
M

EBERLE

BALLARDS POND

PLA
NTA

TIO
N C

LU
B

LAU
R

ELW
O

O
D

WILLIAMSTOWN

ROSE ARBOR

PO
PLAR

 KN
O

LL

C
LA

IR
VI

EW

TORINO

BO
YD

 FU
N

D
E

R
BU

R
K

OLD DEPOT

CLOUDBURST

KILM
AR

N
O

C
K

H
O

R
S

EB
AC

K

SEA MIST

JAYWOOD

LI
VE

R
Y 

ST
AB

LE

SU
NN

YV
IE

W

C
LE

AR
K

IR
K

LIB
RARY

G
O

LD
EN

 H
IL

L

TIM
BER

 KN
O

LL

CHIPWOOD

W
IN

D
Y 

H
IL

L

R
IV

ER
 B

AN
KS

WYNDMERE HILLS

REID HALL

AU
BR

EY BELL

CIRCA
ENID

M
AR

Q
U

E

ED
G

EB
R

O
O

K

SAGEMONT

DUNNWOOD HILLS

OL
D 

PO
ND

RAINBOW RIDGE

WAINSLEY

LIPIZZAN

W
O

O
D 

ST
AR

BENTCREEK

DEVORE

WINDSOR M
EADOW

AR
M

A
D

AL
E

SUMMERLAND

ENGLISH KNOLL

BL
O

O
M

 W
O

O
D

JAMESVILLE

KATIE

G
O

LD
 C

U
P

CAMERON VILLAGE

P
IN

E
A

P
P

LE

DEMAREE

JEFFERS

SELM
A BURKE

FERNRIDGE

GU
M

 W
O

OD

MCKIRKLAND

LONGBRIDGE

INDEPENDENCE COMMERCE

G
R

A
N

D
 P

R
O

V
IN

C
IA

L

ROSSO

AXFORD

BE
TH

W
YC

K

BR
AD

W
YC

K

A
N

N
A

B
E

L

D
R

AYM
O

R
E

M
AR

A

OVERCASH

CI
TA

TI
O

N

M
ER

R
IB

R
O

O
K

SO
U

TH
ER

N
 C

R
O

SS

CRUSADERS

JAYWICK

PI
N

EW
O

O
D

 H
IL

L

RIDGEBURY

BALL
ADE

M
ASSY C

LAR
K

COTT
ON G

IN

OVERWOOD

HAMPDEN

RIDGEVIEW

SETON

PHILLIPS WOODS

HARMONY

ST
EV

EN
S 

RI
DG

E

LI
BE

R
TY

W
EEPIN

G
 W

ILLO
W

M
O

SS C
R

EEK

ELIZABETH MANOR

NORTHFIELD

SH
R

EW
SB

U
RY

MANOR RIDGE

EASTPOINTE

HIGHCLERE

O
D

E
LL

FIVE GAIT

OAK 
TE

RRAC
E

HATHW
YCK

TENSING

GUPTON

MATTHEWS CHAPEL

GILES

KI
M

BR
EL

L

RHETTSBURY

CHESNEY GLEN

HAYDEN BRO
O

KE

JARRETT

RED PORCH

WINEBERRY

PINE CHASE

CALP
HER

WARDLOW

CRICKET

MONAGHAN

R
EN

FR
O

W

H
IC

KO
R

Y 
KN

O
LL

AVINGTON

GLENDALO
UGH

HOLCROFT

HIC
KORY G

LE
N

W
H

IR
LA

W
AY

WESTER ROSS

SP
O

R
TS

HIGH HILL TACONIC

CONNIE

M
OND

AV
I

RONDEAU

HADLEY

VA
UG

HN

CRESCENDO

MEZZO

ILSEMONT

OLD DEPOT

I-485

MATTHEWSAMES

I-4
85

RICE

I-4
85

MATTHEWS

KEZIAH

HOME

I-4
85

I-485

Potential Sign Locations

µ
0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25

MilesTown of Matthews
Department of Planning & Economic Development

July 18, 2016
DL

1. N.C. 51 450 feet east of Alexander Road (existing location)
2. West John Street in the southern section of Brusters parking lot (existing location)
3. Matthews-Mint Hill Road 950 feet west of Crestdale Road (existing location)
4. Sam Newell Road 175 feet south of Independence Pointe Parkway (existing location)
5. Matthews Mint Hill Road 335 feet south of Idlewild Road (existing location)
6. Weddington Road 390 feet south of I-485 interchange (new location)
7. Trade Street at Country Place 
8. Monroe Road across from Family Dollar
9. McKee Road/Pleasant Plains Road
10. John Street at I-485 interchange
10-A. John Street at new McKee Road section (McKee B)
11. Sam Newell Road approaching Crown Point Elementary School

Large Monument Sign
Small Monument Sign

*Numbers 1 - 6 discussed at July 11th board meeting







 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
Cc: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager  
From: Becky Hawke, Assistant Town Manager/HR Director 
Date: 8/8/2016 
RE: Open Container Ordinance and Application 
 
Background/Issue:  
 
Many communities across North Carolina, including the city of Charlotte, have what is commonly referred to 
as an ‘open container ordinance,’ where the open consumption of alcoholic beverages (beer and/or wine) is 
allowed within the public right-of-way under regulated conditions. Each locality also has an established 
application and approval process, with approval typically contingent on several factors (e.g. the ability to 
safely close the public right-of-way to through traffic; ability of the applicant to secure the appropriate ABC 
permit, etc.)  Matthews Town Code does not presently include any provision that regulates or allows for open 
consumption of an alcoholic beverage in the public right-of-way. 
 
In an effort to expand the footprint of its monthly First Thursdays events, Red Brick Partnership (RBP) 
approached the Town to request that an open container ordinance be considered. If such an ordinance is 
approved and then RBP is successful in securing an approved right-of-way closure application, First 
Thursdays event attendees would then be able to walk around between participating businesses and 
vendors more freely and not necessarily have to leave their alcoholic beverage in the establishment where it 
was purchased.  
 
Town staff researched ordinances in place in other localities and then worked with Town Attorney Charlie 
Buckley to draft an ordinance and application for the Board’s consideration.    
 
Proposed Solution: 
 
The proposed ordinance would allow for the consumption of beer and/or wine within the public right-of-way 
under regulated circumstances.  
 
The ordinance allows for permitted consumption of beer and wine during a community-sponsored public 
function, festival, or celebration that is being conducted on a public street, sidewalk, or other publicly owned 
street with a written permit that is issued by the town manager or his authorized designee.  
 
The boundaries of the event would be defined and streets within that boundary would be temporarily closed 
to keep event participants safe. 
 
The application process includes the applicant providing a map of the proposed event boundaries; stating 
how dispensing of alcohol will be controlled; and who is responsible for the event. The application must be 
submitted at least 21 days in advance of the proposed event and will be reviewed by the police department, 
public works department, and risk manager before the town manager considers approval. Proof of an 
appropriate ABC permit will also be required prior to the event. 
 
Town staff will be responsible to placing and removing street closure barricades to ensure proper placement 
and timely removal. The permit applicant or organizing event will be billed for costs associated with closing 
the street. 
 
 
 

 



 

Fiscal Impact: 
 
Costs related to Town staff closing and opening the right-of-way would be billed to the applicant or event 
organizer, so fiscal impact will be negligible. 
 
Related Town Goals and Strategies: 
 
Quality of Life and Public Safety 
 
Staff Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends the Board of Commissioners approve the draft ordinance and supporting application as 
presented.  
 

 



ORDINANCE NO.                  AMENDING CHAPTER 130 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 130, OFFENSES AGAINST TOWN 
REGULATIONS, BY ADDING A REGULATION FOR BEER AND WINE 
CONSUMPTION, IN THE MATTHEWS TOWN CODE. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Town Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina: 
 

SECTION 1. That Chapter 130 is hereby amended by adding new Subsection 17 “Beer 
and Wine Consumption; Possession of Open Container; Disposal of Containers”, to read as 
follows: 

 
“(a) Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this 
section shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this subsection, except where 
the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
 

Open container means a container that has a broken seal or a 
container other than the manufacturer’s unopened original 
container. 
 
Public street means any highway, road, street, avenue, boulevard 
or other way within and under the control of the Town and open to 
public use, including the sidewalks of any such street. 
 
Wine means the same as the term “unfortified wine” as defined by 
G.S. ch. 18B. 

 
(b) Consumption in public.  Except as permitted in subsection (f) of this 
section, no person shall consume any beer or wine upon or within the limits of 
any public street or sidewalk in the Town. 
 
(c) Consumption on private premises.  It shall be unlawful for any person to 
consume any wine or beer upon the private business premises of another without 
permission of the owner or person in control of such premises. 
 
(d) Possession of open container in public.  Except as permitted in subsection 
(f) of this section, it shall be unlawful for any person to possess an open container 
of beer or wine upon or within the limits of any public street or sidewalk in the 
Town. 
 
(e) Container disposal.  It shall be unlawful for any person to drop, throw, 
cast or deposit any used wine or beer container upon any public street or sidewalk 
or upon the private business premises of another without permission of the owner 
or person in control of such premises. 
 
(f) Except; permit required.  Consumption of beer and wine is permitted 
during any community-sponsored public function, festival or celebration being 
conducted within a public street, sidewalk or other publicly owned area pursuant 
to a written permit issued by the Town Manager or his duly authorized designee.  
This permit, when issued, will also allow the sale, service and distribution of beer 
and wine on designated streets, sidewalks and areas reserved for the event, subject 



to all applicable ABC regulations.  However, before such permit is issued under 
this section, the Town Manager or his duly authorized designee shall designate 
the boundaries of the event and temporarily close those streets within the 
boundaries for general public use. 
 
(g) Application for permit.  Application forms for the permit referred to in 
subsection (f) of this section, are available from the office of the Town Manager 
and must be filed at least 21 days prior to the opening day of the event.” 
 
 
SECTION 2. That this Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

This the   day of      2016. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Town Attorney 



Town of Matthews 
Application for Beer and Wine Permit 

 
 

This application is for a permit to temporarily close a street(s), or a portion thereof, for a community-sponsored 
event at which beer and wine is to be sold, distributed or consumed on designated streets, sidewalks and public 
areas. This application must be filed with the Town of Matthews, 232 Matthews Station St. at least 
twenty-one (21) days before the opening date of the event. 
 

Date of Application: _____________________________ Phone Number of Applicant: ______________________________ 

Name of Applicant: ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Event sponsor: ______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Street(s), or a portion thereof, requested to be temporarily closed for the event. (Please also attach a map showing the 
streets requested): __________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Day(s) and hours for which permit is requested: ____________________________________________________________ 

Estimate of anticipated attendance: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Specific quantities of beer and wine to be served: ___________________________________________________________ 

Specific control measures that will be instituted to assure that the dispensing or service of beer and wine is restricted to 

those persons not prohibited by law from receiving it: 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Responsible Party (the person responsible for the enforcement of the control measures referenced above): 

Name: _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone number: ______________________   On-site cell phone or pager number: _________________________________ 

 
The granting of the permit applied for herein is conditioned upon the acceptance of and compliance with by the applicant of 
the following requirements: 
 
1.     Review of Location: The Town of Matthews will review the location and consider the safe movement of traffic relative 
to the temporary closing of streets. Normally, through and connector streets are not eligible for closing. 
 
2.    Barricades and Additional Equipment and Personnel: The applicant shall be responsible for costs associated with 
the Town of Matthews placing a minimum of three (3) barricades at each end of the street being closed. If the closing is to 
involve any hours of darkness, the barricades will have flashing lights. The Town will require that the placement and 
selection of the barricades conform to generally accepted standards. The Town may also, in the interest of public safety, 
require that additional equipment or personnel be furnished, or the hiring of off-duty police officers to man barricades, direct 
traffic, or to provide security to closure area. An invoice for costs associated with the placement and removal of barricades 



will be addressed to the applicant/sponsoring organization. Payment terms shall be net 30 days of the invoice date. Failure 
to make payment in full may result in denial of future permit applications. 
 
3.    Local Access: Local access is to be maintained to all property on the street during the closing. Vehicular access may 
be required as well. 
 
4.    Cleaning of Debris: Within four (4) hours after the scheduled reopening of a street, the street shall be cleaned of all 
debris to the satisfaction of the authorized representative of the Town. If there has been a failure to clear all debris from the 
right-of-way, then the appropriate Town department is hereby authorized to clear the right-of-way of debris, and the applicant 
shall be personally liable for the expense of the removal of the debris. The applicant waives any notice requirements and any 
other procedural requirements connected with the removal of debris, it being understood that the waiver is premised upon 
the necessity to reopen the street expeditiously. 
 
5.    Indemnification and Hold Harmless: The applicant shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town of Matthews, its 
officials and employees from any and all loss, cost (including reasonable attorney fees and court costs), damages, expense 
and liability arising from the use or occupancy or anticipated use of the closed street. The Town accepts no liability for any 
actions that may arise from the closing of a street and/or the cleaning of debris required after the scheduled re-opening of 
the street. 
 
6.    Town Property and Equipment: All property and equipment belonging to the Town and located within and around the 
closed street or sidewalk is to be treated by the applicant(s) and its invitees with reasonable care. The applicant(s) assumes 
complete and absolute liability for any loss or damage to Town property or equipment that may result from misuse or 
mistreatment during the event. 
 
7.    Additional Permits: It shall be the responsibility of the applicant(s) to obtain all additional permits required by law for 
sale, distribution or consumption of beer and wine. This permit replaces no other permit that may be required. Proof of 
possession of any required ABC permits prior to the event and/or use of town properties is required. 

 
The signing of this application constitutes the acceptance of and the agreement to comply with all of the requirements and  
conditions set out in this application. 
 
 
Applicant Signature: _________________________________________     Date: __________________________________ 
 

 
For Town Use Only 

 
 

Public Works Department    Police Department 

Recommend:       Approve         Deny                                          Recommend:       Approve          Deny 

 
______________________________________________         ________________________________________________ 
Signature/Title      Signature/Title 
 
Comments: ____________________________________         Comments: _______________________________________ 

______________________________________________         ________________________________________________ 

Risk Management Department    Town Manager  

Recommend:       Approve           Deny                                              Approve           Deny     Date: _____________________ 

 
______________________________________________         ________________________________________________ 
Signature/Title      Signature 
 
Comments: ____________________________________         Comments: _______________________________________ 

______________________________________________         ________________________________________________ 

      ABC Permit received and attached to application.                  ABC Permit not applicable. 
 

IF THE APPLICATION IS APPROVED, IT SHALL CONSTITUTE A PERMIT 



 

Fall 2016 Resurfacing Contract 
 
DATE:  August 3, 2016 
TO:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners  
FROM: C.J. O’Neill, PE- Public Works Director 
 
 
Background/Issue 
 
The Public Works Department plans and implements a resurfacing contract each year which includes 
pavement preservation preventative maintenance on the Town’s asphalt streets. As the cost of 
traditional resurfacing methods increase, the Department continues to research and evaluate 
innovative methods of maintaining and preserving our streets.  The recommendations for the type of 
treatment on each street selected comes from the 2014 Pavement Conditions Survey completed by -
Kercher Engineering, Inc.  
 
Proposals / Solutions 
 
We would like to use the fall pavement preservation program to test out several different methods of 
pavement preservation.  These are smaller areas so that we can see how they work without affecting 
amount of our budget or affecting large areas of Matthews.  Based on how they do, we would likely 
be asking to expand one or more of these methods to larger areas of Matthews in the spring and 
summer of 2017. 
 
The recommended repairs are as follows: 
- Fog Seal (GSB-88) in the Coachman Ridge subdivision 
- High Density Mineral Bond (HA-5) in the Sardis Mill subdivision 
- Surface Seal in Alexander Ridge subdivision 
- Structural Overlay (2” mill and overlay) on Matthews-Mint Hill Road (in front of Butler High School) 
 
Both the Coachman Ridge and Sardis Mill subdivisions were recently reclaimed and resurfaced.  Fog 
seals and High-density mineral bonds are meant to preserve and extend the life of new pavement for 
several years by protecting them from UV damage and sealing micro cracks before they have a 
chance to expand.  Preserving the roads should keep them from needing costly repairs for many 
years and save the Town money in the long term. 
 

 



 

The two products differ in several ways.  The fog seal is a low-cost method of protecting the roads.  
Its cost is approximately $1.75 per square yard, cures almost immediately, and extends the life of the 
pavement approximately 3 years.   
 
The high-density mineral bond is still low-cost, but is more expensive than the fog seal at $3.00 per 
square yard.  It takes a longer time to cure, which means that residents will be inconvenienced for a 
longer period of time.  In the case of the Sardis Mill subdivision, they would likely close the roads 
between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm for the placement and curing and have the residents park close by 
and shuttle them to their houses during this time.  However, this product is effective for much longer 
and is estimated at extending the life of the pavement 7 years or more. 
 
Surface seals are used when pavements have started to degrade somewhat.  Generally roads have 
been in place for several years and are starting to have some minor environmental cracking and loss 
of asphalt.  The surface seal, in this case microsurface, seals these minor cracks and stops the 
raveling.  The cost of microsurfacing is approximately $3.50 per square yard and should extend the 
life of the pavement approximately 5 years.  The cure time for this type of treatment is typically 
around 2 hours.  Usually one lane of a road is left open for residents and they are asked not to drive 
across it until it has cured. 
 
We have typically not done milling and resurfacing in the Town.  This is because this process doesn’t 
add any structural integrity to the road and is generally more expensive than other types of 
maintenance.  However, it is a good method when the environmental cracking has gone beyond the 
point where other methods would work, but has not gotten to the point where reconstruction is 
necessary.  We have been talking to the contractor who is milling and resurfacing for the City of 
Charlotte to see if they would do work in our area for Charlotte’s price.  If they are agreeable to this, 
then we would be able to mill and resurface for approximately $11.00 per square yard.  This should 
add approximately 10 years to the life of the road. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The total amount estimated for the fall program is $300,000. The Public Works Department has 
$850,000 identified for resurfacing this year. 
 
Related Town Goals and Strategies 
 
Transportation: to identify, plan, design, fund, and build transportation facilities that efficiently and 
effectively serve the community in a cost effective and environmentally sensitive manner. 
 

 



 

Financial performance: to provide financial resources in a prudent and responsible manner through 
traditional and alternate sources of revenue, effective budgeting, and cost control with a focus on 
maintaining a healthy fund balance.  
 
Recommendation Action 
 
To authorize the Public Works Department to pursue contracting the above listed projects for a total 
amount not to exceed $300,000. 
 

 


	648-3.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	01_2016.30_A1 - Floor Plans-RZ-1 - Existing Site Plan
	01_2016.30_A1 - Floor Plans-RZ-2 - Proposed Site Plan


	9A-PB_report_mins.pdf
	2016-7-26 PB minutes-DRAFT.pdf
	Mr. Query motioned to adjourn. Seconded by Mr. Lee and the motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 8:26 pm.


	12C-Tax_Collector_Settlement.pdf
	Matthews Fiscal Year 2016 Settlement Cover Letter.pdf
	Office of the Tax Collector


	13A-PC_ToDos.pdf
	8-02-16
	10-S. Trade.pdf
	2016.7.28 S. Trade Memo
	7E-STrade_budget_KH_agreement
	S. Trade Budget 7-22-13.pdf
	Sheet1


	13H-s_trade_budget
	S. Trade Budget - Final Est. 9-17-14.pdf
	ACCOUNTS-PW214


	S.TradeSt. PC item2
	S.TradeSt. PC item

	25-Hiring and Promotions Equity - EEO.pdf
	25B-EEO Analysis February and August 2016.pdf
	Sheet1


	28-Tree Ordinance.pdf
	FROM:  Charles R. Buckley, III, Town Attorney


	13B-Outen_purchase.pdf
	NORTH CAROLINA DEED OF TRUST
	X




